= 100 North Appleton Street
Clty Of Appleton Appleton, WI 54911-4799
www.appleton.org
P Meeting Agenda - Final

Community & Economic Development Committee

Wednesday, July 14, 2021 4:30 PM Council Chambers, 6th Floor
1. Call meeting to order
2. Roll call of membership
3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting
21-0985 CEDC Minutes from 7-7-21

Attachments: CEDC Minutes 7-7-21.pdf

4. Public Hearings/Appearances
5. Action Items
21-0986 Request to amend the Development Agreement for the Zuelke Project

located at 103 W. College Avenue in Tax Increment Financing District No.
11 and approve the associated Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
Attachments: Memo to CEDC 1st Amendment to Zuelke Project Dev Agrmt 7-8-21.pdf

Zuelke - Fully Executed Dev Agrm.pdf
MemotoCouncil TaxReformBill 12-18-17.pdf
First Amendment to Dev Agrm - Zuelke-City - FINAL.pdf

Zuelke - Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement - FINAL .pdf
TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment FINAL.pdf

6. Information Iltems

7. Adjournment

Notice is hereby given that a quorum of the Common Council may be present during this
meeting, although no Council action will be taken.

Any questions about items on this meeting are to be directed to Karen Harkness,
Director, Community and Economic Development Department at 920-832-6468.

Reasonable Accommodations for Persons with Disabilities will be made upon Request
and if Feasible.

City of Appleton Page 1 Printed on 7/9/2021


http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17735
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=7de6d75d-9baf-4b2b-939c-41b0717d86ce.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?m=l&id=/matter.aspx?key=17736
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=a28fa4c0-acac-4cb5-a3b4-179ade604d1f.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=b002480b-230b-4893-853f-140abfcda7c6.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=15d12020-8b23-467f-a9a9-0bc4a4ae193c.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=16bf8d27-8142-4022-8bb0-e6209785662b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=641c2c74-bb0a-4228-8bb3-bfb405a9b07b.pdf
http://cityofappleton.legistar.com/gateway.aspx?M=F&ID=fa26015b-d1cf-48ea-8ad7-2552c2abc159.pdf

City of Appleton 100 North Appleton Street

Appleton, WI 54911-4799
www.appleton.org

P Meeting Minutes - Final
Community & Economic Development
Committee
Wednesday, July 7, 2021 6:15 PM Council Chambers, 6th Floor
SPECIAL
1. Call meeting to order

Meeting called to order at 6:15 p.m.

2. Roll call of membership

Present: 5- Reed, Firkus, Thao, Altheim and Wolff

Others present:

Alderperson Joe Martin, District #4

Alderperson Sheri Hartzheim, District #13

Karen Harkness, Community & Economic Development Director
Colleen Rortvedt, Library Director

City Attorney Chris Behrens

3. Approval of minutes from previous meeting

21-0930 CEDC Minutes from 6-9-21

Attachments: CEDC Minutes 6-9-21.pdf

Alfheim moved, seconded by Thao, that the Minutes be approved. Roll Call.
Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 5- Reed, Firkus, Thao, Alfheim and Wolff

4. Public Hearings/Appearances

5. Action Iltems

City of Appleton Page 1



Community & Economic Meeting Minutes - Final

July 7, 2021
Development Committee
21-0931 Request to award the project for the College Avenue North Neighborhood
Plan in an amount not to exceed $100,000 to RDG Planning & Design

Attachments: CollegeAveNorthNeighborhood PlanMemotoAwardContract.pdf

RFP_CollegeAveNorthNeighPlan FinaDRAFT 5-19-21.pdf

Wolff moved, seconded by Firkus, that the Report Action Item be
recommended for approval. Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 5- Reed, Firkus, Thao, Alfheim and Wolff

6. Information Iltems

N

Adjournment

Thao moved, seconded by Wolff, that the meeting be adjourned at 6:19 p.m.
Roll Call. Motion carried by the following vote:

Aye: 5- Reed, Firkus, Thao, Alfheim and Wolff

City of Appleton Page 2



MEMORANDUM

“...meeting community needs...enhancing quality of life.”

TO: Community and Economic Development Committee (CEDC)
FROM:  Karen Harkness, Director of Community & Economic Development

DATE: July 8, 2021

RE: Request Approval of the First Amendment to Zuelke Project Development Agreement

On December 19, 2017, the Council approved the original Development Agreement (attached) between
Zuelke Building, LLC (Prior Developer) and the City of Appleton (COA) for the intended redevelopment
of the historic Zuelke Building located at 103 W. College Avenue on Parcel #31-2-0070-00 in Tax
Increment Financing District #11.

The Prior Developer and Zuelke Flats, LLC (Developer) entered into a purchase and sale agreement to
convey 103 W. College Avenue for redevelopment as a mixed-use property comprised of residential and
retail. The Developer and the COA have amended the original Development Agreement in order to retain
tax rules that were in place with the December 2017 approval. See attached memo dated December 17,
2017 for details.

The Developer plans to redevelop approximately 750 sq. ft. of retail space on the first floor, along with the
leasing office, business center, game room, dog wash and fitness center. Floors 2 - 12 would be 66
residential units comprised of studio and 2-bedroom apartments. Portions of the basement will become
tenant and bicycle storage and a lounge for tenants.

The Developer will build a patio facing Houdini Plaza, which will be accessible to the public, but the
primary use will be by the tenants. The Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement for this patio area is attached to
the Amended Development Agreement as Schedule 2. This area was previously vacated and conveyed to
the Prior Developer for ingress and egress to planned underground parking. Now, the Developer plans to
use the close and convenient City-owned parking structures. The Developer has agreed to re-convey the
vacated area to the City and, in exchange and to enhance the overall development, the City will enter a
long term lease with the Developer. A copy of the lease is provided.

City staff is comfortable with this lease structure in recognition of the re-conveyance of land contiguous to
Houdini Plaza; the area will not have a commercial sales use and will be available to the public.

Construction costs for the project is approximately $17,608,000 and will create an anticipated assessed
property value of not less than $8,703,000. The base value of this site is $1,922,100. The estimated
increment created will be approximately $6,780,900.



The COA TIF investment will be 90% of the property taxes paid on the incremental value created by the
development for a period of 15 years beginning August 15, 2024 and ending on August 15, 2038.

| can be reached at Karen.Harkness@Appleton.org or 920-209-9520 for further assistance.

Staff Recommendation:

The First Amendment to the Zuelke Project Development Agreement between the City of Appleton and
Zuelke Flats, LLC and associated Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement BE APPROVED.


mailto:Karen.Harkness@Appleton.org

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 (Development Area #4)

THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT is dated as of the 19" day of December, 2017 by and
between ZUELKE BUILDING, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company ( the “Developer”) and
CITY OF APPLETON, a Wisconsin municipal corporation (the “City”).

RECITALS:
The Developer and the City, acknowledge the following:

A. In 2017, the City created Tax Increment District No. 11 (the “District”) pursuant
to Section 66.1105, Wis. Stat. (the “Tax Increment Law”) and approved a plan for the
redevelopment of the District, as depicted on Exhibit A. On August 9, 2017, the Joint Review
Board approved the creation of the District and the adoption of the Project Plan.

B. Developer is proposed to redevelop a portion of the area of the District
identified as “Development Area #4”. Specifically, the Developer intends to undertake the
following project that will increase the value of the Zuelke Building, located at 103 West
College Avenue (the “Property”) and provide other tangible benefits to the surrounding
neighborhoods, the downtown and to the City as a whole:

1. Redevelopment of the historic Zuelke Building into a Class A Mixed Use
Property including residential, office, retail and parking (the “Project”).

2 The Project will include elimination of the secondary elevator currently
servicing floors 10 - 12. The main elevator will be modernized and extended to the top
three floors. Floors 11 and 12 will be redeveloped into five (5), two-story luxury
apartments with an average of 1,951 square feet. Floor 10 would be redeveloped into
five (5) market rate apartments with an average 975 square feet. Floors 4 - 9 would be
redeveloped into office (4,690 sq. ft.) and will target full or half floor tenants. Floor 3
would be redeveloped into office (4,110 sq. ft.) targeting full or half floor tenants. The
Mezzanine may be redeveloped into commercial space at about 3,955 square feet. The
first floor would be a total of 3,080 square feet of retail. Parking access (as identified in
Exhibit C) for 13 underground stalls would reduce the existing first floor square footage.
Lighting in the first floor lobby would be upgraded to highlight historic features. All
bathrooms will be upgraded as well. The entire building will be upgraded to include
new HVAC, plumbing and electrical.

3. A landscaped green buffer shall be provided behind the building facing
Houdini Plaza.

e e e, e, e e, b, e, i i i i e e o — ,_
Zuelke Building, LLC - City of Appleton
Development Agreement Page 1



4, This redevelopment initiative (the “Project”) shall be subject to final
design and final construction budget as approved by the City of Appleton and the
Developer.

5 The Developer has represented that the construction cost of this Mixed
Use Redevelopment of the historic Zuelke Building would be approximately $15,000,000
and will create property taxable value of not less than $10,000,000. The Property’s
current base value is $1,922,100.

€ The City desires to encourage economic development including the elimination
of slum and blight, expand its tax base, and create new jobs within the City, the District and
the Property. The City finds that the development of the Property as described above and the
fulfillment, generally, of the terms and conditions of this Agreement are in the vital and best
interests of the City and its residents and serve a public purpose in accordance with state and
local law.

D. The Project would not occur without the use of Tax Incremental Financing and
for the fact that the Developer anticipates being awarded Federal and State Historic Tax
Credits.

E. The Property is located within the boundaries of the Tax Increment Financing
District #11 (“TIF #11”).

F. TIF #11 Project Plan includes parcels of real property owned by the Developer
located in the City and described on Exhibit B, attached hereto, consisting of the following:

1 Property located at 103 West College Avenue, parcel number 31-2-0070-
00.
G. Developer desires to obtain a permanent access easement for a small portion of

the right-of-way located in Houdini Plaza described as a portion of the public alley in Block 5 of
Appleton Plat (a/k/a Second Ward Plat) adjacent to the following described parcel: E62.15’ of
the N120’ of Lot 3 Less the W20” and Less the S10'. Developer and City agree to work toward a
mutually agreeable means of lower level access to the Property via the permanent access
easement.

H. The City, pursuant to Common Council Action on December 19, 2017, will
review, approve and ratify this Agreement.

l. The Developer has approved this Agreement and the representatives have the
authority to execute this Agreement on behalf of the respective entity.

Zuelke Building, LLC - City of Appleton
Development Agreement Page 2



J. All terms that are capitalized but not defined in this Agreement and that are
defined under the Tax Increment Law shall have the definitions assigned to such terms by the
Tax Increment Law.

K. This Agreement shall be subject to, and contingent upon, the Appleton Common
Council’s review and approval on December 19, 2017.

ARTICLE 1
PURPOSE

1.1 Purpose of Agreement. The parties have agreed upon a general plan for redevelopment
of the Property. The purpose of this Agreement is to formalize and record the
understandings and undertakings of the parties and to provide a framework within
which the redevelopment of the Property will take place.

ARTICLE 2
DESCRIPTION OF PROJECT

2.1  The Development Area depicted on Exhibit A will be redeveloped and improved with
site improvements as generally depicted on the attached Exhibit B.

2.2  The Development Area is zoned CBD, and the Project shall be consistent with that
zoning designation under the Zoning Code.

2.3 The City and Developer shall cooperate in any efforts to secure other governmental
funding sources for the Project.

ARTICLE 3
UNDERTAKINGS OF THE CITY

The City agrees that it shall:

3.1 The City shall provide financial assistance in the form of a “City Investment” (pay as you
go) through the creation the TIF District #11 pursuant to the Project Plan and shall
appropriate sufficient funds for the performance of the City’s obligations under this
Agreement.

3.2 As the sole source for payment of the City Contribution, the City agrees to pay
Developer annually by August 15 of each year an amount that shall not exceed eighty
percent (80%) of the property tax increment and any City portion of a Payment in Lieu
of Taxes (PILOT) Agreement contributions attributable to the Property pursuant to the
Agreement, based on tax accrued through a date (the “Expiration Date”) which shall be
the earliest to occur of: (i.) the date on which the City Contribution has been paid in full;
or (ii.) August 2044.

Zuelke Building, LLC - City of Appleton
Development Agreement Page 3



33

3.4

3.5

3.6

3l

3.8

4.1

4.2

The City shall cooperate with Developer throughout the implementation of the Project
Plan and shall promptly review and/or process all submissions and applications in
accordance with applicable City ordinances.

The City will provide payments to the Developer as reimbursement for a portion of their
developer cost, as provided in this Agreement.

The City will provide payments to the Developer solely from future Tax Increment
Revenue from the Property as a reimbursement for Developer Costs. The City and the
Developer agree that there will be no reimbursement for any activities prior to the
creation of the District. The Developer shall submit to the City’s Director of Finance a
summary of Developer Costs on a periodic basis as the development progresses.

The City will provide an investment to the Developer (the “City Investment”) that shall
not exceed $2,019,500 plus interest thereon. Interest on the City’s Investment shall
begin to accrue effective the date Developer closes on the final financing for the project.
The interest rate shall be the lesser of: (i.) The interest rate charged to the Developer by
the Developer’s lender, evidenced by the note indicating the rate of loan amount; or (ii.)
Four and one-half percent (4.5%).

If the project does not generate $10,000,000 in assessed value by January 1, 2024, the
City reserves the right to reduce the maximum City Investment set forth in Sec. 3.6. The
reduction to the maximum City Investment shall be an amount proportional to the
January 1, 2024 assessed value compared to $10,000,000 and shall be retroactive to the
date of this agreement.

The City shall recommend approval for all necessary rezoning, permits, site plans and
other Project plans necessary for the construction of the Project in accordance to
Federal, State and local rules and regulations and will utilize standard approvals by
committee and Council.

ARTICLE 4
UNDERTAKINGS OF OFFICE DEVELOPER

Developer will rehabilitate 103 West College Avenue into a Class A Mixed Use Property
including residential, office, retail and parking.

Developer will obtain all necessary zoning, permits and approvals and complete
construction of the Project in accordance with the plans approved by City. To extent
any public improvements are included with the scope of work for the Project, complete
the installation of same per City specifications and dedicate same to the City upon
completion.

e e e S R e B RS ————————————— =
Zuelke Building, LLC — City of Appleton
Development Agreement Page 4



4.3

5.1

6.1

Fiul

8.1

Complete project in accordance with approved plans.

ARTICLE 5
TAX STATUS

As long as the District is in existence, the Project including the land and all buildings and
improvements thereon, shall be owned and taxable for real estate tax, special
assessment purposes and personal property taxes. The City may waive the above
restriction, in whole or in part, upon execution of a payment in lieu of taxes (PILOT)
agreement, in a form acceptable to the City, made between the City and the owner or
lessee of the applicable portion of the Property.

ARTICLE 6
NO PARTNERSHIP OR VENTURE

Developer, and their affiliates and successors, and their contractors or subcontractors,
shall be solely responsible for the completion of the Project. Nothing contained in this
Agreement shall create or effect any partnership, venture or relationship between the
City and Developer or any contractor or subcontractor employed by them in the
construction of the Project.

ARTICLE 7
CONFLICT OF INTEREST

No member, officer or employee of the City, during his/her tenure or for one year
thereafter, will have or shall have had any interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement
or any proceeds thereof.

ARTICLE 8
WRITTEN NOTICES

Any written notice required under this Agreement shall be sent to the following
individuals:

FORTHE CITY:

City of Appleton

Community and Economic Development Department
100 North Appleton Street

Appleton, WI 54911-4799

Attn: Karen E. Harkness

Zuelke Building, LLC — City of Appleton
Development Agreement Page 5



With a copy to:

City of Appleton

City Attorney's Office

100 North Appleton Street
Appleton, WI 54911-4799
Attn: Attorney James P. Walsh

DEVELOPER:

Zuelke Building, LLC

Attn: Anuj Rastogi

225 E. St. Paul Ave. Suite 200
Milwaukee, WI 53202

ARTICLE 9
ASSIGNMENT

9.1 No party to this Agreement may assign any of its interest or obligations hereunder
without first obtaining the written consent of all other parties except as otherwise
provided for in this Agreement. This Agreement shall be binding on future owners of
the Property and the obligations set forth herein shall remain in effect and enforceable
until satisfied in full. A notice of this Agreement shall be recorded with the Outagamie
County Register of Deeds. In addition, Developer may assign its rights under this
Agreement to any lender providing financing for any portion of the Project and shall
notify the City of any such assignment. The City shall not be bound to any such
assignment until it has received written notice, including whether the Agreement has
been assigned in whole or in part, the portion of the Property affected and which rights
and obligations have been assigned. Developer may assign its rights and obligations
hereunder without corresponding assignment of its right to collect the Contribution.

[SIGNATURES BEGIN ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

T T T T S T T ST T I IT T e e T T T s e s e e e e e
Zuelke Building, LLC - City of Appleton

Development Agreement Page 6



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement on the day and year
first above written.

CITY OF APPLETON:

ATTEST:

Kami Lynch, Cit\/flerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
. §S.
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY )

Personally came before me this 19" day of December, 2017, Timothy M. Hanna, Mayor
and Kami Lynch, City Clerk, of the City of Appleton respectively, to me known to be the persons
who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the capacity and for the

purposes therein intended.
4} by b
Prifited Name: _ AL L A5 l{’li’ﬂbﬂ[/"\)
Notary Public, State ot‘wmsin,,

My commission-isfexpires: @ \

fs&...gc. ll‘...@-y"’?;
APPROVED AS TO FORM: _:'-' é‘-‘:‘ﬂOTAR ¥io ~E
E: ﬁg ma— .: I §
t U LpyBL\Oiy §

' l .;i: d;‘ ‘r'n I:=° ‘::- -::7

: *;,4 ’2}. %0 8g00e0® . QEOQ-:‘

Jaﬁes P. Walsh, City Attorney “, s OF W\ SCJQ, S

This document was drafted by:
Christopher R. Behrens, Deputy City Attorney

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

e s
Zuelke Building, LLC — City of Appleton
Development Agreement Page 7



DEVELOPER:
ing, LLC

k) A

Mchneldef Partner

Zuelke Bui

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
. SS.

BROWN COUNTY )
Personally came before me this 19" day of December, 2017, Steve Schneider, to me

known to be the person who executed the‘aﬁomgemg;nstrument and acknowledged the same in

the capacity and for the purposes thev;e?n.{’;e 1& ,@ o
‘Q\ &e - ‘ ‘ ‘

B ‘ LIRL \l'ilbjary Bublic, 'Stat of Wisconsir
/ o @%:ﬂmlssm%&xplres \.T\\\-lm)

.rC\{3

DEVELOPER:

Zuelke Building, LLC

By:
Lindsey Bovinet, Partner
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
: SS.

MILWAUKEE COUNTY )
Personally came before me this 19'" day of December, 2017, Lindsey Bovinet, to me

known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in

the capacity and for the purposes therein intended

Printed Name:
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin

My commission is/expires

o R R e N S
Zuelke Building, LLC — City of Appleton
Page 8

Development Agreement




DEVELOPER:

Zuelke Building, LLC

By:

Steve Schneider, Partner
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
| SS.
BROWN COUNTY )

Personally came before me this 19t day of December, 2017, Steve Schneider, to me
known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in
the capacity and for the purposes therein intended.

Printed Name:
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My commission is/expires:

DEVELOPER:

Zuelke Building, LLC

By

: 7
Lindsqﬁ&@ine\i@@r (S
STATE OF WISCONSIN )
t58;

MILWAUKEE COUNTY )

Personally came before me this 19t day of December, 2017, Lindsey Bovinet, to me
known to be the person who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in
the capacity and for the purposes therein intended.

SNy
SRR Puhy M € st/
Z S QG "g Printed Name: 177 gi o0 € chgheo[#
g,} % % Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
7 Z My commission is/expires: 7{/5'2 B/
/ Z
I F
""m OF w1t s

H‘\\:\m\\\*‘“
Zuelke Building, LLC - City of Appleton

Development Agreement Page 8



EXHIBIT A

City Created Tax Increment District No. 11— Approved Plan for Redevelopment

See attached.

s T T ST T T e e e e e
Zuelke Building, LLC — City of Appleton
Development Agreement Page 9



FINAL DRAFT 8-2-17

PROJECT PLAN
FOR THE CREATION OF
TAX INCREMENTAL FINANCING DISTRICT #11
EAST COLLEGE AVENUE
CITY OF APPLETON, WISCONSIN

DATE ADOPTED BY COMMON COUNCIL:
DATE ADOPTED BY JOINT REVIEW BOARD:
EXPENDITURE DEADLINE:

TID EXPIRATION DATE:

AUGUST 2, 2017

AUGUST 9, 2017

AUGUST 2039 (22 YEARS)

AUGUST 2044 (27 YEARS)




TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT #11

Timothy M. Hanna
William Siebers
Vered Meltzer

Curt J. Konetzke
Joe A. Martin
Edward Baranowski
Greg E. Dannecker
Kathleen S. Plank
Matthew Reed

Bob Baker
Christine Williams
Patti S. Coenen
Cathy M. Spears
Kyle Lobner
Christopher W. Croatt
Keir Dvorachek

James P. Walsh
Kami L. Lynch
Tony Saucerman
Karen E. Harkness

PLANNING COMMISSION

Mayor Timothy M. Hanna
Tanya Rabec

Adrienne Palm

Steve Uslabar

Joe Martin

Ross Buetow

JOINT REVIEW BOARD

Tony Saucerman
Brian Massey

Faith Schiedermayer
Don Hietpas

Peter Stueck

PROJECT PLAN

CITY OF APPLETON OFFICIALS & STAFF

Mayor

Alderperson District 1
Alderperson District 2
Alderperson District 3
Alderperson District 4
Alderperson District 5
Alderperson District 6
Alderperson District 7
Alderperson District 8
Alderperson District 9
Alderperson District 10
Alderperson District 11
Alderperson District 12
Alderperson District 13
Alderperson District 14
Alderperson District 15

City Attorney

City Clerk

Finance Director

Community & Economic Development Director

Chair

Member

Member

Member

Alderperson/Member

Member/Deputy Director of Public Works

City Representative
Outagamie County

Fox Valley Technical College
Appleton Area School District
Public Member

City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan



N oo n o ~Aow

10.
11.
12.

13.
14.
15,
16.

TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT #11
PROJECT PLAN

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Intent and Purpose of Tax Increment Financing District #11.........ccoocvniniinnncninncnian, 4
Statement of Kind, Number and Location of Proposed Public Works and Improvement

Projects Within the District or the ¥2 Mile Buffer Zone .........cooovvvvevcenrcnnveinnenee. 16
Qualification Based on City Valuation ...........cccuverrerrrereerersensnesnsssssinsissississssssssssisssses 19
LiSt Of ProjJEct COSES .....cccvvirininiininniiisisinsiscssseisisissnsissssssssssssessssssesmsassesesesscsnonsaens .20
List Of NON-Project COsts.......c.uuviimnmmsesnrnmssssssssssisssssssssssisessssessssesmsassessessssessesens .21
Economic Feasibility Study ........c.ccounvvrnvrnscsninsnsnscrscnnne sereesessessesaenes .22

Description of the Methods of Financing and the Time When Such Costs or Monetary
Obligations are to be INCUITE ...........c.ccviiniiniiiriniinr s ssasses 27

Proposed Changes in Zoning Ordinances, Master Plan, Building Codes, Maps and City

Ordinances...........ocverenenresesrenisesseissssssssssonsnissessssssessessssss .31
Orderly Development of the City of APpIeton ...........ceiiniieiccinnsnninccccnsenismes 32
Estimate of Property to be Devoted to Retail Use .....c.oovvivicccecicvcnninnnnccienincnnnnecenees 33
Proposed Relocation Plan for Displaced Persons or Businesses ........c.ccvvvvveveervennnrniecannne 34
Map of TIF District #11 Boundaries and TIF District #11 Boundaries with Half Mile

BUTEr ZOMNE ....ccciiiiniiiniiiniiininimiscimsisiissmiess s 35
Map of Existing Uses and Conditions..........cccovviiiinnonmiiiisimmms 37
Map of Proposed Improvements and Public Works Projects by Development Area....... 38
Parcel List & Legal DesCription.... ... 39

Opinion of the City Attorney on the Compliance of the Project Plan with Wisconsin

SLALULE. ... eeerriiieeeeernneerereerricsssassssseereessessnnsrnnososssssstessassssssssssssersessssssnssnnsessssssssnsssanaaneeersssnnn 46

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 3



1

Tax Increment Financing District Number 11 (the “District”) is being created by the City of

INTENT AND PURPOSE OF TAX INCREMENT FINANCING DISTRICT #11

Appleton under the authority provided by Wisconsin Statute Section 66.1105 “Tax Increment Law” to
eliminate blight and stimulate the redevelopment of East College Avenue approximately from Drew
Street to just west of Superior Street, South to Water Street and North to E. Washington Street. A map of

the proposed District boundaries is found in Section 12.

This area is primarily characterized by a large blighted and vacant commercial site and a mixture
of small businesses, office space, and housing which have the potential to, and in some cases already
have, created a blighting influence on the surrounding area. The District consists of approximately 59.68
acres of land with the vast majority currently zoned Central Business District. A minority of parcels in
TIF #11 are currently zoned Planned Development Multi-Family, Public Institution, Single-Family

Residential, and Multi-Family Residential.

The District is being created as a “Blighted District” based upon the finding that at least 50%, by
area of the real property within the District, is blighted within the meaning of Wisconsin Statute Section
66.1105 and 66.1333 described below. The map exhibit in Section 13 illustrates existing uses and

conditions of the District.

Blight is described as: the presence of a substantial number of substandard or deteriorating structures
or site improvements; inadequate street layout or faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy,
accessibility or usefulness, or conditions which endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or any
combination of such factors that impairs or arrests the sound growth of a city. This definition also
includes land upon which building or structures have been demolished and which because of obsolete
platting, diversity of ownership or deterioration of structures or site improvements, or otherwise,

substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of the community.

This Project Plan outlines the City of Appleton’s role in assisting with the redevelopment of vacant,
blighted, and underutilized properties and rehabilitation/conservation of existing properties as needed to

support the urban renewal of this area. The investment in this District will:

e climinate blight and foster urban renewal through public and private investment
¢ enhance the development potential of private property within and adjacent to the District

e stabilize and increase property values in the area

City of Appleton TIF District #1 1 Project Plan 4



e promote retention, expansion, attraction and reuse through the development of an improved area
thereby facilitating the creation of new jobs and increased tax base

¢ improve the overall appearance of public and private spaces

¢ strengthen the economic well-being and economic diversity of the area

e provide appropriate financial incentives to encourage business expansion

e maximize the Districts strategic location in Downtown Appleton

There are eight identified development areas within the District that include a combination of
redevelopment and rehabilitation sites. The following map and narrative highlights the key development
areas targeted for redevelopment and rehabilitation/conservation in this District that would not happen

otherwise but for the creation of this District.

BNST

of.
Tax Increment Financing Dictriot 211
Propoced improvemente and Pubdc Works Projects
'S &y Development Arsac
- v T #11 Parceis Db gananl Areas
ﬂ X1 s & vy WD Aiws 1
Futsic Wares Projecs [] Dewslagmarnt Ares 2
o [ Aven 2
5
B S it v
o w3 B eanssrmrt Aova ®
st T Davwiazornert Avwa
Caver & Lyon Dev Cegt Ju-x!a !m“.
e e e e e ——
City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 5



Development Area #1: The largest site in this Development Area is commonly known as “The Bluff
Site”. This site is comprised of Trinity Lutheran Church and Michiels Fox Banquet Rivertyme Catering.

Trinity Lutheran Church is located at 209 Allen Street and is approximately 1.86 acres. This site
originally consisted of several residential lots. In 1924, Trinity English Lutheran Church was constructed
on the northwest corner of Allen Street and Kimball Street. In 1954, a parish center was built on the north
end of the property. The church and parish center were connected via an addition in 1963, which greatly
expanded the church sanctuary. Another addition was completed in 1996 on the northwest side to create a
lobby with an elevator. The building is currently vacant as the parish relocated to another site in
December of 2016, and the site was purchased in January, 2017 by local developers intending to demolish
the site for redevelopment. Future possible uses for this site include mixed use, public parking, public
library, medical clinic, multi-family apartments and/or condos. The timing for this redevelopment is
2017-2021, and the proposed construction costs are estimated at $57 million. Potentially, a portion of this
would be exempt from property taxes if owned by a not-for-profit or tax exempt entity.

Michiels Fox Banquet Rivertyme Catering is located at 111 Kimball Street and is approximately 2.15
acres. This site originally consisted of several residential lots. In 1917, the Appleton Vocational School
was constructed on the southwest corner of Allen Street and Kimball Street. The school was the precursor
to the Fox Valley Technical College. In 1933, the portion of Allen Street south of Kimball Street was
vacated, and the Appleton Vocational School built a second building to the southeast of the original
building. An addition was built onto the south end of the original building in 1952. The auto mechanics
shop was expanded in 1954. The Appleton Vocational School moved to Grand Chute in 1972 and
became the Fox Valley Technical Institute. The school buildings on this site were razed in 1975. The
Elks Club built the present building on the site in 1982. The building and property were sold to Michiels
Fox Banquet in the late 1980’s. Michiels operated a banquet and catering business from this facility until
December of 2016 when they moved operations to their Menasha facility, vacated this site and sold the
property to a local developer in January, 2017. The local developer intends to demolish the site for
redevelopment. Future possible uses for this site include public parking, commercial office building,
and/or multi-family housing and condos. The timing for this redevelopment is 2017-2021, and the
proposed construction costs are estimated at $80 million. Potentially, a portion of this would be exempt
from property taxes if owned by a not-for-profit or tax exempt entity.

The Bluff Site is highly visible from the Oneida Street Bridge, a primary gateway into the City of
Appleton and Appleton’s Downtown. Redevelopment of this site would further benefit, and potentially
induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this site. This development
area would benefit from increased commercial activity from Development Area #2 and along College
Avenue.

This information was largely taken from a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment conducted by Omnni
in June, 2016.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 6



An.aerial viewof the blaft site,

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 7



Development Area #2: This is the site south of Lawrence Street, north of Water Street, east of S.
Morrison Street and west of S. Durkee Street and is commonly referred to as “Bluff Site 2”. This site is
comprised of 16 separate parcels with several owners. The YMCA of the Fox Cities owns 7 of the 16
parcels. The 7 parcels are comprised of 1 vacant lot, 2 vacant homes, 3 occupied rentals and | surface
parking lot. Five (5) of the 7 parcels are on the tax rolls.

Other owners and uses are as follows: Housing Partnership of the Fox Cities owns one duplex which is
tax exempt, and they use this property for transitional housing. Gary Trofka, et al owns one parcel which
is used as a duplex. CJ Properties of the Fox Cities LLC owns one parcel, and the use is a four-plex. 220
Morrison LLC owns three parcels which are rentals (two single family and one multiple units). The
remaining 3 parcels are owner-occupied, single-family residential homes.

This blighted area could benefit from redevelopment, rehabilitation and conservation or be incorporated in
part or in whole into a larger site for future redevelopment. This Development Area would benefit from
increased commercial activity from Development Area #1 and along College Avenue.

Ah aeriel view of bluff site 2.

e e e e — e ————— e e

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 8



Development Area #3: The Solider Square Ramp located at 120 S. Oneida Street was built in 1966, has
424 stalls, and is a blighted parcel in very poor condition. The YMCA purchased this ramp from the City
of Appleton on February 1, 1996 for $1. The Purchase Agreement contains a reversionary and other use
clause. This development area is shown in the recently adopted Comprehensive Plan as mixed use and
green space. It is acknowledged that the current use of this site as parking is imperative to the continued
success of the YMCA, and the lost parking stalls, due to demolition of this structure, will need to be
replaced in close proximity to this site. Development Area #3 has negatively impacted other properties
due to being blighted, is not aesthetically pleasing, is structurally challenging, and needs to be
redeveloped to enhance the overall area and provide a positive impression.

This blighted area could benefit from redevelopment as a stand-alone project or be incorporated into a
larger site for future redevelopment. This Development Area would benefit from increased commercial

activity from Development Areas #1 and #2 and along College Avenue.

',:.‘ e i = 3 ..:'J P ‘
t‘.f_ SRR . “ﬁ' s L'f" L - p.ji’ 2 -‘;,, ;...-'. ¢ BT ‘... .;‘l - "‘ 5 ’
S Ay | - e M R U AW P O s,
—ap | N0, e T e e —_ - "‘-’ ’5-“ L\
T Ry B ERN . -~ .
. 5&"7‘E - "‘:'1"""."""'"“ Hns - oy
o it | SR aping T . : - .
iy YARE BE ¢ l\nll"F:‘:nul =h -‘_"3'&‘ e
L - < = e i
":;m“"""— —_ o

BATE TLA s L T

AT 1L T - s >
'.:'.'"'.'.. il S pre e I :
i iwin = s 28 He ! v af?

o o
'/MoszmsoNsr N o
\\\\ I _,_t
- \,@‘ f%BIER’S SQUARE /

R 4 o
) U & g Biiceere, S
_ad . =
'/// : \J/ : i 5 ‘ ) ""}UF“

SOLDIER’S SQUARE/YMCA PARKING LOT PERSPECTIVE

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 9



Development Area #4: The historic Zuelke Building located at 103 W. College Avenue was built in
1931 with 5 additional floors built in 1951. There are approximately 76,540 sq.ft., and the vacancy rate is
41%.

The building has a total of 12 floors with two elevator shafts, one elevator services the original 7 floors
and later serviced up to the 10" floor. The second elevator services the addition of the 11" and 12" floors.
The inability of the main elevator to access the 11" and 12% floors is a significant burden and will require
extensive engineering and updating to facilitate correction.

The first seven floors in the original 1931 building were largely constructed from marble designed for a
church in Milwaukee. Due to the depression, the church was unable to accept delivery of the marble. The
quality and uniqueness of the marble provides much character and status to the building. However,
preservation of the marble makes it difficult to update the HVAC and plumbing systems, many of which
are original to a 1950-1953 renovation of the building.

The building was considered “fireproof”” when constructed, however new NFPA 1 rules would require
installation of sprinklers throughout the entire building with any substantial renovation. The marble once
again makes this endeavor very costly.

This neo-gothic high rise building, named for Irving Zuelke a local businessman and philanthropist, was
added to the National Register of Historic Places in 1982 as part of the College Avenue Historic District.

The owners of this building are interested in rehabilitation into mixed use by utilizing TIF and/or Federal
and State Historic Tax Credits, but they recognize the challenges of this blighted site. They have a desire
to preserve the historic nature of the building, including the marble, but they recognize that the antiquated
infrastructure upgrades, parking challenges, and the high cost of construction/rehab will require several
layers of funding and support from the City.

Rehabilitation of this development area would further enhance the entire area by increasing commercial
activity along College Avenue. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and potentially induce,
investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area. The timing for this
redevelopment is undetermined based on proposed changes to the Historic Tax Credits Federally and
State wide. The proposed construction costs are estimated at $6.5 million.

100 West College Avenue (south side) Zuelke Building to Houdini Plaza

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 10



Development Area #5: This area is comprised of City Center Plaza, the Blue Ramp, and the vacant land
where Washington Place once stood.

10 College Avenue, City Center Plaza, was constructed in 1986 and is located in the heart of Appleton’s
Business District. This 3-story, 190,000 sq. ft. multi-use building contains both retail and office spaces.
Major tenants include Appleton Area School District, Total Med Staffing, West Corporation, ThedaCare,
Air Wisconsin, Joseph’s Shoes and Murray Photos. The current vacancy rate is 20%, and the property is
for sale. The local owners may use TIF to assist with conservation and renovations for tenants of
approximately $1,000,000 within the next three years.

122 E. College Avenue, City Center East Office Condo, was constructed in 1974 as Gimbals Department
Store and was converted to office condo in 2003. This 150,000 sq. ft. building contains office space with
major tenants that include: ThedaCare, Appleton Area School District, and Hoffman Planning Design and
Construction. The current vacancy rate is 15%. The local owners may use TIF to assist with conservation
and renovations for tenants of approximately $2,000,000 within the next three years.

100 N. Appleton Street, City Center West Office Condo, was constructed in 1960 as HC Prange Company
and was converted to office condo units in 1996. The City of Appleton owns the top two floors and space
on the first floor. The Pfefferle group owns the balance of the condo units consisting of 62,318 sq. ft.

The current vacancy rate is 5%. The local owners may use TIF for renovation and/or remodeling of
tenant space of approximately $1,000,000 within the next three years.

The Blue Ramp, located at 120 N. Appleton Street, was built in 1963, with 7 %2 post-tension decks
replacing original reinforced decks in 1986, has 401 stalls, and will be demolished by 2019 as it is
blighted, is a substandard and/or deteriorating structure, and an inadequate layout for today’s parking
needs.

The vacant land located at 103 E. Washington Street was most recently Washington Place. This blighted
building was demolished in 2013, and this is a prime site for redevelopment.

This blighted Development Area #5 could benefit from rehabilitation and conservation and/or incorporate
portions into a larger site for future redevelopment. Since this entire area is highly visible and an integral
part of the Downtown, this Development Area would benefit from increased commercial activity along
College Avenue and the other Development Areas. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and
potentially induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.
Potentially, a portion of this would be exempt from property taxes if owned by a not-for-profit or tax
exempt entity.

100 West College Avenue (north side) Hoffman/ThedaCare to The Building for Kids Children’s Museum/City Center

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 11



Development Area #6: This area includes Chase Bank, a parklet, and the 222 Building.

Chase Bank, located at 200 W. College Avenue, is a 45,000 sq. ft. building currently listed for sale. This
is a prime redevelopment opportunity with JP Morgan Chase Bank remaining as the ground floor tenant.
Located on College Avenue, the main street leading from the interstate into a vibrant Downtown, this site
is in close proximity to Lawrence University, City and County municipal buildings, and many other
attractions. The site encompasses half of a city block with access on three of the surrounding streets.
Potential uses could be office, residential, and hospitality. The Downtown Mobility Study, adopted by
Council in 2016, recommends converting Appleton Street from one-way southbound to two-way, creating
improved access and visibility to the property.

The parklet (small parcel currently decorated with lights, tables and chairs) is owned by Pfefferle
Management and located between two vibrant businesses. Use as a parklet is via a month-to-month lease
with the City of Appleton.

222 Building, located at 222 W. College Avenue, was originally constructed in 1952, and then an addition
on the west side was constructed in 1964. Pfefferle Group purchased the building in 2003. The current
vacancy rate is 25%. The owners may use TIF for renovating the vacant floors and/or a possible
restaurant on the first floor for an estimated cost of $2,000,000.

This blighted Development Area #6 could benefit from rehabilitation and conservation and/or incorporate
portions into a larger site for future redevelopment. Since this entire area is highly visible and an integral
part of the Downtown, this Development Area would benefit from increased commercial activity along
College Avenue and the other Development Areas. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and
potentially induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.

200 West College Avenue (north side) Chase Bank to 222 Building

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 12



Development Area #7: This area encompasses Gabriel Furniture and businesses in the 200 E. block of
College Avenue.

The Gabriel Furniture building has been on the corner of College Avenue and Morrison Street for over
100 years. Built in 1888 by the Konemic Lodge, International Order of the Odd Fellows, it became the
first home for several local organizations including The Knights of Pythius, Elks Lodge 337, Loyal Order
of the Moose, and Appleton Eagles. In 1928, Joseph Gabriel opened Gabriel Furniture at 201 E. College
Avenue. Over the next 60 years, the business flourished and grew. In the 1960’s, a metal covering was
put on the facade to make the property “look more modern”. In 1988, the current owners, Joe and Ruby
Wells, bought the business and in 1990, they purchased 201 and 207 E. College Avenue. In the early
1990’s, the Wells then purchased 209 and 211 E. College Avenue (former Shirley’s Children’s Shop)
combining all the sites with interior connections. Today, the four buildings are used as a retail furniture
store utilizing approximately 35,000 sq.ft. for showroom with additional basement space for storage.
There currently are no vacancies in this property. The owners have no specific plans at this time but
support efforts to make this blighted area more aesthetically pleasing through redevelopment,
rehabilitation, and/or conservation.

Additional buildings in this area were built from 1870 thru 1978. Development Area #7 is characterized
by small parcels with historic/older buildings and could be redeveloped individually. Rehabilitation of
the existing buildings and property would further enhance the entire area. Since this entire area is highly
visible and an integral part of the Downtown, this Development Area would benefit from increased
commercial activity along College Avenue and the other Development Areas. Redevelopment of this area
would further benefit, and potentially induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close
proximity to this area.

200 East College Avenue (south side) Lou’s Brews to Gabriel Furniture

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 13



Development Area #8: Includes the 300 block of E. College Avenue, North of Johnson Street, between
N. Durkee Street and N. Drew Street. In the recently updated Comprehensive Plan approved
unanimously by the Appleton Common Council on March 15, 2017, the 300 block of E. College Avenue
is conceptually identified as a site for new multi-family residential development over a mix of
commercial/office space which could serve the needs of existing property owners, including but not
limited to, Heid Music and Lawrence University. The goal would be to fill a housing demand, transition
to the small scale neighborhoods, and enhance the immediate surroundings with small commercial space
to pull foot traffic north of College Avenue.

Narrative taken from Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.

This blighted area deals with parking challenges, ingress and egress difficulties, deteriorating structures,
accessibility and obsolescence. This area is characterized by small parcels with historic/older buildings
and could be redeveloped individually or in groups. Rehabilitation of the existing buildings and property
would further enhance the entire area. Since this entire area is highly visible and an integral part of the
Downtown, this Development Area would benefit from increased commercial activity along College
Avenue and the other Development Areas. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and
potentially induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.

THE CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN SHOWS PARKING
BEHIND THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT JUST
NORTH OF JOHNSTON STREET, BETWEEN
N. DURKEE STREET AND N. DREW STREET

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 14



&)

PERSPECTIVE OF CONCEPTUAL REDEVELOPMENT OF 300 BLOCK OF E. COLLEGE AVENUE
VANTAGE POINT IS LOOKING SOUTHWEST TOWARD THE FOX RIVER FROM THE CORNER OF
N. DREW STREET AND E, WASHINGTON STREET.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 15



2

STATEMENT OF KIND, NUMBER AND LOCATION OF PROPOSED PUBLIC
WORKS AND IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS WITHIN THE DISTRICT OR THE 2
MILE BUFFER ZONE

The following is a list of proposed public works and improvement projects the City either directly, or

through other entities, may implement in conjunction with this District. Any costs directly or indirectly

related to the public works and improvements are considered “project costs™ and eligible to be paid with

tax increment revenues of the tax incremental district. The map exhibit in Section 14 Proposed

Improvements and Public Works Projects by Development Area illustrates the proposed public works and

improvement projects locations.

A. Municipal Infrastructure Improvements

Construction and/or reconstruction of the streets, bridges, pedestrian connections and
parking to facilitate development and rehabilitation projects within the District. Scope of
work may include right-of-way acquisition, land assembly, grading, gravel, curb and
gutter, asphalt, streetlights, traffic signals, walkways, concrete paving, lighting, signage,
and related appurtenances.

Construction and/or reconstruction of a sanitary sewer collection system to facilitate
development and rehabilitation projects within the District. The scope of work may
include sewer mains, manholes, laterals, force main, lift stations, and related
appurlcnances.

Construction and/or reconstruction of the water distribution system to facilitate
development and rehabilitation projects within the District. Projects may include water
mains, valves, hydrants, service connections, laterals and other related appurtenances.

Construction and/or reconstruction of storm water drainage facilities to support
development and rehabilitation projects within the District. Projects may include retention
or detention basins, biofilters, conveyance systems, storm sewer mains, manholes, inlets,
drains and related appurtenances.

Installation of electric and/or natural gas service or the relocation of existing services to
facilitate blight elimination and redevelopment or rehabilitation in the District and provide
better service. Acquisition of equipment to service the District.

Installation of telephone, fiber, and cable or the relocation of existing services to facilitate
blight elimination and redevelopment or rehabilitation in the District and provide better
service. Acquisition of equipment to service the District.

The costs associated with the design, implementation, purchase and maintenance of
streetscape amenities to improve the aesthetic appearance of this District, including but not
limited to, decorative lighting, banners and/or flags, public art, landscaping and/or
planters, benches and other pedestrian elements to encourage the viability of the businesses
in the district and attract high quality development.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 16



B. Administrative Costs: These include, but not limited to, a portion of the salaries of the City
employees, professional fees, and others directly involved in the projects for the District over the
implementation of the project plan. Audit expenses, state filing fees, and any expenses
associated with dissolving the District are also eligible costs.

C. Organizational Costs: These include, but are not limited to, publication and printing costs in
connection with this Project Plan as well as the fees for the financial consultants, attorney,
engineers, planners, surveyors, and other contracted services.

D. Professional Services: These include, but are not limited to, those costs incurred for
architectural, planning, engineering and legal advice and services.

E. Financing Costs: Interest, finance fees, bond discounts, redemption premiums, legal opinions,
credit ratings, capitalized interest, insurance and other expenses related to financing. This would
also include interest on advances made by the City of Appleton.

F. Land Assembly, Clearance, and Real Estate Acquisitions: In order to eliminate blight and
promote rehabilitation and redevelopment, it may be necessary to assist developers or for the
City to acquire and demolish blighted or underutilized properties within the District. These may
include but are not limited to, the cost of acquisitions, clearance/demolition, titles, easements,
appraisals, consultant fees, closing costs, surveying and mapping, and the lease and/or the sale of
property at or below market price to encourage or make feasible an economic development
project that is consistent with the intent of this District.

G. Relocation Costs: In the event any property is acquired for the projects, expenses including the
cost of the relocation plan, director, staff, publications, appraisals, land and property acquisition
costs and relocation benefits as required by Wisconsin Statutes Section 32 are considered eligible
project costs.

H. Development Incentives (Cash Grants and/or Loans): As a partner in the future
redevelopment and rehabilitation/conservation of this District, the City of Appleton may enter
into agreements with property owners, lessees, or developers for the purpose of sharing costs to
encourage the desired kind of improvements based on the purpose of this District and assure tax
base is generated sufficient to recover project costs. This assistance is regularly needed in
rehabilitation and redevelopment projects to offset the additional costs in re-use versus greenfield
development. Not every project will demand the same level of funding. These payments would
be negotiated on a project basis in order to attract new taxable property or rehabilitate existing
property in the District. No cash grants or loans will be provided until the Common Council
adopts a development agreement and a copy of such agreement will be retained in the City’s
official records for the TID.

I. Environmental Audits and Remediation: Costs related to all environmental assessments and
remediation will be considered eligible project costs.

J. Promotion and Development: Promotion and development of the District including
professional services or marketing, recruitment, realtor commissions and fees in lieu of
commissions, marketing services and materials, advertising costs, administrative costs and
support of development organizations.

K. Project Outside the Tax Increment District: Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section
66.1105(2)(f)1.n, the city may undertake projects within territory located within one-half (1/2)
mile of the boundary of the district provided that (1) the project is located within the City’s
corporate boundaries, and (2) the projects are approved by the Joint Review Board. The cost of
projects completed outside the District pursuant to this section are eligible Project Costs and may

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 17



include any project cost that would otherwise be eligible if undertaken within the District.
Specific Public Works projects at the time of the District creation in the %2 mile boundary area of
this District are not included at this time. Refer to Section 14 for a map of proposed
improvements and Public Works projects by development area.

L. Payments Made at the Discretion of the Common Council: These payments may include but
are not limited to payments which are found to be necessary or convenient to the creation of the
District or the implementation of the Project Plan that support the goals of the District as outlined
in Section 1.

The above-identified lists of proposed public works projects are the projected activities at this time
that may be required in the District. Future development and rehabilitation of this area as it begins to
occur may dictate additions or deletions from the above list. The City of Appleton reserves the right to

such additions or deletions to the project list to the full extent allowed by the law.

In the event any of the projects are not reimbursable out of the TIF fund under Wisconsin Statutes
Section 66.1105, in the written opinion of nationally recognized bond counsel or a court of record so rules
in a final order, then such project or projects shall be deleted herefrom and the remainder of the projects

hereunder shall be deemed the entirety of the projects for purposes of the project plan.

The City reserves the right to implement only those projects that remain economically viable as the

project period proceeds.

Project costs as outlined in this Project Plan include any eligible expenditure made or estimated to be
made or monetary obligations incurred or estimated to be incurred by the City or by the Developer.
Project costs incurred by developer must be in accordance with a development agreement as approved by
the Common Council. Any income, special assessments, or other revenues, including user fees or
charges, will diminish project costs. To the extent the project costs benefit the municipality outside the
District, a proportionate share of the cost is not a project cost. Specific Public Works projects identified
at the time of the District creation in the Y2 mile boundary area of this District are not included in this
Project Plan. Costs identified in this plan are preliminary estimates made prior to design considerations
and are subject to change after planning is completed. Prorations of costs in this plan are also estimates

and subject to change based upon implementation, future assessment policies, and user fee adjustments.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 18



3

QUALIFICATION BASED ON CITY VALUATION

The following calculations demonstrate the City is in compliance with Wisconsin Statute Section
66.1105(4)(gm)4.c, which requires the equalized value of the taxable property in the proposed District,
plus the value increment of all existing Tax Increment Districts, does not exceed 12% of the total

equalized value of taxable property within the City.

STEP 1: Calculation of Maximum Equalized Property Value Allowed within Tax Increment
Districts in the City of Appleton

(a5 E;‘l,l]l:::zz?'yvf I;:;I 6) Maximum Allowable TIF Property Value
$4,938,725,300 x12% = $592,647,036

STEP 2: Calculation of Equalized Property Value Currently Located and Proposed to be Located
within Tax Increment Districts

Tax Incremental Districts Equalized Value

TIF District #3 Increment . 41,515,600
TIF District #6 Increment 92,707,700
TIF District #7 Increment 17,197,100
TIF District #8 Increment 13,802,500
TIF District #9 Increment 1,763,000
TIF District #10 Increment 1,548,000
Proposed Base of TIF District #11 Creation* 78,547,500
Proposed Base of TIF District #12 Creation* 21,717,000
Total Existing Increment Plus Proposed Bases $ 268,798,400

*Note: 2017 Base Values are final Assessed Values. The final equalized value ratio will be determined in August. The
estimated ratio is 95%. 2017 TID I2 base includes two state assessed personal property full values.

The equalized value of the increment of existing Tax Incremental Districts within the City, plus the
base value of the proposed District, totals $268,798,400. This value equals 5.44% of the City total
equalized value and is substantially less than the maximum of $592,647,036 in equalized value permitted
for the City of Appleton. The City is, therefore, in compliance with the statutory equalized valuation test

and may proceed with creation of this district.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 19



4

Li1ST OF PROJECT COSTS

All costs are based on 2017 prices and are preliminary estimates that are based on best information
available. The plan is not meant to be a budget nor an appropriation of funds for specific projects, but a
framework within which to manage projects understanding the District can be in effect for a twenty-seven
year period allowed by Wisconsin Statute. The City of Appleton reserves the right to increase these costs
to reflect inflationary increases and other uncontrollable circumstances between 2017 and the time of
construction. The City retains the right to delete projects or change the scope and/or timing of projects

implemented as the Common Council individually authorizes them, without amending the Plan.

Project/Activity Total Cost Estimated Timing
e Municipal Infrastructure Improvements $3,234.600 2018-2023
e  Municipal Infrastructure within the %2 Mile None included at this
Boundary time
e Development Incentives & Property Grants $14,847,560 2018-2034
e Other Costs - Administrative, Professional,
Environmental, and Promotion Services Costs. -
Filling fees and fees charged by State. Audit $l24 100 A3
Costs.
e Financing Costs*
o General Fund Advance Interest Expense rQ 9 5
$359.374 $1,528,283 2017-2035
o General Obligation $1,168,909
TOTAL: $ 19,735,193 2017-2044

*NOTE: The financing costs do not include potential interest reimbursement to the developers
but an allowance is included in the financial forecast (chart 5) in the line Development contractual
payments. The financing costs associated with the proposed project costs for this District are incorporated
into the financing schedules for the District. See Section 7: Description of the Methods of Financing
and the Time When Such Costs or Monetary Obligations are to be Incurred for financing details for the

District.

City of Appleton TIF District #1 1 Project Plan 20



<

Li1ST OF NON-PROJECT COSTS

There are no anticipated “non-project costs™ associated with this Plan.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan




6

EcoNOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY

The charts and tables on the following pages show the City of Appleton will be able to obtain the
necessary funds to implement the proposed projects and revenue from the District will be sufficient to pay
for them. Chart 1 presents the City’s equalized value and Chart 2 provides the full faith and credit
borrowing capacity of the City. Equalized valuation projections were made using two methods as detailed
in Chart 1. The straight-line method was chosen for purposes of this analysis to be conservative. Chart 2
projects the general obligation borrowing capacity of the City taking into account the existing debt of the
City, the five-year Capital Improvement Plan, and assuming a 1% increase per year beyond the five-year

plan. As shown, the debt balance projected is well below the net borrowing capacity.

Chart 3 projects revenues sufficient to finance all of the projects of the District and Chart 4 presents the
allocation of increment by taxing entity assuming similar weighted average components as the 2017 rate.
The pro forma is based on the following assumptions:

e The base value of the District is $78,547,500.

e The tax rate is projected at $24.2833 for 2017 and remaining at this amount for the life of the
District.

e Valuations are projected to increase only .5% per year due to inflation.

e The base value of the District is estimated to increase $73,712,800 in new construction value
based on the following schedule:

Year Project Increment Added

2017 Base Value Real Estate & Personal
Property
January 1, 2018
January 1, 2019
January 1, 2020
lanuary 1, 2021
January 1, 2022
January 1, 2023

Total Increment
(net of base value): | S 73,712,800

$78,547,500

73,712,800

L |0 [0 [ (A0 A0

2
2

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan



CITY OF APPLETON
EQUALIZED VALUATION PROJECTION
YEAR VALUATION CHANGE
2011 4,797,103,500
2012 4,651,408,600 (145,694,900)
2013 4,622,312,200 (29,096,400)
2014 4,696,660,500 74,348,300
2015 4,816,754,800 120,094,300
2016 4,938,725,300 121,970,500
—_SISL621.800
Straight Line Method $28,324.360
(Total change divided by 5)
Percentage Method 0.59%
(Total percentage change from 2011
to 2016 divided by 5)
Projected Valuations
Straight TIF Project Plan
Line Percentage Increment Only
2016 4,938,725,300 4,938,725,300 4,938,725,300
2017 4,967,049,660 4,967,863,779 4,938,725,300
2018 4,995,374,020 4,997,174,175 4,938,725,300
2019 5,023,698,380 5,026,657,503 5,012,438,100
2020 5,052,022,740 5,056,314,782 5,012,438,100
2021 5,080,347,100 5,086,147,039 5,012,438,100
2022 5,108,671,460 5,116,155,307 5,012,438,100
2023 5,136,995,820 5,146,340,623 5,012,438,100
2024 5,165,320,180 5,176,704,033 5,012,438,100
2025 5,193,644,540 5.207,246,587 5.012,438,100
2026 5,221,968,900 5,237,969,342 5,012,438,100
2027 5,250,293,260 5,268,873,361 5,012,438,100
2028 5,278,617,620 $,299,959,714 5,012,438,100
2029 5,306,941,980 5,331,229,476 5.012,438,100
2030 5,335,266,340 5,362,683,730 5.012,438,100
2031 5,363,590,700 5.394,323,564 5,012,438,100
2032 5,391,915,060 5,426,150,073 5,012,438,100
2033 5,420,239,420 5,458,164,358 5,012,438,100
2034 5.448,563,780 5.490,367.528 5,012,438,100
2035 5.476,888,140 5,522,760,696 5.012,438,100
2036 5,505,212,500 5,555,344,984 5,012,438,100
2037 5,533,536,860 5,588,121,519 5,012,438,100
2038 5,561,861,220 5.621,091,436 5.012,438,100
2039 5.590,185,580 5,654,255,875 5,012,438,100
2040 5.618,509,940 5,687,615,985 5.012,438,100
2041 5,646,834,300 5,721,172,919 5,012,438,100
2042 5,675,158,660 5,754,927.839 5,012,438,100
2043 5,703,483,020 5,788,881,913 5.012,438,100
2044 5,731,807,380 5,823,036,316 5,012,438,100
City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 23

Chart 1




Chart2

o , CITY OF APPLETON B B -
GENERAL OBLIGATION BORROW]NG CAPACITY )
Net G.O.
Budget Equalrzcd ~ Gross Debt ~ Debt Borrowng
Year Value Limit Balance Capacity
2016 4,938,725,300 246,936,265 45,374,327 201,561,938 0.1837
2017 4,938,725,300 246,936,265 53,366,582 193,569,683 0.2161
2018 4 938725 300 246,936,265 64,850,375 182,085,890 0.2626
2019~ 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 - 97,694,521 152,927,384 0.3898
2020 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 109 333,929 141,287,976 0.4363
2021 5,012,438,100 . 250,621,905 111,859,231 138,762,674 0.4463
2022 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 112,978,000 137,643,905 0.4508
2023 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 114,108,000 136,513,905 0.4553
2024 5,012,438,100 250 621,905 115,249,000 135,372,905 0.4599 .
2025 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 116,401,000 ' 134,220,905 04644
B 2026 5,012, 438 100 250,621,905 117,565,000 - 133,056,905  0.4691
7 2027 5, 012 438,100 250,621,905 118,741,000 131,880,905 0.4738
2028 = 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 . 119,928,000 130,693,905 0.4785
2029 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 121,127,000 129,494,905 0.4833
B 2030 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 122,338,000 128,283,905 0.4881
2031 5,012,438,100 = 250,621 905 123,561,000 ; 127,060,905 0.4930
2032 ‘ 5 012 438 100 250,621,905 124,797,000 - 125,824,905 0.4979
2033 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 126,045,000 124,576,905 05029
2034 5,012,438,100 . 250,621,905 127,305,000 123 3 16 905 0.5080
2035 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 128,578,000 = 122,043,905 0.5130
2036 3,012,438,100 250,621,905 129,864,000 120, 757 905 0.5182
2037 - 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 131,163,000 119 458 905 0.5234
) 2038 5012_438 100 250,¢ 621, 905_;“7“ 132,475,000 . 118,146, 905 0.5286
2039 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 133,800,000 . 116,821,905 0.5339
- 2040 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 135,138,000 115,483,905 0.5392
2041 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 136,489,000 114,132,905 0.5446 .
2042 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 137,854,000 . 112,767,905 0.5500 |
12043 5,012,438,100 250,621,905 139,233,000 111,388,905  0.5556
12044 5 01%_4_38 100 250,621,905 140,625,000 109,996,905 0.5611
City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 24




CITY OF APPLETON

Tax Incremental District # 11 Chart 3
Revenue Forecast
|Base Value 78.547.500 __Inflation Fastor 0.50%|
Construction Valuation Rewenue Inflation Value Valuatlon Land Tux District
Year Year year Increment Added Increment Sales Rate Revenue
2016 2017 2018 0 0 0 0 23.3889 0
I 2017 2018 2019 392,738 0 392,738 0 23.3889 9,186
2 2018 2019 2020 394,701 73,712,800 74,500,239 0 23.3889 1,742,479
3 2019 2020 2021 765,239 0 75,265,478 0  23.3889 1,760,377
4 2020 2021 2022 769,065 0 76,034,543 0  23.3889 1,778,364
5 2021 2022 2023 772910 0 76,807,453 0 23.3889 1,796,442
6 2022 2023 2024 776,775 0 77,584,228 0 23.3889 1,814,610
7 2023 2024 2025 780,659 0 78,364,887 0 23.3889 1,832,869
8 2024 2025 2026 784,562 0 79,149,449 0 23.3889 1,851,219
9 2025 2026 2027 788,485 0 79,937,934 0 23.3889 1,869,660
10 2026 2027 2028 792,427 0 80,730,361 0 233889 1,888,194
11 2027 2028 2029 796,389 0 81,526,750 0 233889 1,906,821
12 2028 2029 2030 800,371 0 82,327,121 0 23.3889 1,925,541
13 2029 2030 2031 804,373 0 83,131,494 0 23.3889 1,944,354
14 2030 2031 2032 808,395 0 83,939,889 0 23.3889 1,963,262
15 2031 2032 2033 812,437 0 84,752,326 0 23.3889 1,982,264
16 2032 2033 2034 816,499 0 85,568,825 0 233889 2,001,361
17 2033 2034 2035 820,582 0 86,389,407 0 233889 2,020,553
18 2034 2035 2036 824,685 0 87,214,092 0 23.3889 2,039,842
19 2035 2036 2037 828,808 0 88,042,900 0 233889 2,059,227
20 2036 2037 2038 832,952 0 88,875,852 0  23.3889 2,078,708
21 2037 2038 2039 837,117 0 89,712,969 0  23.3889 2,008,288
22 2038 2039 2040 841,302 0 90,554,271 0 23.3889 2,117,965
23 2039 2040 2041 845,509 0 91,399,780 0 23.3889 2,137,740
24 2040 2041 2042 849,736 0 92,249,516 0  23.3889 2,157,615
25 2041 2042 2043 853,985 0 93,103,501 0 23.3889 2,177,588
26 2042 2043 2044 858,255 0 93,961,756 0 23.3889 2,197,662
27 2043 2044 2045 862,546 0 0 0 23.3889 0
{Totats 73712800 0 49,152,191 |
[Present Value a1 5.00% 24.538.607 |
City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 25




Chart 4

CITY OF APPLETON
Tax Incremental District # 11
Taxing Entity Breakdown
Total
Appleton Outagamie Tax

Year City Schools FVTC County Increment
2016 0 0 0 0 0
2017 0 0 0 0 0
2018 0 0 0 0 0
2019 3,354 3,560 438 1,834 9,186
2020 636,284 675,280 83,064 347,851 1,742,479
2021 642,819 682,217 83,917 351,424 1,760,377
2022 649,387 689,187 84,775 355,015 1,778,364
2023 655,989 696,193 85,636 358,624 1,796,442
2024 662,623 703,234 86,502 362,251 1,814,610
2025 669,290 710,310 87,373 365,896 1,832,869
2026 675,991 717,421 88,248 369,559 1,851,219
2027 682,725 724,568 89,127 373,240 1,869,660
2028 689,493 731,751 90,010 376,940 1,888,194
2029 696,295 738,969 90,898 380,659 1,906,821
2030 703,131 746,223 91,791 384,396 1,925,541
2031 710,000 753,516 92,687 388,151 1,944,354
2032 716,905 760,842 93,589 391,926 1,963,262
2033 723,844 768,206 94,495 395,719 1,982,264
2034 730,817 775,607 95,405 399,532 2,001,361
2035 737,825 783,045 96,320 403,363 2,020,553
2036 744,869 790,520 97,239 407,214 2,039,842
2037 751,947 798,034 98,163 411,083 2,059,227
2038 759,061 805,583 99,092 414,972 2,078,708
2039 766,211 | 813,171 100,025 418,881 2,098,288
2040 773,396 820,797 100,963 422,809 2,117,965
2041 780,617 828,460 101,906 426,757 2,137,740
2042 787.875 836,161 102,854 430,725 2,157,615
2043 795,168 843,902 103,806 434,712 2,177,588
2044 802,498 851,682 104,763 438,719 2,197,662

49,152,191

City of Appleton TIF District #1 1 Project Plan




DESCRIPTION OF THE METHODS OF FINANCING AND THE TIME WHEN

SucH CoSTS OR MONETARY OBLIGATIONS ARE TO BE INCURRED

The City of Appleton expects to finance City project costs primarily from the sale of general
obligation notes issued under Wisconsin Statutes 67.12(12). City borrowing will be phased to coincide
with need and refinancing schedule as necessary to properly manage the District’s affairs. It is anticipated
the Developer will attain their own financing; however the City will make developer incentive payments
up to 90% of the increment generated to a maximum value agreed upon. The contracted payments will
include an allowable interest reimbursement up to 200 basis points above the all-inclusive interest cost on
Appleton’s general obligation notes. Chart 5 on the subsequent pages presents the detailed financial
forecast for the District. Another option for financing is the use of developer-funded or “pay as you go”
financing which minimizes the risk of non-performance of the TID to the City, while still assisting
development that would not occur without assistance of a tax increment district. The type and method of
financing each project in this District shall be made on a project by project basis to support the success of

the District.

Plan Implementation:

Projects identified will provide the necessary anticipated governmental services to the area. A
reasonable and orderly sequence is outlined in this Plan. However, it is anticipated the improvements will
be made over a twenty-two year period based on the statutory guidelines for the tax increment district.
Public debt and expenditures should be made at the point private development occurs to assure increment

is sufficient to cover expenses.

The order in which public improvements are made should be adjusted in accordance with
development and execution of development agreements. The City of Appleton reserves the right to alter

the implementation of this Plan to accomplish this objective.

If financing as outlined in this Plan proves unworkable, the City reserves the right to use alternate

financing solutions for the projects as they are implemented.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 27



CITY OF APPLETON

- s - _ Tax Incremental District #11 ; C
B - ___Financtal Forecast - B ) ; .
_ __ ; o . . ., Cuans_
T 070 ams a9 aow T aom | aop2 0 Tapew U ap24 2005
- 0 00 oa86 | 1742479 | 1760377 1718364 | 1796442 |
] U 1 us i ,
0] 1030600 500,000 o i
,,,,, 1000 28.000 57.000 0
10007 | 1.058.601 566187 2865763 1761122 1.780.670 2380828 | _ 1821340 | 1.841.203
; » ! ' “q
Devebpmen comacus! payms ol 00 0. 1SSNL6SS. | 159413 1367210 | 1.575047] 1582922 | 1590836
Property Improvement Grants 0. 21000 2000 21000 21000 0 0 (1]
Adminstrative - Fing focs/Audit 1,000 ; 70 1150 1900 | 1900 [ 2000] 2000 . 2100
Professional, Environertal & Promotion 0; 5.000 . s000 | s00  se00 | 5000 | 5000 | 5000
ComstructionCosts 0 500,000 © L123.000 0 0 : 581,000 i o
2018 G.0. Note lnterest S0 386481 30918 30918 30918 _ 30918 | i
2018G.0. Nowe Pripa) ol 0 R O O 2 S 1 I8
2019 G.0. Not lmrerest 0 0o 18750 15000 15000 | i5000 1
2019 G.O. Note Pricipal 0. 0 [ B o o . 0
2020 G.0. Notz buerest o 0 0 56,150 a9 | w90,
| o 0. 0o o o ! 0] !
2023 G.0. Note Interest o 0 0 0 o o . 0
2023 G.O. Note Principal 0. e e e 0 0 i 0,
‘General Fund Advance Interest a1 3% 38" W00 20 4482 4706 44l 58l T
Abowance for Inecrest Exp 25) (700) Q91 4.482) (4.706) 4.911) (5.188)] (5.448) (5.720)
* Total Exponscs , | LO00; 1058250, | S66398 | 2752073 L6B93BI, 1685940 | 2253885 | |.7n,7.o7,,3,,,; 1717824
. T : | {
Escess of Rovenwsover el o e . S S T
Expendinzes o ECT @ maew | maan | sara U T Tiesl! T 0a2ie . 1233m
. |
Begming FadBabee 0O o s 190 3830 185570 | 280292¢ | 407235 . SILSIL
‘Ending Fund Baknce o : ol a1 4o 113830 185570 280292 | aora3s| | susii 634800

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 28



~ CITY OF APPLETON

. Tax Incremental District #11

: , Financial Forecast e
. ; o L Chart5

T 2026 2027 2028 2029 2030 2031 2032 2033 2034
1851219 1,369,660 . 1,888,194 1906821 1925541 1944354 1963262 1982264 2,001,361 .
10,174 12,206 8.982 283 460 2 2951 3079 281
0 . 0 0 o o L | D 2 S
0 0 0 300,000 850,000 (300,000) 0 0. (530,000
1,861,393 1,881,866 1,897,176 2207,108 2,776,001 1,644,726 1966213 1985343 1,471,642
1,598791 1,606,785 1,614,818 1,622,893 1,631,007 1,639,162 1,647,358 1655595 1,426,863
0 0. o 90 0 0 0 0: 0.
2,100 2250 8.250 2,350 2,350 2,450 2,450 2,600 2,600
I o 0 o 0 0 0 0 0
o 0 00 0 o0 0 0_. 0
30918 | 30918 15459 0 0 0 o . o 0
0 0. ' 1030600 o L o, 6 0 0
15000 15000 15,000 7500 0 0 0 0 0
oo 0 500000 0. o o o0 0
4920 aa920 44920 44920 22460 0 0 0 0
0 0 0 0 1L,123000 0 o 0 0
29050, | 29,050 29050 20050 29050 29050 29,050 . 14,525, 0
.0 0o 0. L0 0. 0 0 s8l000. O
6006 6306 6622 14453 43925 59872 55365  SB134 47,79
(6,006) (6.306) (6.622) (14,453) {43.925) (59.872) (55,365) (58,134) (47,790)

1720779 . 1,728923 2758097 2206713  2807.867 1670662 1678858 | 2253720  1429.463

140614 152943 . (860921) 391 (31866)  (25936) 287355 (268377)  42,179!

634800 715504 928448 61526 61918 36052 10116 297471 29094

C 775504 928448 - 67526 67918 36052 10116 297470 29094 71,274

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 29



CITY OF APPLETON

........ e e _CITY OF APPLEYO S R, . -

Financia) Forecast
Can s

2035 2036 2037 2038 209 040 2041 2042 2043 2004 Toums

—_ : —oms

2020553 | 2039842 2059227 2078708 2098288 2117965 2137240 217615 2477588 2197662 49152191

12,606 15384 86318 191460 254028 317094 380750 445,085 510,051 . 575657 2879018

0 0 Y 0 0 0 0 o 0 0 3234600

{406.000) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0. 0 0

UU1607059 2085226 2145545 2270168 . 2352317 2435059 2518490 . 2602700  2687.630 . _ 2773319 55265809

0 0 23870354
0 0 105,000
3,150 . 9,150 84750
40.000°
3,234,600
301450
1,030,600
146,250
500,000
431970
T L123.000
581,000
359374
0

L

-
oo
(-]

Soco

»
w2
»n
]
8
g
E]

|
I

’

b

cocooocojcococoe

t
i

B

'

'

26280
332.594

|

clococococloojcocsedos
cococoocooccocoadoe

clociocolocjoocieoe
cloocococooco0ee
cocooclosovoos

cooooocecocoe

Ta2950 8950 3,050 3,050 9150 32097587

g‘
:

362074 2700

5

L L26SO8S 2082506 2042745 | 2267363 | 2349367 2426100 2SIS440 2599650 2684489 2764169 23,6822

70274 1336359 _ 3418885 5561630 | 7828998 _ 10178365 12604474 15119914 17719564 _ 20404053 | 0

1336359 3418885 5.561.630  7.828.998  10.178.365  12.604474  15.119914  17.719.564 20404053 .  23.168.222  23.168222

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 30



PROPOSED CHANGES IN ZONING ORDINANCES, MASTER PLAN, BUILDING

CODES, MAPS AND CITY ORDINANCES

There are no changes to building codes or other City ordinances proposed for the implementation
of this Project Plan. The City anticipates a portion of the District may require rezoning prior to

development that will be consistent with the purpose of the District.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 31



9

ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY OF APPLETON

The District contributes to the orderly development of the City by providing for the elimination of
blighting influences and the redevelopment of these underutilized properties along this major corridor and
providing for continued growth in residential, office, and retail development. By improving and
maintaining an attractive area for private investment along the corridor, the City will ensure a healthy tax
base, job growth/creation and a more vibrant economy.

The Project Plan is complimentary to the adopted City of Appleton’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-
2030 (Comprehensive Plan), specifically Chapter 14 Downtown Plan that identifies this corridor of west
College Avenue for reinvestment, rehabilitation and redevelopment. The City’s recommendations for this
corridor and surrounding downtown sites include the following key strategies as adopted on March 15,
2017 in the updated Comprehensive Plan. These key strategies, and the detailed policies to support these
efforts, can be found in the Comprehensive Plan — Chapter 14 Downtown Plan Initiatives Section from

pages 335 to 362:

dd Continue development of entry features on major routes into the downtown
1.3 Implement appropriate streetscaping projects throughout the downtown

1.5  Continue to encourage quality urban design throughout the downtown through voluntary
measures

2.2 Pursue opportunities to attract more artists and arts-related businesses to the downtown

3.1 Encourage mixed-use and mid-density residential redevelopment on under-utilized or
marginal sites on the edge of downtown

3.3 Promote development of neighborhood serving businesses and amenities to meet the basic
shopping and service needs of downtown and nearby residents

3.10  Promote well-designed transitional areas between higher density development downtown
and lower density development in adjacent, largely single family neighborhoods

4.1  Sustain and grow the retail niches which have formed downtown

4.2 Identify and aggressively recruit target industries

4.3 Protect the existing retail blocks on College Avenue

4.5  Facilitate and pursue entrepreneurial business development in the downtown

4.6 Create opportunities for smaller offices and business services to locate downtown,
including north of College Avenue

4.7  Maintain an environment favorable to larger employers in the downtown
4.8  Support private sector efforts to redevelop and invest in downtown

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 32



10

ESTIMATE OF PROPERTY TO BE DEVOTED TO RETAIL USE

Pursuant to Section 66.1105(5)(b) of the Wisconsin State Statutes, the City estimates that
approximately 10% of the real property within the District will be devoted to retail business at the end of

the District’s maximum expenditure period.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 33



11

PROPOSED RELOCATION PLAN FOR DISPLACED PERSONS OR BUSINESSES

It is not anticipated at the time of the creation of the District there will be a need to relocate
persons or businesses in conjunction with this Plan. In the event relocation becomes necessary at some
time during the implementation period, the City will take the following steps and actions as required by

Wisconsin Statutes Section 32:

A. Before negotiations begin for the acquisition of property or easements, all property owners
will be provided with an informational pamphlet “The Rights of Landowners” prepared by
the Wisconsin Department of Administration, and if any person is to be displaced as a result
of the acquisition, they will be given a pamphlet on “Relocation Rights” prepared by the

Wisconsin Department of Administration.

B. The City will provide each owner a full narrative appraisal, a map showing the owners of all
property affected by the proposed project, and a list of all or at least ten neighboring

landowners to whom offers are being made.

C. The City will file a relocation plan with the Wisconsin Department of Administration and will

keep all records as required in Wisconsin Statutes Section 32.

City of Appleton TIF District #1 1 Project Plan 34



12

MAP OF TIF DiSTRICT #11 BOUNDARIES AND TIF DISTRICT #11
BOUNDARIES WITH HALF MILE BUFFER ZONE

City of Appleton

LB
Tax Incremental Financing District #11 i : _;J'
InF 1 T & %

[ TIF #11 Parcels

I'-I-l'll: !2 H

ELMST

City of Appleton TIF District #1 1 Project Plan 35



City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 36



13

MAP OF EXISTING USES AND CONDITIONS

//_

_— =" FaxRiver

City of Appleton
Tax Increment Financing District #11
Existing Uses and Conditions

#11 Beunaary Zoaing
{Jespraea parces [l Cenval Bushess Distict
=

b

Family
Bl Punicmastatonal

[_] sngle Famiy Resicendal

[] Muti-Famey Resdential

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 37



MAP OF PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS AND PUBLIC WORKS PROJECTS BY

DEVELOPMENT AREA

Note: The above map highlights the key development areas targeted for redevelopment
and rehabilitation/conservation uses within this District. The narrative in Section |
of the Project Plan is incorporated into this Section by reference and provides
additional details on proposed uses. Due to the volume of information being

displayed on this map, the summary in Section 1 is intended to support this exhibit.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 38



15

PARCEL LIST & LEGAL DESCRIPTION

The boundaries for the District include only whole parcels or non-taxable property and the District
is contiguous. The following pages include a detailed list of parcels included in the District and the legal

description.

Vacant Land:

Pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute s 66.1105(4)(gm)(1), property standing vacant for an entire 7-
year period immediately preceding adoption of the resolution creating a tax incremental district may not
comprise more than 25% of the area in the tax incremental district. Vacant property includes property
where the fair market value or replacement cost value of structural improvements on the parcel is less
than the fair market value of the land. Vacant property does not include property that is contaminated by

environmental pollution, as defined in s. 661106 (1) (d). This District does not include 25% or more

vacant land.

Annexed Land:

Pursuant to Wisconsin State Statute s 66.1105(4)(gm)(1), the District may not include any
annexed territory that was not within the boundaries of the City on January 1, 2004, unless at least 3-years
have elapsed since the territory was annexed by the City, unless the City enters into a cooperative plan
boundaries agreement with the town from which the territory was annexed, or unless the City and town
enter into another kind of agreement relating to the annexation expect that notwithstanding these
conditions, the City may include territory that was not within the boundaries of the City on January 1,
2004 if the City pledges to pay the town an amount equal to the property taxes levied on the territory by
the town at the time of the annexation for each of the next 5 years. The District does not include

property annexed into the City of Appleton since January 1, 2004.

City of Appleton TIF District #11 Project Plan 39



VotTRaa
Gtstee
Aresial  Susinan with Parron Parvone) Tatsl Land Panonsi Owr [ncia| nilg
TANREY Ownat Name Propwty Addrers |Zonlng| Acres Propety Propenty Lnd Valee mprovs Value Propety Amj] alm
1-3.0119.00 D APPLETCN 303 WLAWRING 5T M 534 50 50 50 50 X
31-2-0096 00 ETON HOLDINGS LUC I WCONLLGE AVE  [CSD (251 [ATLAS CROVP 1$9.800 $1,743.500 30659900 J$12.403.500 _]$12A411.300 0
11.2-0033-00 ETON HOLDKGS LLC 133 WCOULIGL AVE [CBD RADISSON PAPER VALLL _ }31.441.500 33441500 a
31-2-0098-00 HOLDIRGSUC 333 WCOULSt Ave (O30 THE CORNER SHEPPE 1$1.900 31.900 X
31.2.004300 Of APPLETON [WEAWREIATE 57 63 ] =
12079300 i LAWEENCE STREET LU [$ ONE00A ST {¥7] 30 1$0 50 50 [
1.1-0184.00 & LAWEENCE STREST UUE 111§ CMBALL ST D 1101 [$30A600 $335.800 3.000 [3635.000 "
313004400 209 8 Auidm ST %3 (140 58,400 $7.200 ]
1N _ _ 1 _ _ _
1
31.2-0164 00 120 MCRRISON LLC 320 8 MORIISCN ST [Pt 013 93¢0 39,500 $119, 11! 2
43-2-0870 80 20 MORRISON LUC 219 K KIMRALL ST (3 10.13 510,380 $10S.500 116,100 $126,100 )
33.2-0373 L0 30 MORRISON LLC 330 $ DAK ST RIB__ ju3a 1, 5133.100 163, 63,500 X
31:2-0173 L0 \W/IN CARR 239 $ OURKEE ST Kig _ Jain 200 $138.100 [$159, 5168400 X
1).2.016080 PROPERTILS CF THE FOX CITULS UC 233 EIAWRINCE ST (RS 0.6 0,500 $105.700 $126.500 $228,600 F]
13.2-0169-00 OAY 209 €& KLBALL ST Ris Ja3z 7500 $217.000 $144,900 $:44.600 X
33.2-0373.00 TTHEW GRANATELLA 218 S URKEE ST xis _Ja20 3300 $108.300 [$132.000 832,000 1
13.3-0167.00 IDUSIXG PARTNERSHIP OF TKE ¢0X QTS 1228 $ MOKIISON ST [R3 038 50 50 30 x
1)-2-0168 00 ARY TROSEA £7 AL 303 § MORRIRON §T IR 3.2D 8, 77, 5 x
11.3-0153 .00 Of APPLETON 1§ LAWRANCE $T (30 425 3 50 sa 50 X
12018300 OF $0X TITHS IC 323 $ OAK §T R} 287 2300 373,700 [Sa5.000 $88.000 a
33018300 OF §OX OITHES IxC. 211 3 OAR 3T 3 0.07 (12300 TLTR '$83.000 [S83.000 r
13:2-0124 00 OF §CX QTS WC S CAK $T R} 017 812,500 150 A
11-2.0168 00 C¥ TWE FOX OTES T 234 € EMRALL 3T X3 203 50 30 50 ] a
13.2.-0161 00 OF TWE $OX OTIES INC 1331 § CAS ST 3] 0.19 [$16.000 [S117.300 143,300 S<AL 300 2
M-2-0159-50 NG RLYS CPRESTIAN ASSOC INC 34 LUAWRINGE ST 1) 331 318700 500,300 $119.000 $219.000 |2
e T = = " 0 " I G Gl B
1 1
31-2.0032 80 OF ATPLETON 330 § ONEIDA ST 80 JL26 $0 159,100 59,100 $39.100 3 %
__ i 2. - o B - T ] -
31.2.007000 _ [SAFFORD BURDING ILC 1201 W COULECE AVE _[CBD J01$  FACCELIARNING X0 313,100 [$1,789.000 922,100 12800 4 A
31.2.007000  1SASFORD BURDING ML 1101 W COULECE AVE  [CBD A2 DN MC %100 7, 4 F
312007000 SAFFORD BURLDING LIC 101 W COUEGE AVE R0 BAULK & FARRIS LUIC 4300 3,100 4 2
31.2-0070-00  [SAFFORD BLULDINI 101 W COLLEGE AVE _ [<BD COLWELL RONALD K AT L1700 , %0 4 F
3120070 0 SULDING LG 101 W COLLEGE AVE O8O EMPOWER YOGA LIC 300 4 ]
31,2807 00 FORD BLUADING LLC 101 W COLLEGE AVE _|GBD ETHOSUC $1.300 31,500 4 x
31.2.002000 FORD BUILDING LLC 301 W COLLEGR AVE _1CO0 FOX RIVER CAPITAL 1,900 X
332007000 FORD SURDMG 1LC 103 W COMLCE AVE  [TBD [HRANK W LACKY A$30C [$1.000 a
13.2.0070 00 DBULDNG ILC 301 W COURCE AVE XD [GEARY, TRMOTHY @ ATT 13390 $2.900 A .
1.2 00 BURDING LIC 101 W CCIEGE AVE _|(BD PSS SPA A X
13-2-0070 00 SUNDIES 1L 301 W COWLEGE AVE B8O KLU, SUSAN € LPC 4 »
31.2-0070-00 BURDIG AL 101 W COLICE AVE _ |GSD EDM WEALTH ADVISORS 500 1519300 A »
33.2-007000 BURLDSNG £LC 101 W COULGE AVt |CBD L CRAXD RAYKALVLEIY L 82500 [l
31.2.007000 BULDIG RIC 131 W COMLGE AVE_ ICED BARKELPICY LAW OFC 15300 3300 3
+3.007000 SUROIES ELC 101 W EONIGE AVE ICED UFE DISKGRS Th RAPE 300 9500 2
33 .2.0070.00 SUADING LAC 101 W COUSCE AVE [CID XVPROSES IRSTIIUTE O $ 200 8300 r]
31.3.097900 JURDING LAC 101 W COUIGE AVE  [CXD MUSSEY. EREANAN PTL [$500 15500 F]
31-2-0070-00 JUADING LLC 103 W CULLIGE AVE_ JTID MARTIV. C § CIBUPRA [$14.100 00 2
31-2.0070.00 FORD SURDING (LC 103 WCOLMGE AVt [CaD NSDWIST MEDIUM LoD 300 $1.500 x
31.2-0070-00 SURDNG LLE 131 W COUIGEAVL  [CBD NEW POSSEAMTIES N 1200 81,200 X
312007000 D JUNDING LLC 101 W COLLEGE AVL_[C2D DFTEMAL DIGITAL MARE 50,060 X
31-2.0070-00 [SAFFORD JURDRNG LIC 101 W COULGE AVE_[C3D PEOACTIE CONSULTING 00 $100 x
31-2-070L0 $CR0 BUNDING LEE 101 W COLIGE AVl [CED PEYOROLOGH QmiGue 300 $1,300 4 x
31.2.002000 _ [SAFFORD SUHORGLLC 101 WCOULGE AVt JCED ROGERI VIOLIN SHOP L 10 700 4 X
31.3-C07000  JSAFFCRD SUNDIIG LLC 103 W COULGE AVE _[CRD SKEAR CHADS SALCN & 33,100 512,100 4 ]
31.3.007000  [SAFFORD BUNDINGLLC 103 W COLSGE AVvE  [CBD STALLEST AND ASSOUA 200 5200 A 2
31.3.007000 _ [SASFORD BUNDEIG £AC 101 W COULGE AV [CED S FICRILE 3,200 $3,700 x
31.20070-00 _ [SAFFORD SUNDRG QLL 201 W COLLEGE AVL _[CsD WHITE RAVEN AUDSD X
31-2002000 _ ISAFFORD JURDENG LAC 303 W COULGCE AVL_[CBD WILLKESS COUNSEUING %
31.2-0070.00 ORD SUADEG UL 30 W COuLGE Ave [CID WAARA DVVESTMEINT MGM 13500 X
31-2-0070-00 SLADEIGRIC 323 wCouLGt AVt [C3D ASTOC PROFESSION 1900 5150 x
N . . . - s B - ) ) = iadovdtota-ic— §o— =
31-3.0223-13 Of APPLETON 500 W COLLEGE AVL 0 _Jao3 | 50 [$0 0 3 z
§1.2.0323-13 OF APPLETOSS 100 W COLIAGE AVt JCBD 3 S8 0 EY
11.2-037350 OF AYLETON 100 W COUAGE AVE _[oED  Ja0) 410,900 S0 S0 2
32-30273 60 OF APPLETDN. 100 WCOLICR AVE  [CBD 1303 2
11-2-8372-00 OF APPLETOS 120n ArUTOR ST [0 068 50 59 S0 % F]
31-2.0281 01 OF APPLETON [ WASKINGTON $T__ 130 JO40 50 50 F
31.2-0484-06 10N LU CAFIGN FOUKLIA |EON 00 123k COMAGR AVR tau {209 [0 £ > x
13.2-0287.00 HOTTL CROUP LLC 1008 COIGEAVE _|C8D__{0.07 61 PATEON & GYROS 1300 $217.300 [$223,000 [5194,300 5 X
1.2-0473 01 e 1IN APPUITON ST ICB0 _{3CS  [APPLETON ST SPORTS B 3, 7,700 139100 318,600 s Fy
31.2.0471.02 IAVD KIRTPAS 113 WWASHINGTON STCBD a8 [TC GROUP NC 790 $49.300 $161.900 s [$241 b} L
31.2-0283.1% IO MAN HDLOINGS LEC ET AL 1218 COLLIGE AVE CBD _§0.10 HOFFMAN PLANKING DES $835C8 $853.500 4939,100 [$1.034.5C0 5 L3
11.2.0252.0% 06 $MAN HOLDINGS LIC ET AL 122 & COLMEGE AVE osh {09 £3,900 $20,700 $25,600 {J 5 []
11.2-0273-39 AND MIDICAL LLCET AL 100WCOMIGEAVE [oaD (803  |WESTREVENUE GENSRAT 1$117,100 7000 $850.700 3937, 31004880 ¥
11.2-0273-09 AND RCTDICAL LLCET M 100 WCONMEGE AVE 08D (003 0 $0 50 [1
12017308 AND MEDICAL LLCET AL 100 W COILEGE AVE 8D [0.03 0100 $100 $20,200 1320300 x
31.2-0273 43 19 MECCAL LLCET AL 100 W COEGL AV {C8D  faDn3 800 $200 $600 X
31.2-0273 42 AKD RIEDICAL LLCET AL 100 W COtEGE AVE D__ {003 $363 $300 $600 X
11-2-0173 06 MEDICAL LLCET AL 100 WCOMEGL AVE _fCsD (803 5200 $2.300 52,000 s
11.-1-027)0% NEORCAL LLEET AL 100 W CORLE G4 AVE 003 3800 <80 $3.700 JOO =
33.3-027304 MEDICAL ULCET AL 100 W CORLEGA AVE, 003 $3,700 o0 =
31.2-027383 O MEDICAL ULCETAL 100 weoutSL Ave [C3D {403 $3.900 I

City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan

40



Tt &l
Satye
Areain]  Beriess with Panon Parsonzl Towlland Penosz) Oov |Reta] o2z
TAXKEY Ownat Nanta Progerty Address |Zoaing| Acras Propacty Progerty Land Vela tmprove Vel Property Amaf U [ 5t
11-2017340 D MIDICAL LLCET AL imweowciavi o Joos 7A% $838.300 $965.960 $063.900 )
13017301 3 COMMGNICATIONS 1€ 100WCOUIGEAVE |30 fac) 50 30 (] )
11.2007311 EFFERLLFAMRY LTD PARTRERSHI 1558 APRETCA ST (8D Jac) 33,800 [sa.300 $83.500 3
31-20281 03 ESFERLL INVESTMINTS INCETAL 222€ COLLLGEAVE  [CED (009  [THEDACARE PHYSIOANS IS $125,100 $L648.400 $2.773.300 775100 2
21208232 EIFERLE INVISTMENTS INCET AL p2ceouectave  foep Jain 52,70 $10,600 913,300 $13.300 x
11.2.0282.31 EFFERLUINVISTMINTS INCET AL 132 C CMLLEGE AVE 2D [a10 ,HD0 310, $13,900 3400 x
11.2.0243-30 EEFERLS IVVESTMENTS INCETAL 1220 COLEGEAVE [0 [a10 s193700  [sa3mamo  J2571.000 71000 x
31-2.0281 09 EIFERLS INVESTMINTS INCETAL 132 £ COUKGE AV {30 010 50 50 $0 50 F
11-2-0282 53 OVLSTMENTS INCET AL 132¢€ COLLECE AVE {350 JOl0 43.900 $34.900 $18.900 518500 E
31-20283 81 ERLE INVESTAMNTS INCET &L 1326 SNUGEAVE (oD (409 87,396 $%.300 99300 2
31-2.0:2.00 TFTERLE IVESTMINTS INCET AL 122 CCOLIGE AVE |20 __[o.09 $335.300 20000 {52973.900 _[33,393.900 x
11-2029001  {TAMUC 30 COLLLGS AVE 080 {154 |ADVANCKD WORKFCRCED |$1.200 1,007.300 ]5951,00 $1.9353,%00 $1.960.700 21 =
11.2.020001_{TAMUC 10 COLLEGE AVE 20 [AXDERSON PENS INC %300 $3.300 il
31-2-0290-01 AMUC 20 COULGE AVE 0 [BOAKDLAX DA LUC 151000 $.000 x ) 3
31-2039001 __raMuc 10 CU IGE AVE (B0 [ary case . appaTon_ I¢: 13500 [N I
1201001 framuc 10 COULSE AVE R0 TACES EYL WEAR INC 92,300 $3.200 'Y i
[31-2-0090.81 AMUC 10 CCU IGLAVE 1 ) HAWEINSON QLOTIRIR 100 $3.100 x]x
13039091 _Tramuc 10 COULSE AVE 30 INNGVATIVE LLARNING 0 200 N i)
11-2:029001 AMUc 10 COULGK AVE T] TTEMS OF INTEREST LL 53,600 x] s
31-2-0390 01 AMUC 10 COULGE AVE B0 [IOSLINCS SMOES 182,300 52,300 ' i
317009681 _PaMuC 10 CULISLAVE FALLAAK MASOUARDT. L _{$7.000 $2.000 13
12000001 [rassuc 10 COULLCE AVE cs0 MUSRAY PIOTO & VIO 521,300 511,300 s |3
31-3039001 _framuc 10 COUAGE AVE cao MYSTICAL EARTN GALLE %00 ' i
31-2029001 _framc 10 COULOE AVE @0 SOUIRE $TYLISTS 100 ) ala
31-2-0290 01 AMLLC 10 COUIGE AVE &1 STAIRGCODESS LT 0 1,900 il
31-2029081 _ ITAMLC 18 COULGLAVE £ STUD mTomEss LWL 3200 s i
1-2019001 _biasuc 10 COUAGL AVE @0 TAMLLC 10500 $20.500 {2
31.3029001__fraseusc 15 COUNGE AVE a0 ALMED.IT STAFFROS N I
312029001 framuc 10 COULCE AVE ET SMOOTHE $41.200 331,100 s |
31-2-027310__[THE EUROING FOR K105 ING 1mweousce Avicao o3 [LEARNWG SHOP ATTRL _ [$2.300 600 600 900 [
31-2-027331 __[THE EUILDING FOR K108 IXC 100 W COLEGE AVE o [003 30 0 $0 2
33-20273.20 SUROG FOR K103 INC 100 wesusceave oo o3 R 30 30 £ 2
3120203 82 ASKEVOTCN STRIKT RLE. INVASTIUNT 1228 COLLIGEAVE  CBO [Q09  FTHIBVINT FUDKRAL CAR 13179400 532,900 153,233,900 $1.318.500 31492900 2
31.30283-14 ASKINGTEN STREEY RE. SYVESTMANT 1228 COnaceAve  1G3D  Ja3o 3 $369.200 [$622.300 5812.300 )
31.3-0283.9% ASKINGTON STREET RLE. SOVESTMINT 132 CMUGEAVE &0 Jal0 14 $422.3%0 00 136,100 I
31.2-0200.04 ASKINGTON STREAT R.E. ENVESTMINT 132 ECOLMGE AVE [cs0 Jo09 574,600 $82,500 3380 [
31-2-0281 03 ASKINGTON STRIET RLE. INVESTIINT 12 ECAUGIAVE [0 Jooy 900 322,700 [$26,500 1546500 []
LT ] [ L PP N L - . stoted §: . f -]
31-3015700 _ F127 GURDIRG UL I wcauctAve_|ao_Jasi FINTY MEALTM SYST 1550 BY 8559900 [s:0.000900 910278700 »
31205750312 BUNDIRG 1iC 732 W CLLIGLAVE_[CB0 [I0KNSON BANT 978000 |$139.500 $159.600 s
312025100 22 EURONS UC 232 W COULCE AVE [ORD €0 JOKN SON COMPANY 900 ]
312023200 1122 EUADING UC 212 W COLLIGE AVE  JCBD NETWORK KEALTH fLAN _[$42)360 21,500 X
31-2-0131 00 22 GUADING IUC 222 W coLucE Ave _ [a IDACARE NC $2.800 52,800 »
31:3025700 _ £122 BUMDWG UC 222 W CORULGE AVE_|cED 222 suMpOXG LLC 900 200 2
31-2.0283.00 OnE 200 W COWACK AVE IS0 1031 | MCRGAN CNASE BARK [$234.000 191000 $2.074.008 $2.333.000 2
312026000  (PATTEN PROMRTES LT 2IOWCOUIGLAVE [CBD (016 JCOPPIR KOCK COFFEEL 00 s1eatm 363300 S300.000 831800 x
31-3-0350. 250 W COULCEAVE [0 13,900 2
[= . - S PR | I L [ I 3
]
332003300 [THORAAS GRESAK €T M4 22¢¢ coukceave  faao  Jao Joancastomeunihe  [s2300 3,300 582,600 $114,700 $312.600 x ) x
11-20020.00 BAZION JeCUce A (o [o0a {aue MOCK EaroRna 4 330,700 53200 511130 $225.200 2l
31-2-0026.00 ACCURIIONS RLE. L1C 21 € COLLEGE AVE __[CBD 1008 328,600 x
31-2-001700 N OUELRTS PROPERTIS LLC 233 € COMLIGE AVE D [009 TLOUS BRAWCAFE 610 73,000 368,500 [$21400 $350,000 $425,C00 x
1120035 NTHOMY NWUCLLLR 17 CCCIICEAVE (8D facs _JWOOOLW NICKEL RESTAY 37,300 330450 $35,900 $143.300 S0 3
32002200 Y PLAMANN 2236 COLUEGEAVE  JORD [ACS 1NATS PRACK 39, 3 11 $171.100 5131300 x
[31.3.0823.00 wne 2I9E CNLISEAVE  1OBD (008 [OARISS THE IORSST J00 $20.400 $118500 x 1 x
[32-2-0627.00  JsTumD 13 UL 210 8 CORLIGE AVE 208 [STUOD 233 uc $300 339700 $ 129400 $189.100 $399.500 'R i
31-2-0001.89 wins mmecoiuceavt oo fais  foAsel FuRamuRe & 129900 [s201500 $129.100 5333, 700 '
31-20029 00 ipLcoiuciavi  jao fais 1900 Js84,700 203,500 9203500 s | 1
31-2-0030-00 207 £ COLLIGE AV [CBD _J0.03 1 9400 [$31,7260 111,300 112,100 i I
312001900 2208 coauge A [cso fooa 30 30 50 50 3
R I T —] = _. — (131 s e A
31.2-8316-00 128 B OURXLL ST 5o __Jaca 30 ] 2
31-2-0097 3008 COLLEGEAVE  [cuD _J023  FiicD MUSIC CONPANY | 19 $194.200 $337.800 $449.500 ' i
31-2-0320£0 IO ECOLLIGEAVE  [CoD 04 00 13165600 [$261,9¢0 61,900 x ]
31.2.01100 £ COLLIGE AVE T [ 12, 4000 36,600 936,500 3
112013300 121 £ WARSNGTON $T|CBO |01 JUTWS COMIE LT $28.500 542,800 32,300 5133.200 5101.820 a
11-2-038800 oL anucesE [0 fas $134800  fs213.500 $262.850 $260.800 x
112012800 3098 wassanGTon sTjceo In2e On ROCK SOHOCL £336.300 07, $31.500 $159.000 3173.300 2
1-30M3 00 310 COuteGe At JcaD Jacs o Nsvusuc 312,300 13,600 5134,300 $292.100 $399400 .
33-2.0011 00 132 & DURKEE ST I 30 3, 5121400 $172.800 72,300 2
312003301 118 b DURKEE ST cae 009 17400 $109.500 [$187.000 $142.000 [
332054300 EASTUC 200 CMEGEAVE 8D __[a12 _|mniason sux ACs0s 158 550, S50 13,00
31-20004 00 [311 COUEGEAVR LC uecouece st fao ooz [awpanoemnTsuc 300 3, $109, $132.000 34300
11-20004 00 [311 COLEGLAVE T 311 L COUEGE AVE (O30 [PEERLLSS OLSIGN STUD __[$2.500
31-3-0134.00 331 FADMERTRS L 331 L WASHINGTON STICED o131 JSITON SLERT CARIS 12,900 1 5195, $238.000 50,900
3120308 0 SANTS CHURCH N DREW ST e _J026 343,100 53,100 348,200 8200
33-2.00%0.%0 OF APPULTON 18 ST a0 (112 £ 0
32-2-0087 00 OF APPLITON S GRICDA ST o _Jaso 8 $0 50
31.2.0085-00 OF APPLLTON 133 weousceave fcsp fale 50 50
33.2.0214 00 TTY OF APPLLTON S ONLIDA ST eRD _Ja.37 £ sa
31-2.0058 00 PPLETON ART CENTER IMNC 111 W COLEGEAVE |t [aa7 0 50 S0
31-20022 00 ETON CINTER ASSOOATES I00WLAWRENCEST (08D [Q79  |ARFLETON GROUP LLC 29,000 $519,100 56,117,400 $6,636.500 56.665.500
[31-2.0072.00 CINTUR ASSOOATLS I0WIARRING ST_ (3D [AyCAuAGKER mSE M 4,000 $34.000

City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan




ToaTieT
Gltee
Arsain|  Susivas with Puion Parsons) Total land Petronal Our [Rats] &g
TAKEY Dweer Name Prosaty Mddress  [Zoulag] Acres Progerty Propesty Laad Velee mpon Vike Propesty Aal B |
[32-2-0072 00 CINTIR ASSOCIATES 200 W LAWRENCE §1_fCBD [£0% QY MAREETING § 330,000
31-2-0072 00 CTON CENTIR ASSOCUTLS 100 W LAWRERCE $1_[cEp [COUMARCAPITAL MANAS 53,
33-2.067100 ETON CINTIR ASSCQATLS 100 W LAWREACE §1_CRD [COMMERTAL HORZONS 35,700
31-2-0073-00 TON CINTER ASSOCIATRS 100 W LAWRENCE §1_[COD LEMAN & CO ISC $10.300
31-2-0024.00 ETON GINTER ASSCOATRS 100 W LAWRENCR ST_{CoD [EVOLUNION WEALTM AN [$1.000 1,
31-2-0072 80 €TCA CINTER ASSCQATLY 100 W LAWRKNCE 5T_[CBD [GODI81Y & KAMN 5T 9,00
31-2-007260 €TON CINTOR ASSOCIATRS 100 W LAWRENCE ST _ [CRD [HALF, ROSERT vTEmna _1$13,500 13,500
31.2-007200 CINTIR ASSOQIATES 100 WiAwRenct s1_fcan [RaNSHAW & s LaTSon 150,100 00
[31-2.0072.00 €TON CENTER ASSOQATLS 100 W LAWKENCE 7 _fca0 (REAUTE MIN KA 08 WS _[$27,700 7200
[31-2-0072 00 ETON CINTER ASSOCIATES 100 W LAWRENCE $T_[C30 [KAGEN DI RMATCAOGY O (54,300 [4.300
31.2.000200 4TON CIXTER ASSOGATE S 100 W LAwgnce 31 _fean [KAGEN MLERGY CNIC __[$5.500 $3.000
33-2-0023 00 CINTERASSOOATES 100 W LAWRENCE §T_{C3D [RA SARTM MATIONAL | $5.200
31.2.0672 06 CTON CEXTER ASSCOATES 100 W LAWRENCE §T_fCBD [RuMEER Cxt MASKITING [$ 21,600 $1.600
33-2.0022.00 CINTIR ASSCOATLS 200WLAWRINGE $T_fCID [pravowss use pesun 5200300
31-2-0073 00 ETON CINTER ASSCQATES 100 W LAWRENGE 5T_[COD [PRINGIPAL UPE FUSUR 3,100
31-2.0072.00 ETON CUNTEA ASSOTATLS 100 W LAWKENCE $T_[CoD [PREVATE WEALTH MANAG
31.2.0073 60 TGN CINTER ATSOOATES 100 WLAWRENGE ST_[CBD [senme TROna OGS [3136.500 131
31.2.0072 80 KTON CINTER ASSOCIATLS 100 WLAWRENCE §1_[CBD. (OniE LAW GADUPSC 9,900 )
31.2.0022 00 €TOA CENTER ASSOCIATES 100 W LAWRINGR ST IORD [CATALYHS HC 106,500 3101
31-2.0073.00 CINTIR ASSOOATES 100 W LAWRING T _[c30 [TWin eAiL RISOULCE 500 300
[31-2-0673.00 CINTER ASSO0IATES 100 W LAWRENCE 5T _|C30 [CANERSAL INSLRANCE 100 00
312002200 (TON CINTER ASSOOATLS 100 W LAWSING §7 [0 S8 EVVESTAN TS X $10.200 [$30.200
31.2.0073.00 ETON CINTER ASSCOATLS TOWLARRIAT {330 arson s sortk  [saim
31-2-0073 00 CIXTER ASSOOATES 1DWLAWRING 572D [WELNOM S8, ANTHONY W [$1.300 $1.300
11-2.0023 00 GTOR CARTER ASSCOATES 100 W LAWRENCE ST [C3D [NCATHWIRD ® 1AW SC 700 700
31-3-0023.00 CINTIR ASSOOATLS 1 WLAWRING 5T _[C9D [Weis Firgo Vendr flrana[$33.500 423,300
31.2.0040.00 TMON ASPUKD 107 € COUEGE AVE |30 JA05  [BREWED AWASLARKGS N 458,000 329,400 312 $1734%0 3
31.2.0070.00 _ WAD WADGER INVESTMENTS LIC 215 WCOLLEGEAVE_[C3D _[a11  [6AD SADGIR SPORTSaA _[347, 393400 107,580 $ 303,900 15,300
31-2.6038 80 DRE PROPERTLES ILC [101 ECOUEGE AVE _ [CBD 404 [BAGLUCIOUSADDYS O 26, X0 7500 199400 $226,300 3.
31-2-0044 00 ANNKE PROPERTHS LIC 135 ECOLLEGE AVt [cen Jo.0n  [10SiS GYROS KACOS 39,700 5152900 104 £00 1500 07,200 [
31-2-0044 00 KE PRCPERTRS LLC 1338 couece ave  foao [LILLLANS OF AP ETON 7,200 [
'31-2.0044.00 NG PRCPERTILS LLC 1211 CuLece A [es0 vinTace casotn e [saso 300 2
3320045 00 NS, PROPLRTIS LLC iBecuceavi jap Joos [revoasvnc 52,000 45400 113200 $189.500 61500 ]
131-2-00439 00 K% PEOPERTIES LULL 127 £ COLLEGE AVE (3D J307 JRUG COMPANY Tt 32.800 558,700 $126.100 $188.880 3187, []
32.2.0030.00 ICL PRGPEXTELS LLC i ccouIcEAvi  fos0 Jao7  |GRUND $172.200 5229500 3330300 [
31-2-005000 _ WINNKL PROPEXTIES ULC 129 ¢ coesceav  {oap [uSTACTNATUAM UG [Sss 500 »
31-2-0050.00 _IWOIMNKE PROPERTIES UL 19 Emuuctav {0 [ROTERTION AGENCYLTD 96,100 "
31.2-0009.00 __WCANKL PECPERTELS UL irweourciavi ese Japs  [samsrus & provis Jo0 $90.100 331 0,220
31-2-0009.00 __ WUNNKLFACPERTRS ILC [107W COULEGEAVE _[COD [KD DEA €AR 542,000 3,
31.2.0080.00 I INNEE PROPERTIES LLC 107 W COLLECE AVl __[csD [OLDE TOWNS TAVERN 22, 3,200
310000980 B INNET PROPERTIFS1IC 13 WEDUEGT avi_[crn_10.0% [ 259,300 $349.380 8,30
31-0-0044 31 NKE PROPERTHS LLC 1228 coutese ave feso  faos %0 $0 53
$1-0.0044.00 NKE PROPERTIES LLC 1198 cousceav [0 faos $269.000 $259.000 [$260.000 [
33-2-0139.01 3 ¥ CLOUNT 1AWTERT CT PORY (202 4700 147,900 $122560 333:
31-2-0074 00 WALSZS BAXK RA 231 wetnuiGa Avi (G300 038 SMOIMAACIM CORP |30 $23, 300 S15.300 __[52.798.60 $2, 793400
33-3-0674.00 HALYTS BANK NA 221 W coutGr Ave_{esp [BMO RAFKHS SAXK NA
31.2.0074 00 MAKKIS BAXK XA 223 W COUIGLAVE (09D [OnE AsErca sEToas[$218.500 18,900
31-2-0083-00__EBMO MAKRIS BAKK A S APPLETON ST cop_Jaos $18.000 1,008 19,000 $19.000
11.2.0139:311 _ RINDA SOLOT TRUST 11 LAWRENCE CT vons fa0s | 1 $33200 196,200 $182,000 8.
31.2-011940 OITH CANTER SUIVIVORS TRUST 1DLAWRINELCT DA} fa04 517,400 133,900 $211.800 11,300
31-2-032300 PROPEATIES L1C 20k cousas ave feeo Japs InEsmeLc 512,000 $67.300 102,500 169500 18:
31-2-032400 PROPLATIES UIC 732 £ COUEGEAVE_ [cS0 008 [massaGe COnnECTION 53,300 $60300 125,400 183,900 $189,200
31-20334.00 PROPLRTITS LIC 2328 cource ave fcsp TRAVILING PALETTL T __ [$500 300
31-2.8015 00 PROPEATIES LLC 103 N DURKEE 5T 30 {002 JGONDSEAL GRAPYICY 300 48,300 $a3.000 533,200 539,900
31-2-009200 FLALESTATE PARTNLRSKED 2 wenucsavs tceo Jaos Jososssownstamu [5430 534,300 00 $:
1-2C1090a OUARNG AwWRERS O rom}_Ja03 3400 3138200 $283.500 5105500
332004100 REAITY WESCONSIN Y LLC iEcuce s [oo Joos  froeematacea 5231900 1000 $93.500 $ 345,700
31-2-0033100 FEAITY WISCOASIN IV 14C iuccoueceave  [cep  Jaos 553,600 323 5135100
31-2-0042-00 CO PROPERTIES LIC 1D CCCEGEAVE (D Ja.05  JeCo CaspeRcouc 0 $44.300 93,250 [$243.600 131,900 2
11.2.0139.39 VD UCH 19 LAWRINCECT rons Jo.0d $27.600 174, 203200 0.
31-2-051300 WA &V UL qag conuceave  Jeon  faaa Jantonmos moxcanos 939,700 591300 341,300 319, 38,700 ]
31-20H330__ WA &VSUC 2041 coawse Ave [cso [SCHNETS GALDIN 6100 _[¢700 00 ]
31.3.0113. A LVBUC 202 COLLEGE AVT__[<cBD [TreA MARIE'S UNICUR [
31.2-018200 CX VAVIEY FAMAY PRACTICE I SiD 229 S MORFISON ST 120 (132 0 $8
33.2-0138.08 K GLURTS SLAWRING €7 roR3_[303 $18.300 $120.500 $118.160 [$13%.100
31.20m181 __JGEXINSIDE PEOPLETES LC 1B ECOUEGEAVI (30207 [IEMPPALAW CHIKE L RS0 300 $135.500 $197.560 1000
.2-002100 PROPLRTHES CALLLE zecauseavi (30 Jaos  IERAxomG areatia $20.000 3133420 $251.300 172,300 ]
32-2-0031 09 V'S PEOPLETIES DNE ML 2228 DALEGE AL [aeD MOMEFRES VA LLC $3100 »
31.2.0821.00 LPS PROPERTIES DNELLC 2726 COLLIGE AVE__ |80 SURF Bix0 SEATE S 151700 »
33-2.0139-1% MANKS 15 LAWRINCE CT rons J0.04 $27.500 191200 213,800 1883
31.2.013931 _ PATRICK MAYES 21 LAWRINCT CT pon3 faoa $30.500 193400 [$223.000 234,000
31-2.0091.00__[STEVLN HECKUNLABLE 205 W CCULGEAVE _{CSD_ JO03 [HGAM CURGEA BAK 413,300 543200 331550 273, 84500
31.2.008300  IPETIASARSON 113E COLLIGE AVT__ (3D Jac5  JVAGACOWOD IMPCRTS 100 3.100 92, 142,300 4 »
31.2.0339.18 S KNLR ACVOCASLL TRUST 16 LAWRINCECT o3 Jooa 533400 202,500 $222.900 332,900
31.2.013932 GLAS KEUEGER REVOC TRUST 23 LAWRENCECT pon3 Jaod $37.500 171400 $199.500 9!
31-2013933 GLAS KRUEGLR RIVOC TRUST 23 LAWRINCE €T roa3 003 $39.100 152, $135,700 700
122013911 EN SUMER 13 LAWRENCE CT ron) 04 523300 5558800 $194,000 194,000
112519914 CORY LAKDWDAR 18 LAWRINCE CT voR)_ o027 532800 234,900 3232500 300
112000900 RAWRERCE UXPY OF ATSC & COLLLGE AVE " a22 50 =
33-2-0063-0 AWRENCE NIV OF WiSC E COWESE AVE " 023 50 150
33.2.003.09 WRENCE UKTV OF WISC 3 coweceav (n _ fads 50 »
31-2-0213.00  RAWRENCE UKV OF WISC 200W WATERST n__fos 50 30
31-2-013900__ IRATHAN UTT 2 LAWRENCE C7 rons 003 $18.300 113,200 [s13.300 41500
31.2-0303.00 ICRAISON BULLDING LLC 120N MORRISON 5T_[esp Ta 38— Jwiiews maRETING v [$19,300 300 393300 5330000 300
31-2-0139-18 MUNDE 18 LAWRINCE CT ron3 f0.04 $36.000 123300 $209.500 0!
31-2-013907 UCENT NEFF 7 LAWRERCE € ron3 §303 519400 109,300 $128.800 138900
31-1-0003. 00 NOVCE MANAGEMINT UL IBECHAUCEA |80 (303 [TWOraws up pAiRv L 100 [$34.900 882,300 $139.200 5141300 3
33.38M700 AGANDE COUNTY KISTORICAL pecousce s foso faus 50 53
3200800 AGANDE COUNTY RISTORICAL jisscouai A joso oo | 1 [s0 3

City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan 42



RLLTY
Glatee
Areain|  Sesinas with Penca Parsome) Totsd laad Pences! O [Reta] Kig
TAXKEY Owaes Nsme Poparty Addrets  Rcaing| Acres Proparty Propeny Land Vie - Vike Propecty Al bl M

31.2-0003.00 __[PARRLA PACOERTUS LLC 2awcoutceavt Joap  Jacs  [oRAIY swikTeac 2 [$33300 32 299,200 [
31-2-C003 00 ARRLA PROPERTIS LLC 201 W COLLECR AVE CBD [TAMARA'S THE CAKE GV 30 300 »
[11-3-6093 80 ARKLA PROPERTUS ULC 301 W COULEGR AVE _[cen TOP SPNS LLC 200 | | | 1,300 []
i1-2.0093.00 ARILA PROPERTEES LLC 1201 W CCMRGE AVE [CED TGUMPH ENGINEERING 1317, 12, ]
31.2-0007 00 INIVEY PHMMASERE 321 K COLLIGE AV CBD 1011 | TASTS OF THAI APPLET 300 $68.300 3337, $ 306,100 [$111
31.2-0317.00 UEEN BEE RESTAURANT RC [z rcucs AW [oD ]393  JoIATAMSETIVS KESA 2100 $37.200 $34. 5339560 H,
11-28317.00 LEN CLE RLSTAURANT 0 C 218 £ COLISGE AVE =73 QUL UL CLE RESTAURANT 1$6.500
11-28139.3¢ RAGYS 23 LAWRIRCECT rom3 204 $124.300 $292.300 J0
2.2-0109-09 DN TEUSY [9 LAWK GE CT rox3 008 301400 $229.960 320,900
32-3-0119-00 ELLN SCOTT 219 € COULLRCE AV C30 1032 JUSHINT & GRETERTS 38,00 [$34.000 18173500 3369650 3333900
32-2-0319-00 TLE% SCOTY 230 € COLLICE AvT__[GBD MUNAN LUC S00 390
31.2-0239-0% INE SEGRIST 5 LAWRENCE €T ron3 Ja0d 13,300 $128.000 $126.300 $126,300
[31-2.0089 80 CORFORATION 303¢ CouLGEAVE  jesp  faas  [stauvanans 100 $122.300 417, [$539.600 I .
31-2-0039.80 CORPORATION 303 € COLLIGE AVE =13 [DLPAWSITCRY #£3 BOUT JO0 X0 »
31-3-0039.00 CORFORATION 100 & COLULLGE AVE CBD 300N SicELL SALDY &8 1400 41,800 [
31-2-001900 CORPORATION 103 & COLLEGE AVE CRD [ROCSNSON tLAW 1EM 1,60 »
31.2-0039-00 CORPORATION 14 UG AV |aD 0344 CORPORATION $100 $100 »
33.2-0043 50 CONPORATION 129 € COLLEGE AVE B0 208 JCIAA RISTAURANT RC _[$S.600 [$47.500 13353500 $213.000
31-2-0079-00 COIPORATION 211 WCOULCE AVE  FCED 017 JSOMA CORPORATION $2.400 5128200 08100 9452300 S459 700
33.2.5139.17 STACK 17 LAWRINCE CT ron3 faos $37.200 3188800 $236.000 $236,000
33-2-0031-00 _[TANLOR ChARCELLC 13 ecowtctAve  [cap ooy fravasauc Y%} 247, 3305300 420,900
33-2-0108.00 _ [TERNIE'S KWELRY PROMIATISS MC ateecouceavi (o faos  [imwnisswyumyane 838,000 7,500 $92,300 $140.000 $1$4,000 3
31-2.0023 00 Jrne wisperseic Rueciceav:  |oap [a11  [pcoTs PALETTE $38,500 [$73500 337,300 6,000 $334300
[31.2-0084 00 MEOEALD-APPLETON RINTAL 117 § APPLETON ST CED 1003 JAMODASSADOR BAR $24.200 $96,100 [$120,350 130,100
31.2.0084.00 MEOBALDAPPLETDN RENTAL 137 § APPLETON 5T CRD ATTIC TATTOO STUDSO 300
[31-3-0039-00 SUER LAW LLC 207 W COULEGE AVE _|T3D  J003  [BOLD SALONS LIC 7, $73.000 27,
33.2 505000 LAW LLC 207 W COLLGE AV [oaD TUSAIR AW UL 300 30
[31-2011650 WAOWTIA 2126 UG AT 201007 LIT SVOLYTION &RC Sa.800 349700 564,00 113300 312,500 »
133-2-0199-03 WARCEN EXVOCAS1IE TRUST 3LAWRINCE €T POR3 F0O3 [$13.800 1 3138500 15138,800
13.2.0002 00 & RNC 3016 COILEGE AVE  c8D 017 JAVIAULCOMS & Wil _[$ii%0 A6 [$181380 [$209.300 5328900 2
31.2.0139-04 WRASE LAWRINCE CT roR3 [0.02 182,700 15209.000 $304.000
33.2-003301 'MCA OF APPLETDN S DURKER $T cap fasy | s0 50
[31.2-0034 00 'MCA OF APPILT DM 239¢ LAWRINCE ST JcaD J1M) 50 30 S0

De Lage Lancien Firgndal 18,200

GAC Laag! ardon Ftesch |$13.500

{Z

Great Americs Rrandal

US Burk RA

Wi barps Rranod Leathf$1a 600

L Lo pae ) . L .. ]
Toutarm Aere YY) $3980,000

City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan

43



TIF DISTRICT #11 LEGAL DESCRIPTION
DESCRIPTION: A TRACT OF LAND BEING PART OF THE SW % OF SECTION 26, PART OF THE SE %4

OF SECTION 26 AND PART OF THE NW % OF SECTION 35, ALL IN TOWNSHIP 21 NORTH, RANGE
17 EAST, CITY OF APPLETON, OUTAGAMIE COUNTY, WISCONSIN BOUNDED AND DESCRIBED AS
FOLLOWS:

COMMENCING AT THE CENTERLINE OF WASHINGTON STREET AND THE CENTERLINE OF DREW
STREET AND BEING THE POINT OF BEGINNING;

THENCE SOUTH AND THEN SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF SAID DREW STREET
TO THE EASTERLY EXTENSION OF THE SOUTH LINE OF AN ALLEY IN BLOCK 2 OF THE APPLETON
PLAT;

THENCE WEST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF SAID EXTENSION AND THEN THE SOUTH LINE OF
SAID ALLEY AND ALSO BEING CONTIGUOUS WITH THE NORTH OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED SURVEY
MAP NO.6362 TO THE EAST LINE OF DURKEE STREET;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SAID DURKEE STREET TO THE CENTERLINE OF WATER
STREET;

THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF SAID WATER STREET TO A POINT 50
FEET WEST OF THE EAST LINE ONEIDA STREET AND BEING COINCIDENT WITH A REFERENCE LINE
FOR SAID ONEIDA STREET PER WDOT RIGHT OF WAY PLAT NO.4657-2-21;

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 252.91 FEET ALONG SAID REFERENCE LINE FOR ONEIDA STREETTO A
REFERENCE LINE FOR PROSPECT AVENUE PER SAID WDOT RIGHT OF WAY PLAT NO.4657-2-21;
THENCE SOUTHWESTERLY 399.57 FEET M/L ALONG SAID REFERENCE LINE FOR PROSPECT
AVENUE TO THE SOUTHEASTERLY EXTENSION OF A WESTERLY LINE OF LOT 1 OF CERTIFIED
SURVEY MAP NO.6714;

THENCE NORTHWESTERLY 140.05 FEET M/L ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THEN THE WESTERLY
LINE OF LOT 1 OF SAID CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.6714 TO AN ANGLE POINT IN LOT 1 OF SAID
CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP NO.6714;

THENCE ALONG THE SUBSEQUENT 8 COURSES OF LOT 1 OF SAID CERTIFIED SURVEY MAP
NO.6714 TO THE SOUTH LINE OF LAWRENCE STREET;

City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan 44



THENCE WEST 222 FEET M/L ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF LAWRENCE STREET TO THE
SOUTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF A 20 FOOT WIDE ALLEY LOCATED IN BLOCK 7 OF
THE APPLETON PLAT;

THENCE NORTH 389.44 FEET M/L ALONG SAID EXTENSION AND THEN THE WEST LINE OF SAID
ALLEY AND THEN THE NORTHERLY EXTENSION OF THE WEST LINE OF SAID ALLEY TO THE SOUTH
LINE OF COLLEGE AVENUE;

THENCE EAST 419.93 FEET M/L ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF COLLEGE AVENUE TO THE EAST
LINE OF SUPERIOR STREET;

THENCE NORTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF SUPERIOR STREET TO A POINT 166.17 FEET SOUTH
OF THE SOUTH LINE OF WASHINGTON STREET;

THENCE EAST AND PARALLEL TO THE SOUTH LINE OF WASHINGTON STREET 380.2 FEET M/LTO
THE EAST LINE OF APPLETON STREET;

THENCE NORTH 166.17 FEET ALONG THE EAST LINE OF APPLETON STREET TO THE SOUTH LINE
OF WASHINGTON STREET;

THENCE EAST 770.57 FEET M/L ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF WASHINGTON STREET TO THE EAST
LINE OF MORRISON STREET;

THENCE SOUTH ALONG THE EAST LINE OF MORRISON STREET TO A POINT 180 FEET NORTH OF
THE SOUTH LINE OF JOHNSTON STREET;

THENCE EAST 63.24 FEET;

THENCE SOUTH 180 FEET TO THE SOUTH LINE OF JOHNSTON STREET;

THENCE EAST ALONG THE SOUTH LINE OF JOHNSTON STREET AND THEN THE EASTERLY
EXTENSION OF SAID JOHNSTON STREET TO THE EAST LINE OF DURKEE STREET;

THENCE NORTH 242.34 FEET M/L ALONG THE EAST LINE OF DURKEE STREET TO THE
CENTERLINE OF WASHINGTON STREET;

THENCE EAST ALONG THE CENTERLINE OF WASHINGTON STREET TO THE POINT OF BEGINNING.

"~ —— ——————————— "
City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan 45



OPINION OF THE CITY ATTORNEY ON THE COMPLIANCE OF THE
PROJECT PLAN WITH WISCONSIN STATUTE

&, .S |
% LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT
l Office of the City Attorney
100 North Appleton Street
Appleton, WI 54911
Phone: 920/832-6423
Fax: 920/832-5962

“.omeeting community needs. . .enhancing guality of life.”

June 22, 2017

Mayar Timothy M. Hanna
City of Appleton

100 Notth Appleton Street
Appleton, W1 54911-4799

Re:  Tax Increment Finance Program Plan, City of Appleton
Tax Incremental Districe #11

Dear Mayor Hanna:

You have asked me for a legal opinion as to the legal sufficiency and statutory compliance of the
proposed Tax Incremental Finance Plan for the City of Appleton Tax Incremental Districe #11, 1
have reviewed the Project Plan for sald District as well as the appendices attached thereto, specifically
as to their compliance with the provision of Section 66.1105(4), Wisconsin Statutes. It is my opinion
that the Project Plan is in comphiance with all of the provisions of Section 66.1105(4) of the Wisconsin
Statutes dealing with the cteation of Tax Ineremental Finanang Districts.

If you have any questions concerning this matter, please contact me ar your earliest convenience.

/ﬂ_gﬂm

James P. Walsh
City Attorney

JPWjlg

Sanomey\WORDUSw\LETTERSATIF 11 Atty Opincn Letter 06-22-2017.0c

James I°. Walsh Chnstopher . Behrens Amanda Abshure
Cily Attorney Depasty City Astormey Assdstant City Attorney

e i L i i
City of Appleton TIF District # 11 Project Plan 46



EXHIBIT B

Initial Site Map of 103 W. College Avenue and Prcuect Descrlptlon

.. Iﬂ& -

SARPLETON

Zuelke Building, LLC - City of Appleton

Development Agreement Page 10



EXHIBIT C

Map Showing Parking Entrances

Plaza

* No Impatt to Houdini

Site Plan

N &PPLetoN.

8 Agpemd ST
o
Sousbe ST
o) (

(o

Zuelke Building, LLC — City of Appleton
Development Agreement



MEMORANDUM

*...meeting community needs...enhancing quality of life.”

TO: Mayor and Common Council
FROM:  Karen Harkness, Director of Community & Economic Development
DATE: December 17, 2017

RE: Proposed Tax Reform Bill — Impacts to Real Estate Incentives and Historic Tax
Credits

The House of Representatives’ tax reform proposal was released on November 2, 2017, and the
Senate’s tax reform proposal was released on November 9, 2017. The two proposals were vastly
different. Numerous amendments were made to each bill, and on December 2, 2017, the Senate
passed the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act by party line vote of 51-49.

Substantial differences between the bills are expected to be reconciled in a Conference Committee
over the next several hours/days. House and Senate Republicans have come to an agreement on the
tax bill, and as of today, they intend to pass this bill before Congress goes on recess on December
22, 2017.

Both versions of the bill include several provisions that directly impact real estate development
incentives, including Historic Tax Credits, incentives from Wisconsin Economic Development
Corp., Tax Incremental Financing, New Market Tax Credits, Enterprise Zone Tax Credits and
others.

The City of Appleton relies on many of these economic development tools to implement our
Comprehensive Plan, Economic Development Strategic Plan and the City of Appleton Strategic
Plan.

Because of these very recent changes at the Federal Level and the depth of impact on local proposed
development projects, the Appleton Common Council is being asked to consider approval of two
development agreements on Wednesday, December 20, 2017 during a special Committee of the
Whole.



Historic Tax Credits

Proposed Changes: Under the House bill, both the 20 percent historic tax credit (HTC) and the 10
percent rehabilitation tax credit would be repealed for qualified rehabilitation expenditures (QRE)
paid or incurred after December 31, 2017. Under the Senate bill, the 20 percent HTC would remain
in effect, but the credit would be claimed annually over 5 years beginning with the date the QREs
are placed in service. Both versions of the proposed bill eliminate the 10 percent rehabilitation tax
credit for QREs paid or incurred after December 31, 2017.

Impact: Both proposed bills would allow a taxpayer to claim rehabilitation tax credits under the
existing rules, as long as the taxpayer owns or leases the building continuously after December 31,
2017 and the 24 month substantial rehabilitation period begins within 180 days of enactment of the
repeal or modification.

Planning Opportunity: Developers that are planning a rehabilitation of a historic building need to
have their property acquisition and ownership completed and/or formed by December 31, 2017. If
the rehabilitation credits are eliminated (proposed House bill), developers should be able to continue
to close on historic tax credit syndication through 2019 as long as the development partnership owns
or leases the building by December 31, 2017 and completes the rehabilitation by 2020 (2023 for
phased projects).

Section 118 - Grant Structuring Changes

Proposed Changes: Under the House bill, Section 118 would be repealed, effective upon
enactment, immediately making grant proceeds taxable upon receipt. The Senate bill does not
propose any modification to Section 118.

Impact: Section 118 has often been used by developers to defer the tax impact of grant incentives
by structuring the grant to be made to a corporation. Repealing Section 118 would require a for
profit developer to pay federal and state income taxes upon receipt of grant proceeds to help fund a
real estate development project. A repeal of Section 118 would substantially impact the capital
stack of development projects.

Planning Opportunity: Since repeal would be effective upon enactment, developers with existing
Section 118 should attempt to accelerate the completion of Developer’s Agreements (DA) or what
the proposed bill calls Master Agreement (MA). Developers should review the impact of the grant
proceeds and create or revise capital stack.

Section 13312 - Taxation of Capital Contributions

Proposed Changes: Under the House bill, a new concept would require partnerships/corporations
to recognize taxable income upon receipt of capital contributions, including any contributions by
any governmental entity or civic group. Under the December 2, 2017 release, the date of enactment
would be the date this legislation is signed by the President.



Impact: This provision would be problematic in structuring several common real estate
development financing transactions. For example, in most transactions that involve the
syndication of federal and/or state tax credits, the value of the partnerships/corporations interest
that tax credit investor receives is often lower than their capital contribution. This is due to the
project’s cost routinely exceeding the value of the completed project. The impact of this
amendment, if enacted, would require partnerships and corporations to recognize taxable
income from the receipt of capital contributions from tax credits, TIF’s, WEDC, etc.

Planning Opportunity: This provision would impact transactions that have previously closed
or are currently in the process of closing, to the extent that the investor has not made all of its
capital contributions as of the date the tax reform bill is enacted. Developers should monitor the
status of the tax reform legislation to determine if such provision could create a funding gap
equal to the amount of tax required to be paid on the capital contributions from the tax credit
investor.

This version also has an exception to this amendment. The exception allows for this
amendment to not apply as long as contributions after the enactment date are pursuant to a
master development plan approved by a government entity prior to the enactment date.

* Sources used to write this memo include: Information from Plante Moran, Baker Tilly,
Congress.gov, GOP.gov, and the Tax Policy Center.



FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT
TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT NO. 11 (Development Area #4)

THIS FIRST AMENDMENT TO DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT (“Amendment”) is
dated as of the _ day of , 2021 by and between ZUELKE FLATS LLC, a Missouri
limited liability company, (the “Developer”) and CITY OF APPLETON, a Wisconsin municipal
corporation (the “City”).

RECITALS:

The City and Zuelke Building, LLC, a Wisconsin limited liability company (“Prior
Developer”) entered into that certain Development Agreement dated as of December 19, 2017 and
recorded in the Outagamie County Register of Deeds Office on December 26, 2017 as Document
No. 2123118 (“Development Agreement”).

The Development Agreement details the Prior Developer’s intended redevelopment of the
historic Zuelke Building located at 103 West College Avenue, identified as Parcel #31-2-0070-00
and more particularly described on Schedule 1 hereto (the “Property”).

The Prior Developer and the Developer entered into a purchase and sale agreement to
convey the Property to Developer.

The City and Developer desire to amend the Development Agreement as set forth herein.

AMENDMENT
l. Recital B is hereby amended and replaced as follows:

B. Developer has proposed to redevelop a portion of the area of the District
identified as “Development Area #4”. Specifically, the Developer intends to undertake the
following project that will increase the value of the Zuelke Building and provide other
tangible benefits to the surrounding neighborhoods, the downtown, and the City as a whole:

1. Redevelopment of the historic Zuelke Building into a Class A Mixed
Use Property including residential and retail uses (the “Project”).

2. The Project will include the modernization of the existing elevators
serving the Project where applicable, and the development of 66 residential units
on Floors 2-12 ranging in size from studio to two bedroom, two bathroom units and
average square footages from 547 average square feet to 1,050 average square feet.
Floor 1 will be redeveloped into a retail space approximately 749 square feet in
size, and various tenant amenities including a leasing office, business center, game
room, dog wash, and fitness center. Portions of the basement of the Project will be
redeveloped into tenant storage, bicycle storage, and a television lounge for tenants’
use.



3. The Project will include a patio facing Houdini Plaza primarily for
use by the Project’s tenants but also accessible to the public, constructed in
accordance with applicable building codes and accessibility requirements.

4. The Developer has represented that the construction cost of the
Project is approximately $17,608,407 which amount includes both hard and soft
costs, and will create an anticipated property taxable value of not less than
$8,703,000. The Property’s current base value is $1,922,100.

. Recital G is hereby amended and replaced as follows:

G. Developer desires to obtain a long term lease for a small portion of the right-
of-way located in Houdini Plaza described as a portion of the public alley previously
vacated pursuant to City of Appleton Final Resolution recorded by the Outagamie County
Register of Deeds on September 17, 2019 as Document No. 2171080 in Block 5 of
Appleton Plat (a’k/a Second Ward Plat) as more particularly described on Schedule 2
attached hereto (the “Vacated Alley”). The Developer agrees to execute any documents
reasonably required by the City to reconvey the Vacated Alley to the City. Simultaneously
with the reconveyance, Developer and City agree to enter into a mutually agreeable long
term lease pursuant to which the Developer may occupy a portion of the Vacated Alley for
the Project. A copy of the lease is included in Schedule 2 for reference.

II. Recital H is hereby amended and replaced as follows:

H. The City, pursuant to Common Council Action on July 21, 2021, will
review, approve, and ratify this Amendment.

IV.  Recital K is hereby amended and replaced as follows:

K. This Agreement shall be subject to, and contingent upon, the Appleton
Common Council’s review and approval on July 21, 2021.

V. Section 2.1 references an Exhibit B. Exhibit B of the Development Agreement is
hereby amended and replaced with Schedule 3 attached hereto and incorporated herein by
reference.

VI.  Section 3.2 is hereby amended and replaced as follows:

3.2 As the sole source for payment of the City Investment, the City agrees to
pay Developer annually by August 15 of each year for a period of fifteen
(15) years commencing on August 15, 2024 and ending on August 15, 2038
(the “Expiration Date”), an amount equal to ninety percent (90%) of the
property taxes paid on the incremental value created by the development
(the “property tax increment”) and any City portion of a Payment in Lieu of



VII.

VIII.

Taxes (PILOT) Agreement contributions attributable to the Property
pursuant to any such PILOT Agreement. The City may extend the
Expiration Date for any good faith reason upon written notice to Developer
in the event the City is unable to pay to Developer any portion of the annual
installment of the City Investment on August 15 of any year on or prior to
the Expiration Date provided the Expiration Date shall not be extended past
August 15, 2044 and the total period for which the City Investment is made
is no less than fifteen (15) years. The foregoing notice shall state the good
faith reason why City cannot make the City Investment for such year and
confirmation of the date which City anticipates resuming its payment of the
City Investment to Developer.

Section 3.6 is hereby amended to state the following:

3.6 The City Investment that shall equal ninety (90%) of the property tax
increment paid to City for each tax year for the period January 1, 2023 to
January 1, 2037.

Section 3.7 is hereby deleted in its entirety.
Section 4.1 is hereby amended and replaced as follows:

4.1  Developer will rehabilitate the Property into a Mixed Use Property
including residential and retail uses.

Section 8.1 is hereby amended and replaced as follows:
FOR THE CITY:

City of Appleton

Community and Economic Development Department
100 North Appleton Street

Appleton, W1 54911-4799

Attn: Karen E. Harkness

With a copy to:

City of Appleton

City Attorney’s Office

100 North Appleton Street

Appleton, WI 54911-4799

Attn: Attorney Christopher R. Behrens



XI.

XII.

XII.

FOR THE DEVELOPER:

Zuelke Flats LLC
P.O. Box 6331

Fishers, IN 46038
Attn: Matt Cremer

With a copy to:

Husch Blackwell LLP

511 North Broadway

Suite 1100

Milwaukee, W1 53202

Attn: Attorney Valerie A. Johnston

Definitions. Any capitalized terms not defined herein shall have the meanings
ascribed in the Development Agreement.

Counterparts. This Amendment may be executed in one or more counterparts, each
of which shall be deemed an original, but all of which together shall constitute one
and the same instrument. Delivery of an executed counterpart of a signature page
of this Amendment by telecopy or other electronic imaging means shall be effective
as delivery of a manually executed counterpart of this Amendment.

Ratification. Except as expressly modified by this Amendment, all of the terms and
conditions of the Development Agreement shall remain in full force and effect and
binding upon the parties and the parties hereby ratify the Development Agreement
as amended herein.

[SIGNATURE PAGES FOLLOW]



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Amendment as of the
day and year first written above.

CITY OF APPLETON:

By:

Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor

ATTEST:

By:

Kami Lynch, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
. SS.
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY )

Personally came before methis__ day of , 2021, Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor,
and Kami Lynch, City Clerk, of the City of Appleton respectively, to me known to be the persons
who executed the foregoing instrument and acknowledged the same in the capacity and for the
purposes therein intended.

Print Name:
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My commission is/expires:

APPROVED AS TO FORM:

Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney

CityLlaw A17-1014

This document was drafted by:
[Valerie A. Johnston, Husch Blackwell LLP]

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]



DEVELOPER:
Zuelke Flats LLC
By: TD Zuelke MM, LLC, its Manager

By: TD Zuelke Investors, its Manager

By:
Name:
Its:

STATE OF )

 SS.
COUNTY )
Personally came before me this day of , 2021, the
of , to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing

instrument and acknowledged the same in the capacity and for the purposes therein intended.

Print Name:
Notary Public, State of Wisconsin
My commission is/expires:




SCHEDULE 1
Legal Description of the Property

[To be verified by City Surveyor prior to recording]
Part of Lot Three (3), Block 5, Appleton Plat (aka Second Ward Plat), all according to the

recorded Assessor’s Map of the City of Appleton, being located in the SE ¥4 of the SW1/4 of
Section 26, Township 21 North, Range 17 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie, Wisconsin.



SCHEDULE 2
Legal Description of the Vacated Alley and Lease

[To be verified by City Surveyor prior to recording]

All of the East 60.48 feet of a 20 foot wide Alley, being a part of Lot Three (3), Block 5,
Appleton Plat (aka Second Ward Plat), all according to the recorded Assessor’s Map of the City
of Appleton, being located in the SE ¥ of the SW ¥ of Section 26, Township 21 North, Range
17 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 1,209 square feet of land
m/l and being more fully described by:

Commencing at the Northeast corner said Lot 3;

Thence South 00°02°58” East 110.00 feet along the West line of Oneida Street and being
coincident with the East line of said Lot 3 to the point of beginning;

Thence continue South 00°02°58” East 20.00 feet coincident with the East line of said Lot 3;
Thence South 89°59°06” West 60.48 feet coincident with the South line of said 20 foot wide
Alley;

Thence North 00°02°58” West 20.00 feet to the North line of said 20 foot wide Alley;

Thence North 89°59°06” East 60.48 feet coincident with the North line of said Alley to the East
line of said Lot 3 and the point of beginning.

[A copy of the signed Lease Agreement will follow]



Schedule 3

<k _BUILDING
31:2:0070:00

. SAPPLETON ST

S

A”?ﬂ Legal Description Tax Parcel 31-2-0070-00

— N e L
p— ‘;‘;‘s{z APPLETON PLAT 2WD E62.15FT OF N120FT LOT 3 [&
: BLK 5 LESS W20|N & LESS WA10FT .

71872021




HOUDINI PLAZA LEASE AGREEMENT

This Lease Agreement (“Lease”) approved by the Appleton Common Council on
2021 is made and entered into by and between the City of Appleton, Wisconsin, a Wisconsin mun|C|paI
corporation (“Landlord” or “the City”) and Zuelke Flats LLC (“Tenant”), located at 103 West College
Avenue and doing business as (“Tenant’s Property™).

The City is the owner of land and improvements commonly known as Houdini Plaza located in the
100 block of West College Avenue.

The City makes available for lease approximately 480 square feet of the plaza designated as the
area immediately south of the property owned by Tenant, as identified on attached diagram marked as
Exhibit A (the “Leased Premises”).

The City desires to lease the Leased Premises to Tenant, and Tenant desires to lease the Leased
Premises from the City for the term, at the rental and upon the covenants, conditions and provisions herein
set forth.

THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises herein, contained and other good and
valuable consideration, it is agreed:

1. Term.

A. The City hereby leases the Leased Premises to Tenant, and Tenant hereby leases the same
from the City, for an initial term beginning at such time when all parties have signed this Agreement and
ending on December 31, 2038 (the “Initial Term™). The Tenant shall have the option to extend the Lease
for successive ten (10) year periods (each, a “Renewal Term”) provided a) the total term of this Lease shall
not exceed 98 years, b) Tenant owns the Tenant’s Property as of the first day of each Renewal Period, ¢)
the Landlord and Tenant reach mutually agreeable terms as to the Rental Payments for such Renewal Period
as set forth herein.

2. Consideration.

A. As consideration, Tenant will provide to the City an annual payment (the ‘“Rental
Payments™) as follows: For 2021, 2022, 2023, 2024, and 2025 payments shall be waived; thereafter the
annual payment shall be $1,800 for 2026 and each subsequent year of the Term, the annual rental payment
shall increase $100; for example $1,900 for 2027, $2,000 for 2028, etc. Payments shall be due on or before
January 31 each year. In addition, and as additional consideration, the City agrees to lease the Leased
Premises to Tenant in exchange for Tenant’s conveyance of a portion of the previously vacated alley back
to the City, pursuant to the terms of a separate Development Agreement. Rental Payments for subsequent
Renewal Terms shall be negotiated by the parties and reflect an amount consistent with the payments made
in the Initial Term taking into consideration inflationary increases and rates paid for similar leased City
property at the time of establishing rates for the Renewal Term.

3. Use.

A Tenant shall use the Leased Premises for the sole purpose of providing an outdoor
recreational patio space.

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 1 of 11



B. Tenant shall allow the public access to and use of the Leased Premises for outdoor
recreational purposes provided the Tenant may post reasonable rules for the use of the Leased Premises
from time to time with approval from the City which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

C. Tenant shall not permit the Leased Premises to be used for any commercial purpose not in
connection with or incidental to the Tenant’s (and any commercial tenant(s) of Tenant) use of the Tenant’s

Property.

4, Furniture and Other Improvements.

A Tenant will purchase and provide all furniture necessary for the Leased Premises said
furniture subject to the reasonable approval by the Director of Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management
prior to purchase and installation. Tenant shall be responsible for all furniture placed within the Leased
Premises.

B. Tenant will provide the fencing necessary to separate the Leased Premises from the
remainder of Houdini Plaza. Tenant shall first obtain street occupancy permits from the City if fencing,
canopies or the like will be permanently affixed to the Plaza and all necessary City permits will not be
unreasonably withheld provided the plans for the Leased Premises are in material accordance with the
design shown on Exhibit B (provided Tenant may make non-material changes during construction).
Fencing will be decorative in nature as depicted in the renditions attached hereto as Exhibit C. Tenant shall
provide the City’s Director of Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management with a sample of the proposed
fencing for approval by the City prior to any installation thereof. Tenant shall also notify the City when
fencing installation is scheduled so the City may meet with the fence installer prior to commencement of
any installation.

5. Property Maintenance.

A. During the Lease Term, and in consideration of the opportunity to lease the space, the
Tenant shall maintain all Leased Premises and immediate surrounding areas on a daily basis throughout the
year. Such maintenance shall include but not be limited to waste, litter and cigarette butt disposal, walkway
cleaning, and general site inspection, consistent with standards for operation of a mixed use residential
building and those standards reasonably established by the City’s Parks, Recreation and Facilities
Management Department. In addition, to allow for ingress and egress during cold weather months, Tenant
shall maintain a path clear of snow and ice from the rear doors of Tenant’s Property up to the fence openings
to Houdini Plaza.

B. Upon conclusion of this Agreement, the Leased Premises shall be left in a good and clean
condition just as said premises was delivered to the Tenant at the start of this Agreement excepting the
improvements made by Tenant, and for reasonable wear and tear. Tenant shall be permitted to remove its
personal property from the Leased Premises.

6. Insurance and Indemnification.

A. Tenant and the City shall, each at its own expense, maintain a policy or policies of
comprehensive general liability insurance with respect to the respective activities of each in the Leased
Premises with the premiums thereon fully paid on or before due date, issued by and binding upon some
insurance company approved by Landlord, such insurance to afford minimum protection of not less than
$1,000,000 combined single limit coverage of bodily injury, property damage or combination thereof. The
City shall be listed as an additional insured on Tenant's policy or policies of comprehensive general liability

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 2 of 11



insurance, and Tenant shall provide the City with current Certificates of Insurance evidencing Tenant’s
compliance with this Paragraph. Tenant shall obtain the agreement of its insurers to notify the City that a
policy is due to expire at least (10) days prior to such expiration. The City shall not be required to maintain
insurance against thefts within the Leased Premises.

B. FOR GOOD AND VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, THE TENANT AGREES TO
INDEMNIFY, DEFEND AND HOLD HARMLESS THE CITY AND ITS OFFICERS, OFFICIALS,
EMPLOYEES AND AGENTS FROM AND AGAINST ANY AND ALL LIABILITY, LOSS,
DAMAGE, CLAIMS, EXPENSES, COSTS (INCLUDING ATTORNEY’S FEES) ARISING OUT
OF THIS AGREEMENT AND TENANT’S USE OF THE LEASED PREMISES CAUSED IN
WHOLE OR IN PART BY ANY NEGLIGENT ACT OR OMISSION OF THE TENANT, ANYONE
DIRECTLY OR INDIRECTLY EMPLOYED BY THE TENANT, GUESTS OR INVITEES OF
THE TENANT OR ANYONE WHOSE ACTS THE TENANT MAY BE LIABLE FOR, EXCEPT
WHERE CAUSED BY THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT OF THE CITY.

THE UNDERSIGNED TENANT HAS READ AND THOROUGHLY CONSIDERED THE
ABOVE LANGUAGE, UNDERSTANDING THAT CERTAIN RIGHTS MAY BE FORFEITED AS
A RESULT OF THIS LANGUAGE.

7. Signs.

A. Following the City’s consent, Tenant shall have the right to place on the Leased Premises,
at locations mutually selected, any signs which are permitted by applicable zoning ordinances and private
restrictions. The City may refuse approval of any sign deemed too large, deceptive, unattractive or
otherwise inconsistent with or inappropriate to the Leased Premises. In addition, Tenant consents and
agrees not to display signs including, but not limited to, establishment advertising signs, signs of a political
nature (whether supporting, against or otherwise taking a position regarding an elective office, candidate,
incumbent or issue being considered by an elective body or referendum) or the like shall be displayed on
the side of Tenant’s Property facing Houdini Plaza with the exception of the establishment names appearing
on canopies installed by Tenant.

B. In addition, the City agrees that Tenant shall at all times have the right to post signage
stating that any and all use of the Leased Premises as a recreational facility is subject to the Wisconsin
Recreational Immunity Statute set forth in Wisconsin Statute § 895.52.

8. Notices.

A. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing, signed by the party giving
the notice, and shall be deemed given when (a) hand delivered to the party to whom the notice is addressed,;
(b) deposited in the United States mail by certified mail, postage prepaid return receipt requested; or (c)
delivered by overnight courier delivery service (i.e., Federal Express, UPS, etc.), and addressed to the party
at the address shown below:

To the City:
City of Appleton, Wisconsin
Department of Parks, Recreation and Facilities Management
Attn: Director
City of Appleton
1819 East Witzke Boulevard
Appleton, WI 54911

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 3 of 11



With a copy to:
City of Appleton, Wisconsin
Attn: City Attorney
City of Appleton
100 North Appleton Street
Appleton, WI 54911-4799

To the Tenant: Zuelke Flats LLC
P.O. Box 6331
Fishers, IN 46038
Attn: Matt Cremer

Any party may change the address to which notices shall be sent by notice given in accordance with the
terms of this paragraph.

9. Waiver.

No waiver of any default of the City or Tenant hereunder shall be implied from any omission to
take any action on account of such default if such default persists or is repeated, and no express waiver shall
affect any default other than the default specified in the express waiver and that only for the time and to the
extent therein stated. One or more waivers by the City or Tenant shall not be construed as a waiver of a
subsequent breach of the same covenant, term or condition.

10. Compliance with Law.

Tenant shall comply with all laws, orders, ordinances and other public requirements now or
hereafter pertaining to Tenant's use of the Leased Premises. The City shall comply with all laws, orders,
ordinances and other public requirements now or hereafter affecting the Leased Premises.

11. Final Agreement.

This Agreement terminates and supersedes all prior understandings or agreements on the subject
matter hereof. This Agreement may be modified only by a further writing that is duly executed by both
parties.

12. Transferability.

This Lease is intended to be exclusively between the City and Tenant. It shall be non-transferrable
to any other party without the City’s written consent which shall not be unreasonably withheld, conditioned,
or delayed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Tenant may assign this Lease to an affiliate, subsequent
owner, or commercial lessee of the Tenant’s Property and the City’s consent shall not be unreasonably
withheld, conditioned or delayed.

13. Modifications To Contract Must Be In Writing.

None of the covenants, provisions, terms or conditions of this agreement to be kept or performed
by the City or the Tenant shall be in any manner modified, waived, or abandoned, except by written

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 4 of 11



instrument duly signed by both parties and delivered to the City and the Tenant. This document contains
the whole agreement of the parties.

14, Violations of Agreement.

If Tenant violates any terms of this agreement, written notification of the violation shall be served
upon Tenant personally, or by certified mail, and Tenant shall have ten (10) days from service or mailing
of said notice to correct the violation. If, after ten (10) days the violation has not been corrected, the City
shall have the right, at its option, to terminate the Contract without the termination being considered a
breach.

15. Governing Law.

This Agreement shall be governed, construed and interpreted by, through and under the Laws of
the State of Wisconsin.

16, Termination.
Tenant shall have the right to terminate this Lease upon written notice to City during any Renewal
Term and Tenant shall be deemed to have paid to City as liquidated damages the Rental Payment for the

year in which the termination occurs and Tenant shall have no right to any prorated portion of the Rental
Payment for such year.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement on the date first above
written.

CITY OF APPLETON, WISCONSIN

By: Attest:
Jacob A. Woodford, Mayor Kami Lynch, City Clerk

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
. SS.
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY )

Personally came before me this day of , 2021, the above-named Jacob A.
Woodford, Mayor and Kami Lynch, City Clerk to me known to be the persons who executed the foregoing
document and acknowledged the same.

Printed Name:
State of Wisconsin, Outagamie County
My commission is/expires

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 5 of 11



Provision has been made to pay the liability
that will accrue under this contract. Approved as to form:

Anthony Saucerman, Director of Finance Christopher R. Behrens, City Attorney

[SIGNATURES CONTINUE ON THE FOLLOWING PAGE]

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 6 of 11



TENANT
ZUELKE FLATS LLC
By:

Printed Name:
Title:

STATE OF WISCONSIN )
. SS.
OUTAGAMIE COUNTY )

Personally came before me this day of , 2021, the above-named
as to me known to be
the person who executed the foregoing document and acknowledged the same.

Printed Name:
State of
My commission is/expires

This instrument drafted by:
Christopher Behrens, City Attorney
Appleton, Wisconsin

CityLaw: A17-1014

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 7 of 11



EXHIBIT A
Legal Description and Diagram of Leased Premises
[To be verified by City Surveyor prior to recording]

All of the East 60.48 feet of a 20 foot wide Alley, being a part of Lot Three (3), Block 5,
Appleton Plat (aka Second Ward Plat), all according to the recorded Assessor’s Map of the City
of Appleton, being located in the SE ¥4 of the SW % of Section 26, Township 21 North, Range
17 East, City of Appleton, Outagamie County, Wisconsin, containing 1,209 square feet of land
m/l and being more fully described by:

Commencing at the Northeast corner said Lot 3;

Thence South 00°02°58” East 110.00 feet along the West line of Oneida Street and being
coincident with the East line of said Lot 3 to the point of beginning;

Thence continue South 00°02°58” East 20.00 feet coincident with the East line of said Lot 3;
Thence South 89°59°06” West 60.48 feet coincident with the South line of said 20 foot wide
Alley;

Thence North 00°02°58” West 20.00 feet to the North line of said 20 foot wide Alley;

Thence North 89°59°06” East 60.48 feet coincident with the North line of said Alley to the East
line of said Lot 3 and the point of beginning.

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 8 of 11



Appleton
Art Center Inc

Behnke
Prop LLC

Zuelke
Building

N

A

7/8/2021

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC

Page 9 of 11




EXHIBIT B

Design of Proposed Use in Lease Space

SOUTH ONEIDA STREET

FNIAWIDITIOO LEIM

(1) SERN

ey
() smurme o e ez
e e

o ro—.
[3) ‘comomeTE nawps, sTams, s LaNDINGS PR CraL
IO
© mpmss oo ecmoon s

O —
TR

(6) wmwaone cunn s LR e B

(5) B roemon ce ey smwm smow
ZRADE & PAOVISE CONE. SLAB O NATCH ERET.

wharsaldl. associales
prreviey

103 W. COLLEGE AVE.

ZUELKE BUILDING

i

I APPLETON, W1 54811

e s E
vemen: =
O oo
—— 1
rmceerTyLne T

— - RS =T
. MEWLANCACASIG L TRERS

APPRCRUATE)
s
ol

AS100

ARCHITECTURAL SITE PLAN

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC
Page 10 of 11



EXHIBIT C

Rendering of Proposed Fencing to be used in Leased Space

T

ana,
T

o
TE

e

e

e
Ty

arr
e

s
R

B

TS
BT

TGO

su
OIS

e

s
SRS

O SOUTH ELEVATION

ctmL AT N TEE:
PG WO T I A CCMPLEVED

ream
WNCOWST VRSP YIRTECHTY OF THE DHSTING LTELS
RSP I NS CE DA S R 0 Y THE NG
RO ALL MECELL AR OL METAL T3, FLATES,
FPES BAAHETS, MG MiCHCAS FREN EXTERIRFACALE.

TR o TaEALAN

) MY CEATRACTOR TO LM FRCCLCTCAT
MICEKLE WTMbAciA S ot ik O P &

EVEToa OF s ek SEOT CLEM

I STATE VTR PSR RUATICK CFPEE FRCR T
FrocmmNG

o R —
ST T
TERErE BonE PR PR
2ot

) s s meromc unra i Rewns

prerrr ey

() e sossms onacas e W
ety

) asnmero et i swcmL e
SR WP R PR T3
e

O mommTEE R E

() rewsmommmosrsconsT g e
e

O -

Ol —
EENLESRRE

Ol —
e

s s oo R

() rewsmommmce o T w04
o e e

() wwncw o s

e
e L LA PN
sl

O e
e e

R 02 T 49001

@ raumemmomoaTeroce roasaan
DAL e GRS

(@) reweowmme i o wisene
SA N s

@) e e s rosemares vowar
AT AT £
S T AT L 8 o, PR

O —

@ s
s

) mwmscnaios0senem e
ps

) e mrmmorcoce we e R

e
5]

@ TUSDREL AT AT MDEAE TRASEM

(VR BACK WATER (LRTARL 555 CATHL.

SOUTH ELEVATON

Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement
City of Appleton — Zuelke Flats LLC

Page 11 of 11



J /4

ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & REDEVELOPMENT E

August 11, 2020

Tax Incremental District No. 11
Project Plan Amendment

Organizational Joint Review Board Meeting Held: August 10, 2020
Public Hearing Held: August 11, 2020
Adoption by Plan Commission: August 11, 2020
Adoption by Common Council: August 19, 2020
Approval by the Joint Review Board: September 10, 2020

= EHI ERS BUILDING COMMUNITIES. IT'S WHAT WE DO.
- . r— : -/ N2IW23350 Ridgeview Parkway West, Suite 100, Waukesha, Wi 53188 (B51) 697-8500 Info@ehlers-inc.com (£ ehlers-inc.com



Table of Contents

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY L.ttt 1
INTENT AND PURPOSE OF DISTRICT AND THE AMENDMENT .......cccoviiiiiniiniincncccee 3
DISTRICT BOUNDARY MAP & IDENTIFICATION OF PARCELS TO BE ADDED .................... 17
IDENTIFICATION OF PARCELS TO BE ADDED........cccciotiieiiniiecieccneicceeeeee e 19
MAPS SHOWING EXISTING USES AND CONDITIONS .....ccocoiiiieiinrcctecceeeceeeeene 22
EQUALIZED VALUE TEST ..ottt ettt 24
STATEMENT OF KIND, NUMBER AND LOCATION OF PROPOSED PUBLIC WORKS AND

OTHER PROUJECTS ...ttt 25
MAP SHOWING PROPOSED IMPROVEMENTS AND USES.........ccoooiicceccee 28
DETAILED LIST OF PROJECT COSTS ..ottt 31
ECONOMIC FEASIBILITY STUDY, FINANCING METHODS, AND THE TIME WHEN COSTS

OR MONETARY OBLIGATIONS RELATED ARE TO BE INCURRED........cccccccvmiiiinniiinines 32
ANNEXED PROPERTY ...ttt ettt 37
PROPOSED ZONING ORDINANCE CHANGES...........ccooiicccrcc e 37

PROPOSED CHANGES IN MASTER PLAN, MAP, BUILDING CODES AND ORDINANCES .37

RELOCATION ...ttt 37
ORDERLY DEVELOPMENT OF THE CITY .ottt 38
LIST OF ESTIMATED NON-PROJECT COSTS ..ot 39

OPINION OF ATTORNEY FOR THE CITY OF APPLETON ADVISING WHETHER THE PLAN
IS COMPLETE AND COMPLIES WITH WISCONSIN STATUTES 66.1105.........cccccvveeinnennee. 40

CALCULATION OF THE SHARE OF PROJECTED TAX INCREMENTS ESTIMATED TO BE
PAID BY THE OWNERS OF PROPERTY IN THE OVERLYING TAXING JURISDICTIONS....41



SECTION f1:
Executive Summary

Description of District

Tax Incremental District (“TID”) No. 11 (“District”) is a blighted area district created by the City on August
2,2017. In accordance with its Project Plan (“Plan”), the objectives for the District are to eliminate blight
and stimulate the redevelopment of East College Avenue approximately from Drew Street to just west of
Superior Street, South to Water Street and North to E. Washington Street. A complete description of the
District, individual development areas, and objectives related to those areas can be found in Section 2 of
this Plan.

Amendment Purpose

The City has identified 61 parcels within Tax Incremental District No. 3 (TID No. 3) comprising an area
that continues to have redevelopment potential. Since TID No. 3’s expenditure period has passed, the City
is unable to incur further Project Costs within this area. This Plan Amendment will add these 61 parcels to
the District as permitted under Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(4)(h)2. Four additional parcels not presently located
within TID No. 3 will also be added to the District as part of this Plan Amendment. This will allow the City
to promote further redevelopment in the downtown area in furtherance of the objectives of both TIDs No.
3 and 11. The effective date of the territory additions for valuation purposes will be January 1, 2020. The
Plan also sets forth additional Project Costs the City may incur within the District and the territory being
added to the District.

Summary of Findings
As required by Wis. Stat. § 66.1105, and as documented in this Plan Amendment and the exhibits contained
and referenced herein, the following findings are made:

1. That “but for” this Plan Amendment: 1) the City’s economic development objectives for the
District will not be achieved; and 2) additional potential development within the District may not
occur in the manner, at the values, or within the timeframe desired by the City. Development
Areas identified in this Plan Amendment contain various impediments to redevelopment including
obsolete structures, structures requiring substantial renovation, substandard access, and inadequate
parking. Due to the additional development costs associated with brownfield redevelopment such as
demolition, remediation and provision of off-street parking, Tax Incremental Financing (“TIF”) is often
required to make a project economically feasible. Without use of TIF, redevelopment projects that the
City wants to encourage are unlikely to attract needed private investment capital. It is therefore the
City’s judgment that “but for” the use of TIF within the District and the territory to be added, that
redevelopment is not likely to occur in the manner, at the values, or within the timeframe desired by
the City. Since the District includes various potential Development Areas, the City will evaluate
specific projects as they are proposed regarding any requested TIF assistance.

2. The economic benefits of amending the District, as measured by increased employment, business
and personal income, and property value, are sufficient to compensate for the cost of the
improvements. Beyond the expected increase in incremental property value, development within the
District will result in short-term employment opportunites as a result of both public and private
construction, as well as long-term employment opportunites resulting from commercial and retail
operations that will locate in or be retained within the District. Implementation of the Plan Amendment
will also provide housing opportunities, and commercial enterprise providing goods and services to

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 1 August 11, 2020



workers and residents in the area. The City expects that the level of economic benefit derived from
implementing the amended Plan will be more than sufficient to compensate for the Project Costs to be
undertaken.

3. The benefits of the proposal outweigh the anticipated tax increments to be paid by the owners of
property in the overlying taxing jurisdictions. As identified in 2. above, the economic benefits of the
Plan Amendment are expected to more than compensate for the Project Costs. These same benefits will
be enjoyed by taxpayers of all overlying taxing jurisdictions. The City finds that the benefits of the Plan
Amendment similarly outweigh the cost of the anticipated tax increments to be paid.

4. Not less than 50% by area of the real property within the District, as amended, is a blighted area within
the meaning of Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(2)(ae)]1.

5. Based on the foregoing finding, the District is declared to be, and remains, a blighted area district based
on the identification and classification of the property included within the District.

6. The District’s Project Costs relate directly to promoting the elimination of blight.

7. The equalized value of the taxable property within the territory to be added to the District, plus the
value increment of all other existing tax incremental districts within the City, does not exceed 12% of
the total equalized value of taxable property within the City.

8. Improvements to be made in the District are likely to significantly enhance the value of substantially
all of the other real property in the District

9. The Plan for the District is feasible and is in conformity with the Master Plan of the City.

10. The City estimates that 10% of the territory within the District will devoted to retail business at the end
of the District’s maximum expenditure period, pursuant to Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(5)(b).

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton

Prepared by Ehlers Page 2 August 11, 2020



SECTION 2:
Intent and Purpose of District and the Amendment

The District was created by the City of Appleton under the authority provided by Wis. Stat. § 66.1105 to
eliminate blight and stimulate the redevelopment of East College Avenue approximately from Drew Street
to just west of Superior Street, South to Water Street and North to E. Washington Street. This area is
primarily characterized by a large blighted and vacant commercial site and a mixture of small businesses,
office space, and housing which have the potential to, and in some cases already have, created a blighting
influence on the surrounding area. The original District consisted of approximately 39 acres of land with
the vast majority zoned Central Business District. This Amendment will add approximately 29 acres of land
to the District, further identied as Development Areas #9 through #13 in the Section. A minority of parcels
in the District are currently zoned Planned Development Multi-Family, Public Institution, Single-Family
Residential, and Multi-Family Residential.

The District was created as a “Blighted Area” district based upon the finding that at least 50%, by area of
the real property within the District, was blighted within the meaning of Wis. Stat. § 66.1105 and 66.1333
described below.

Blight is described as: the presence of a substantial number of substandard or deteriorating structures or
site improvements; inadequate street layout or faulty lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility
or usefulness, or conditions which endanger life or property by fire and other causes, or any combination
of such factors that impairs or arrests the sound growth of a city. This definition also includes land upon
which building, or structures have been demolished and which because of obsolete platting, diversity of
ownership or deterioration of structures or site improvements, or otherwise, substantially impairs or
arrests the sound growth of the community.

This Plan, as amended, outlines the City’s role in assisting with the redevelopment of vacant, blighted, and
underutilized properties and the rehabilitation or conservation of existing properties as needed to support
the urban renewal of this area. The investment in this District will:

e climinate blight and foster urban renewal through public and private investment.

e enhance the development potential of private property within and adjacent to the District.

e stabilize and increase property values in the area.

e promote retention, expansion, attraction and reuse through the development of an improved area

thereby facilitating the creation of new jobs and increased tax base.

e improve the overall appearance of public and private spaces.

e strengthen the economic well-being and economic diversity of the area.

e provide appropriate financial incentives to encourage business expansion.

e maximize the Districts strategic location in Downtown Appleton.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 3 August 11, 2020



There are thirteen identified development areas (see map below) within the District that include a
combination of redevelopment and rehabilitation sites. Areas #1 through #8 are located within the original
District boundary, with Areas #9 through #13 incorporated through this Amendment. The following map
and accompanying narrative highlight the key development areas targeted for redevelopment and
rehabilitation/conservation in this District that would not happen otherwise but for the creation of this
District.

_: § City of Appleton
| £43) Pl Tax Increment Financing District #11
T — VA L || Proposed Improvements and Public Works Projects
1 o % by Development Areas
T "E _ TIF 11 Amended
f N U'). SPublic Works Projects Amended TIF 11
% Public Works Projects Original TIF 11
| ! FF Redevelopmen
| o T A Renaa:un:lmn :
[0 Development Area 1 [] Development Area 8
| I Development Area 2 B Development Area 9
| [E71 Development Area 3 [ Development Area 10
(2 || EEE Development Area 4 I Development Area 11
PACKARD ST < [0 Development Area 5 Development Araa 12
— o 7 Development Area 8 [ Development Area 13
} H H } UZJ W Development Area 7
T EEEEE 8 S = — ——
| 11_3_':::: o — H | I
» T < |
T
=z — It o
o o HARRIS ST g
@ . I
> g 1 |
(=] |
3 = . T
: = |
k. o
L T r
i o [
/ | g w
- i
: 5 3
() 35 =}
w |
L o =1
2 g
<
JOHNSTON ST CIfy ' ' 8
COLLEGE AV
ALLEY - = —
T
S H
LAWRENCE ST =
. : B e
w A =
= ; BTl
= - b
w S 4
EIGHTH =
ST
Q .
0 1875 375 750 Fox River
| ' Feet '
Comm.& Econ. Dev. Dept. April 2020|
TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton

Prepared by Ehlers Page 4 August 11, 2020



Development Area #1: The largest site in this Development Area is commonly known as “The Bluff Site.”
This site is comprised of Trinity Lutheran Church and Michiels Fox Banquet Rivertyme Catering.

Trinity Lutheran Church is located at 209 Allen Street and is approximately 1.86 acres. This site originally
consisted of several residential lots. In 1924, Trinity English Lutheran Church was constructed on the
northwest corner of Allen Street and Kimball Street. In 1954, a parish center was built on the north end of
the property. The church and parish center were connected via an addition in 1963, which greatly expanded
the church sanctuary. Another addition was completed in 1996 on the northwest side to create a lobby with
an elevator. The building is currently vacant as the parish relocated to another site in December of 2016,
when the site was purchased by One Lawrence Street, LLC, in January 2017. This local developer intended
to demolish the site for redevelopment.

Michiels Fox Banquet Rivertyme Catering is located at 111 Kimball Street and is approximately 2.15 acres.
This site originally consisted of several residential lots. In 1917, the Appleton Vocational School was
constructed on the southwest corner of Allen Street and Kimball Street. The school was the precursor to the
Fox Valley Technical College. In 1935, the portion of Allen Street south of Kimball Street was vacated,
and the Appleton Vocational School built a second building to the southeast of the original building. An
addition was built onto the south end of the original building in 1952. The auto mechanics shop was
expanded in 1954. The Appleton Vocational School moved to Grand Chute in 1972 and became the Fox
Valley Technical Institute. The school buildings on this site were razed in 1975. The Elks Club built the
present building on the site in 1982. The building and property were sold to Michiels Fox Banquet in the
late 1980°s. Michiels operated a banquet and catering business from this facility until December of 2016
when they moved operations to their Menasha facility, vacated this site and sold the property to a local
developer, One Lawrence Street, LLC, in January 2017 whose intentions were to demolish the site for
redevelopment.

Subsequently, in December of 2019, U.S. Venture, Inc. purchased both 209 Allen Street and 111 Kimball
Street sites with the intention to build their National Headquarters. Demolition of the Church and Michiels
buildings are underway.

Future possible uses for these sites may include office, mixed use, public parking, public library, medical
clinic, hotel, multi-family apartments and/or condominiums. The timing for this redevelopment is 2017-
2022, and the proposed construction costs are estimated at $81.6 million. Potentially, a portion of this
would be exempt from property taxes if owned by a not-for-profit or tax-exempt entity.

The Bluff Site is highly visible from the Oneida Street Bridge, a primary gateway into the City of Appleton
and Appleton’s Downtown. Redevelopment of this site would further benefit, and potentially induce
investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this site. This development area would
benefit from increased commercial activity from Development Area #2 along College Avenue and
Development Area #3 Solider Square Parking Ramp and Plaza Area.

This information was largely taken from a Phase 1 Environmental Site Assessment conducted by OMNNI
Associates in June 2016.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 5 August 11, 2020



An aerial view of the bluff site.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 6 August 11, 2020



Development Area #2: This is the site south of Lawrence Street, north of Water Street, east of S. Morrison
Street and west of S. Durkee Street and is commonly referred to as “Bluff Site 2”. This site is comprised
of 16 separate parcels and had several owners but currently there are only two owners. U.S. Venture, Inc.
or their proxy and the YMCA of the Fox Cities. The YMCA of the Fox Cities owns 7 of the 16 parcels.
The 7 parcels owned by the YMCA of the Fox Cities are comprised of 1 vacant lot, 5 vacant homes and 1
surface parking lot. Five (5) of the 7 parcels are on the tax rolls.

The remaining parcels owned by U.S. Venture or their proxy and have been or are in the process of being
demolished. U.S. Venture intends to use this area for future growth and an approximate value is not known
at this time.

This blighted area could benefit from redevelopment and rehabilitation or be incorporated in part or in
whole into a larger site for future redevelopment. This Development Area would benefit from increased
commercial activity from Development Area #1 and along College Avenue.

An aerial view of bluff site 2.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 7 August 11, 2020



Development Area #3. The Solider Square Ramp located at 120 S. Oneida Street was built in 1966, has
424 parking stalls, and is a blighted parcel in very poor condition. The YMCA purchased this ramp from
the City of Appleton on February 1, 1996 for $1. The Purchase Agreement contains a reversionary and
other use clause. This development area is shown as Central Business District designation on the Future
Land Use Map. The image below is a concept that was included in Chapter 14: Downtown Plan. It is
acknowledged that the current use of this site as parking is imperative to the continued success of the
YMCA, and the lost parking stalls, due to demolition of this structure, will need to be replaced in close
proximity to this site. Development Area #3 has negatively impacted other properties due to being blighted,
is not aesthetically pleasing, is structurally challenging, and needs to be redeveloped to enhance the overall
area and provide a positive impression.

This blighted area could benefit from redevelopment as a stand-alone project or be incorporated into a larger
site for future redevelopment. This Development Area would benefit from increased commercial activity
from Development Areas #1 and #2 and along College Avenue. Due to the City’s release of an RFP for a
mixed-use library, Commercial Horizons, in early 2017, proposed to construct a mixed-use library on this
site. The City has, and at some point, may continue to complete due diligence on this proposal.

i
~ o

S MORRISON ST

SOLDIER'S SQUARE

AERIAL PERSPECTIVE

Wi

Engber
Aﬁdersgon

ARCHITECTS

SOLDIER’S SQUARE/YMCA PARKING LOT PERSPECTIVE

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 8 August 11, 2020



Development Area #4: The historic Zuelke Building located at 103 W. College Avenue was built in 1931
with 5 additional floors built in 1951. There are approximately 76,540 sq.ft., within the building and the
vacancy rate is high due to a pending re-development project. The building has a total of 12 floors with two
elevator shafts, one elevator services the original 7 floors and later serviced up to the 10" floor. The second
elevator services the addition of the 11™ and 12" floors. The inability of the main elevator to access the 11"
and 12™ floors is a significant burden and will require extensive engineering and updating to facilitate the
modification.

The first seven floors in the original 1931 building were largely constructed using marble originally
designed and planned for a church in Milwaukee. Due to the depression, the church was unable to accept
delivery of the marble. The quality and uniqueness of the marble provides much character and status to the
building. However, preservation of the marble makes it difficult to update the HVAC and plumbing
systems, many of which are original to a 1950-1953 renovation of the building.

The building was considered “fireproof” when constructed, however new NFPA 1 rules would require
installation of sprinklers throughout the entire building with any substantial renovation. The marble once
again makes this endeavor very costly.

This neo-gothic high-rise building, named for Irving Zuelke a local businessman and philanthropist, was
added to the National Register of Historic Places in 1982 as part of the College Avenue Historic District.

The owners of this building are interested in rehabilitation into mixed use by utilizing TIF and/or Federal
and State Historic Tax Credits, but they recognize the challenges of this blighted site. They have a desire
to preserve the historic nature of the building, including the marble, but they recognize that the antiquated
infrastructure upgrades, parking challenges, and the high cost of construction/rehab will require several
layers of funding and support from the City.

Rehabilitation of this development area would further enhance the entire area by increasing commercial
activity along College Avenue. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and potentially induce,
investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area. The timing for this
redevelopment is undetermined based on construction bids, funding and timing of other projects. The
proposed project will have an approximate value of $10 million upon completion of the proposed
renovations.

100 West College Avenue (south side) Zuelke Building to Houdini Plaza

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 9 August 11, 2020



Development Area #5: This area is comprised of City Center Plaza and the vacant land where the Blue
Ramp and Washington Place once stood. 10 College Avenue, City Center Plaza, was constructed in 1986
and is located in the heart of Appleton’s Business District. This 3-story, 190,000 sq. ft. multi-use building
contains both retail and office spaces. Major tenants include Appleton Area School District, Saleytics,
ThedaCare, Air Wisconsin, Joseph’s Shoes and Murray Photos. The current vacancy rate is 20%, and the
property is for sale. The local owners may use TIF to assist with conservation and renovations for tenants
of approximately $1,000,000 within the next three years.

122 E. College Avenue, City Center East Office Condo, was constructed in 1974 as Gimbals Department
Store and was converted to office condo in 2003. This 150,000 sq. ft. building contains office space with
major tenants that include: ThedaCare, Appleton Area School District, Thrivent Financial and Hoffman
Planning Design and Construction. The current vacancy rate is 15%. The local owners may use TIF to
assist with conservation and renovations for tenants of approximately $2,000,000 within the next three
years.

100 N. Appleton Street, City Center West Office Condo, was constructed in 1960 as HC Prange Company
and was converted to office condo units in 1996. The City of Appleton owns the top two floors and space
on the first floor. The Pfefferle group owns the balance of the condo units consisting of 62,318 sq. ft. The
current vacancy rate is 5%. The local owners may use TIF for renovation and/or remodeling of tenant space
of approximately $1,000,000 within the next three years.

The Blue Ramp, located at 120 N. Appleton Street, was built in 1963, with 7 4 post-tension decks replacing
original reinforced decks in 1986, had 401 stalls parking ramp, and was demolished in 2019 as it was
blighted, a substandard and/or deteriorating structure, and had an inadequate layout for today’s parking
needs. The vacant land located at 103 E. Washington Street was most recently Washington Place. This
blighted building was demolished in 2013, and this is a prime site for redevelopment. As of March 1, 2020,
the City of Appleton has an exclusive planning option with Merge Development on both the Blue Ramp
and Washington Place sites. This option will allow Merge Development to complete all due diligence
necessary to determine physical and financial feasibility of constructing a mixed-use development with
rental units and light retail space. At this time, it is estimated that a development such as this would add a
minimum of $4 million in assessed value to our tax rolls.

This blighted Development Area #5 could benefit from rehabilitation and conservation and/or incorporate
portions into a larger site for future redevelopment. Since this entire area is highly visible and an integral
part of the Downtown, this Development Area would benefit from increased commercial activity along
College Avenue and the other Development Areas. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and
potentially induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.
Potentially, a portion of this would be exempt from property taxes if owned by a not-for-profit or tax-
exempt entity.

100 West College Avenue (north side) Hoffman/ThedaCare to The Building
for Kids Children’s Museum/City Center

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 10 August 11, 2020



Development Area #6: This area includes Chase Bank and parking, a parklet, and the 222 Building.

Chase Bank, located at 200 W. College Avenue, is a 45,000 sq. ft. building currently listed for sale. This
is a prime redevelopment opportunity with JP Morgan Chase Bank remaining as the ground floor tenant.
Located on College Avenue, the main street leading from the interstate into a vibrant Downtown, this site
is in close proximity to Lawrence University, City and County municipal buildings, and many other
attractions. The site encompasses half of a city block with access on three of the surrounding streets.
Potential uses could be office, residential, and hospitality. In 2019, as recommended in the Downtown
Mobility Study, adopted by Council in 2016, Appleton Street was converted from one-way southbound
traffic to two-way traffic, creating improved access and visibility to the property.

The parklet (small parcel currently decorated with lights, tables and chairs) is owned by Pfefferle
Management and located between two vibrant businesses.

The 222 Building, located at 222 W. College Avenue, was originally constructed in 1952, and an addition
on the west side was constructed in 1964. Pfefferle Group purchased the building in 2003. The current
vacancy rate is 25%. The owners may use TIF for renovating the vacant floors and/or a possible restaurant
on the first floor for an estimated cost of $2,000,000.

This blighted Development Area #6 could benefit from rehabilitation and conservation and/or incorporate
portions into a larger site for future redevelopment. Since this entire area is highly visible and an integral
part of the Downtown, this Development Area would benefit from increased commercial activity along
College Avenue and the other Development Areas. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and
potentially induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.

200 West College Avenue (north side) Chase Bank to 222 Building

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 11 August 11, 2020



Development Area #7: This area encompasses Gabriel Furniture and businesses in the 200 block of East
College Avenue.

The Gabriel Furniture building has been on the corner of College Avenue and Morrison Street for over 100
years. Built in 1888 by the Konemic Lodge, International Order of the Odd Fellows, it became the first
home for several local organizations including The Knights of Pythius, Elks Lodge 337, Loyal Order of the
Moose, and Appleton Eagles. In 1928, Joseph Gabriel opened Gabriel Furniture at 201 E. College Avenue.
Over the next 60 years, the business flourished and grew. In the 1960’s, a metal covering was put on the
facade to make the property “look more modern”. In 1988, Joe and Ruby Wells, bought the business and
in 1990, they purchased 201 and 207 E. College Avenue. In the early 1990’s, the Wells then purchased
209 and 211 E. College Avenue (former Shirley’s Children’s Shop) combining all the sites with interior
connections. The four buildings were used as a retail furniture store utilizing approximately 35,000 sq. ft.
for showroom with additional basement space for storage until 2019.

In May 2019, Fore Development purchased all four buildings for redevelopment into a mixed-use project
named Gabriel Lofts. This project will have 21 market rate apartments and street level commercial/retail
space. These efforts will make this blighted area more aesthetically pleasing through redevelopment,
rehabilitation and conservation. This project will add approximately $4 million in increment to our tax rolls.

Additional buildings in this area were built from 1870 thru 1978. Development Area #7 is characterized
by small parcels with historic/older buildings and could be redeveloped individually or as a coordinated
effort. Rehabilitation of the existing buildings and property would further enhance the entire area. Since
this entire area is highly visible and an integral part of the Downtown, this Development Area would benefit
from increased commercial activity along College Avenue and the other Development Areas.
Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and potentially induce, investment in parcels located
surrounding and in close proximity to this area.

200 East College Avenue (south side) Lou’s Brews to Gabriel Furniture

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 12 August 11, 2020



Development Area #8: Includes the 300 block of E. College Avenue, as well as parcels North of Johnston
Street, between N. Durkee Street and N. Drew Street. In the recently updated Comprehensive Plan
approved unanimously by the Appleton Common Council on March 15, 2017, the 300 block of E. College
Avenue is conceptually identified as a site for new multi-family residential development over a mix of
commercial/office space which could serve the needs of existing property owners, including but not limited
to, Heid Music and Lawrence University. The goal would be to fill a housing demand, transition to small-
scale neighborhoods, and enhance the immediate surroundings with small commercial space to pull foot
traffic north of College Avenue. *Narrative taken from Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030.

Fore Development plans to redevelop 118 N. Durkee Street into the Avant Apartments. The Avant
Apartments is a 33-unit multi-family, market rate apartment complex with an approximate incremental
assessed value of $4 million. This project is anticipated to be open Summer of 2020.

Tadych Investments plans to redevelop 320 E. College Avenue into a 6 story, mixed use building containing
39 apartments, 44 indoor parking stalls, and 2,770 sq. ft. of commercial space with an estimated assessed
value of $9.0 million. This project should be completed in the fall of 2022.

This blighted area deals with parking challenges, ingress and egress difficulties, deteriorating structures,
accessibility and obsolescence. This area is characterized by small parcels with historic/older buildings and
could be redeveloped individually or in groups. Rehabilitation of the existing buildings and property would
further enhance the entire area. Since this entire area is highly visible and an integral part of the Downtown,
this Development Area would benefit from increased commercial activity along College Avenue and the
other Development Areas. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and potentially induce,
investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.

300 East College Avenue (north side) History Museum at the Castle to Heid Music

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 13 August 11, 2020



G S

ki Lt

- sl —

THE CONCEPTUAL SITE PLAN SHOWS PARKING
BEHIND THE PROPOSED DEVELOPMENT JUST
NORTH OF JOHNSTON STREET, BETWEEN
N. DURKEE STREET AND N. DREW STREET

PERSPECTIVE OF CONCEPTUAL REDEVELOPMENT OF 300 BLOCK OF E. COLLEGE AVENUE
VANTAGE POINT IS LOOKING SOUTHWEST TOWARD THE FOX RIVER FROM THE CORNER OF
N. DREW STREET AND E. WASHINGTON STREET.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 14 August 11, 2020



Development Area #9: The Gannett Building, 306 W. Washington Street and adjacent parking area is a
redevelopment site for Crescent Lofts, a 69-unit redevelopment project utilizing WHEDA Tax Credits and
Historic Tax Credits. This building was added to the State and National Register in 2019.

Of the total 69 units, 58- units will be designated for low to moderate-income households and 11 units will
be market rate. Estimated construction costs are around $13 million and construction may begin in 2020.

This blighted area deals with parking challenges, ingress and egress difficulties, deteriorating structures,
accessibility and obsolescence. This area is characterized by multiple smaller parcels with an historic/older
building and could be redeveloped individually or in groups. Rehabilitation of the existing building and/or
property would further enhance the entire area. Encouraging development north of College Avenue has
been a longtime priority for the City and is a potential catalyst for other projects.

Development Area #10: The existing Library Site located north of E. Washington Street between N.
Appleton Street and N. Oneida Street. The library occupies the northern half of the block, while the
southern half of the block is a separate lot currently owned by the City of Appleton and used as surface
parking. The site’s close proximity to City Center Plaza, City Hall, and College Avenue make it a high
priority location for future development north of College Avenue. If the library were to leave this site (or
stay) the development concept envisioned is a three to five story mixed use development including a
combination of office, commercial, and residential uses. Potentially, current on-site surface parking would
need to be accommodated on-street and in the Yellow Ramp. Cost, timing and exact project(s) are not
known at this time.

This blighted area deals with parking challenges, ingress and egress difficulties, deteriorating structures,
accessibility and obsolescence. Rehabilitation of the existing buildings and property, conservation and/or
incorporate portions of this site into a large site for future development. Since this entire area is highly
visible and an integral part of the Downtown, this Development Area would benefit from increased
commercial activity. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit, and potentially induce, investment
in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.

Development Area #11: The current transit center site, located between the library and the Yellow Ramp,
is also strategically located near a number of key destinations downtown. The 2010-2030 Comprehensive
Plan shares a concept envisioned for this site as a vertical mixed-use building which would maintain the
transit center as the primary use on the first floor of the building. The additional 3-4 stories of development
over the transit center would include a mix of office and commercial uses. Sound could be mitigated by a
green deck over the bus loading area and through the use of green screens on the existing parking deck or
via other methods.

The Appleton Redevelopment Authority owns the parcel at 222 N. Oneida St. The building has been
demolished and the site is being mitigated.

This blighted area deals with parking challenges, ingress and egress difficulties, deteriorating structures,
accessibility and obsolescence. This area could be redeveloped individually or in groups. Rehabilitation,
conservation and/or redevelopment of the existing buildings and/or property would further enhance the
entire area. Since this entire area is highly visible and an integral part of the Downtown, this Development
Area would benefit from increased commercial activity. Redevelopment of this area would further benefit,
and potentially induce, investment in parcels located surrounding and in close proximity to this area.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 15 August 11, 2020



Development Area #12: The area comprised of the west side of the 200 Block of North Appleton Street
includes a vacant lot, 2 story historic buildings, surface parking and a church and event site. A fire destroyed
one of the buildings, creating a vacant lot. Additional buildings are in poor condition, and some of the
existing first floor businesses do not maintain regular hours. The block is strategically important because
of its high visibility immediately west of the existing Library and Transit Center and north of City Center
Plaza and College Avenue. This area is prime for redevelopment. Street level could be residential, retail,
office, service, and/or hospitality.

This blighted area deals with parking challenges, ingress and egress difficulties, deteriorating structures,
accessibility and obsolescence. This area is characterized by small parcels with historic/older buildings and
could be redeveloped individually or in groups. Rehabilitation, conservation or redevelopment of the
existing buildings and/or property would further enhance the entire area. Encouraging development north
of College Avenue has been a longtime priority for the City and is a potential catalyst for other projects.

Development Area #13: The area North of Franklin Street, the block bound by Appleton Street, Packard
Street, Oneida Street and Harris Street includes vacant lots, a vacant building and two businesses. This area
is prime for redevelopment. Town homes, multi-family, office, service and/or hospitality could be
opportunities in this area. Cost, timing and exact project is not known at this time.

This blighted area deals with ingress and egress difficulties, deteriorating structures, accessibility and
obsolescence. This area is characterized by multiple parcels with multiple owners of vacant lots and/or
historic/older buildings and could be redeveloped individually or in groups. Rehabilitation, conservation
or redevelopment of the existing buildings and/or property would further enhance the entire area.
Encouraging development north of College Avenue has been a longtime priority for the City and is a
potential catalyst for other projects.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 16 August 11, 2020



SECTION 3:
District Boundary Map & Identification of Parcels to be

Added

Map Found on Following Page.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 17 August 11, 2020



COLLE GE
AV,

" Date: 52712020

EWGS

WASHINGT

ON'ST;

“TIF 11 Amended

~ TIF 11 Original

| TIF 30riginal
|

|||||||||i "|'II-III
I .|||||||J||||||| I

TIF Districts

|7 ] Parcelsfrom TIF 3 going to TIF 11; 2-0637
| I Farcels Added to TIF 11 (slands in TIF 3)

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment

Prepared by Ehlers

Page 18

City of Appleton
August 11, 2020




SECTION 4:
|dentification of Parcels to be Added

The purpose of this Plan Amendment is to add the parcels identified in the tables below to the District
effective January 1, 2020. The figures listed under the “Current Value” column reflect valuations as of
January 1, 2019. The actual addition to the District’s base value will be based on January 1, 2020 valuations
which are not yet available. The District’s revised base will first be reflected in the valuations certified for
January 1, 2021. Any changes in the valuation of the parcels being added to the District that occurs after
January 1, 2020 will impact the incremental value of the District.

Parcels Currently Located within TID No. 3

lelalflcbe:l‘ Street Address ((le::leil ,t 2\(])2;19‘;‘3 Acres B:fll:sed
0-0311 | 229 E WASHINGTON ST $ - 0.081

2-0243 | 318 W COLLEGE AVE $ 827,000 0.375 0.375
2-0251 | 221 W WASHINGTON ST $ - 0.679

2-0253 | 131 N APPLETON ST $ 536,600 0.543 0.543
2-0302 | 130 N MORRISON ST $ 140,000 0.050

2-0305 | 215 E WASHINGTON ST $ 34,100 0.866

2-0307 | E WASHINGTON ST $ 28,500 0.057 0.057
2-0311 129 N DURKEE ST $ 160,500 0.081

2-0387 | 130 E WASHINGTON ST $ - 1.676

2-0393 100 E WASHINGTON ST $ - 0.906 0.906
2-0397 | 225 N ONEIDA ST $ - 2.176 2.176
2-0404 | 231 W FRANKLIN ST $ 270,900 0.379

2-0405 | 214 N SUPERIOR ST $ 174,900 0.041

2-0406 | N APPLETON ST $ 762,800 1.585 1.585
2-0408 | 233 N APPLETON ST $ 223,100 0.221 0.221
2-0417 | 211 N APPLETON ST $ 135,500 0.058 0.058
2-0418 | 207 N APPLETON ST $ 218,700 0.066

2-0419 | 201 N APPLETON ST $ 313,000 0.096 0.096
2-0425 | W FRANKLIN ST $ 136,600 0.483 0.483
2-0431 | 322 N APPLETON ST $ - 0.083 0.083
2-0433 | 314 N APPLETON ST $ - 0.305

2-0435 | 304 N APPLETON ST $ 272,600 0.197

2-0436 | 300 N APPLETON ST $ - 0.138

2-0437 | E HARRIS ST $ 14,700 0.052 0.052
2-0439 | 303 N ONEIDA ST $ - 0.464

2-0441 | N ONEIDA ST $ 103,800 0.340 0.340
2-0443 | N ONEIDA ST $ 38,900 0.137 0.137
2-0488 | N SUPERIOR ST $ 173,400 0.577 0.577

(Table Continued on Next Page)
TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton

Prepared by Ehlers Page 19 August 11, 2020



Nl:lalfl(;:)e:l‘ Street Address 8:;?;1 ,t 2\(7319? Acres B:cg:::d

2-0488-1 | 222 W FRANKLIN ST $ - 0.201

2-0488-3 | 323 N KALATA PL $ - 0.014
2-0489 | N APPLETON ST $ - 0.395 0.395
2-0491 | 325 N APPLETON ST $ 228,000 0.243
2-0492 | 319 N APPLETON ST $ - 0.126
2-0493 | 317 N APPLETON ST $ 212,000 0.247 0.247
2-0498 | N SUPERIOR ST $ 236,100 0.998 0.998
2-0528 120 E HARRIS ST $ - 1.696
2-0529 | N APPLETON ST $ 86,900 0.361 0.361
2-0530 116 W HARRIS ST $ 125,000 0.286 0.286
2-0532 | 433 N ONEIDA ST $ - 0.188 0.188
2-0533 415 N ONEIDA ST $ 86,000 0.087 0.087
2-0534 | N ONEIDA ST $ 20,900 0.087 0.087
2-0587 | 531 N MORRISON ST $ - 0.545
2-0588 | N MORRISON ST $ - 0.099 0.099
2-0589 | 517 N MORRISON ST $ 66,300 0.099
2-0592 | 513 N MORRISON ST $ - 0.127 0.127
2-0594 130 E NORTH ST $ - 0.772 0.772
2-0599 | 506 N ONEIDA ST $ 122,200 0.147
2-0601 510 N ONEIDA ST $ 242,600 0.547
2-0637 | N SUPERIOR ST $ - 0.298 0.298
2-0640 | 311 W PACKARD ST $ - 1.214 1.214
2-0641 311 N SUPERIOR ST $ 143,200 0.514 0.514
2-0643 | 414 N DIVISION ST $ 142,000 0.200
2-0644 | N DIVISION ST $ - 0.165
2-0645 | N DIVISION ST $ 132,400 0.556 0.556
2-0646 | 400 N DIVISION ST $ - 0.405
2-0648 | 401 N CLARK ST $ 108,000 0.067
2-0649 | 403 N CLARK ST $ 88,900 0.194
2-0650 | 327 W PACKARD ST $ 162,000 0.245
2-0795 LAND LOCKED $ - 1.793 1.793
2-0795 LAND LOCKED $ -

2-0795-1 | W PACKARD ST $ - 0.235 0.235
2-0796 | LAND LOCKED $ - 1.610 1.610
2-0796 LAND LOCKED $ -

Subtotal of TID No. 3 Parcels $ 6,768,100 27.470 17.553

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton

Prepared by Ehlers

Page 20

August 11, 2020



Additional Parcels to be Added to the District

Parcel Current Value Blighted
Number Street Address (Jan. 1, 2019) Acres Acres

2-0428 | 306 W WASHINGTON ST $ 1,127,300 1.161 1.161

2-0495 | N APPLETON ST $ 70,400 0.341 0.341

2-0536 | N ONEIDA ST $ 75,200 0.314 0.314

2-0384 | N ONEIDA ST $ - 0.211 0.211
Subtotal of Additional Parcels to be
Added $ 1,272,900 2.027 2.027
Total of All Parcels to be Added $ 8,041,000 29.497 19.581

Calculation of Blighted Area Percentage
Total Acres Blighted Acres Percentage

Original District Area 38.670 25.587 66.17%
Territory to be Added 29.497 19.581 66.38%
Total 68.167 45.168 66.26%

Parcels within the territory to be added to the District that have been identified as blighted include those

that:

1. Contain substandard or deteriorating structures or site improvements; inadequate street layout or faulty
lot layout in relation to size, adequacy, accessibility or usefulness, or conditions which endanger life or
property by fire and other causes, or any combination of such factors that impairs or arrests the sound
growth of a city.

2. Consist of land upon which building, or structures have been demolished and which because of obsolete
platting, many of changes of ownership or deterioration of structures or site improvements, or
otherwise, substantially impairs or arrests the sound growth of the community.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment
Prepared by Ehlers

Page 21

City of Appleton
August 11, 2020



SECTION 5:
Maps Showing Existing Uses and Conditions

Map Found on Following Page

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 22 August 11, 2020



City of Appleton

E TIF 3 Criginal

F 11 Amended

Tl
D Blighted Parcels
- Central Business District

- Commercial

Tax Increment Financing District #11
Existing Uses and Conditions

[ ] Planned Development Multi Family R
I Publicinstitutional

:l Single Family Residential

D Two Family Residential

NTIC ST

PACKARD ST

(VA S LN UN

COLLEGE AV

-

LAWRENCE ST
"

%

NORTH ST

HARRIS ST

ORRISON|ST

“

]

0o 175

" PACIFIC ST

DURKEE ST

IDA ST

DREW ST

7
mi

350 700

Felet

|Comm.& Econ. Dev. Dept. April 2020|

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment

Prepared by Ehlers

Page 23

City of Appleton
August 11, 2020




SECTION 6:
Equalized Value Test

The following calculations demonstrate that the City expects to be in compliance with Wis. Stat. §
66.1105(4)(gm)4.c., which requires that the equalized value of the taxable property proposed to be added
to the District, plus the value increment of all existing tax incremental districts, does not exceed 12% of the
total equalized value of taxable property within the City.

Calculation of City Equalized Value Limit

City TID IN Equalized Value (Jan. 1, 2019) $ 5,855,356,700

TID Valuation Limit @ 12% of Above Value $ 702,642,804

Calculation of Value Subject to Limit

Base Value of Territory to be Added to District $ 8,041,000

Less: Incremental Value of Overlapped Parcels (3 1,095,100)
Plus: Incremental Value of Existing Districts (Jan. 1, 2019) $ 235.828.500
Total Value Subject to 12% Valuation Limit $ 242,774,400

The equalized value of the territory to be added to the District plus the incremental value within all other
existing tax incremental districts totals $242,774,400 which is 4.15% of the City’s total equalized value.
This value is less than the maximum of $702,642,804 in equalized value that is permitted for the City.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 24 August 11, 2020



SECTION 7:
Statement of Kind, Number and Location of Proposed
Public Works and Other Projects

Project Costs are any expenditure made, estimated to be made, or monetary obligations incurred or
estimated to be incurred as outlined in this Plan. Project Costs will be diminished by any income, special
assessments or other revenues, including user fees or charges, other than tax increments, received or
reasonably expected to be received in connection with the implementation of the Plan. If Project Costs
incurred benefit territory outside the District, a proportionate share of the cost is not a Project Cost. Costs
identified in this amended Plan are preliminary estimates made prior to design considerations and are
subject to change after planning, design and construction is completed. With all Project Costs, the costs of
engineering, design, survey, inspection, materials, construction, restoring property to its original condition,
apparatus necessary for public works, legal and other consultant fees, testing, environmental studies,
permits, updating City ordinances and plans, judgments or claims for damages and other expenses are
included as Project Costs.

As set forth in the District’s original Plan approved on August 2, 2017, the following is a list of public
works and other tax incremental financing eligible Project Costs that the City expects to make, or may need
to make, in conjunction with the implementation of the District’s Plan. The map found in Section 8 of this
Plan along with the Detailed List of Project Costs found in Section 9 provide additional information as to
the kind, number and location of potential Project Costs.

A. Municipal Infrastructure Improvements

e Construction and/or reconstruction of the streets, bridges, pedestrian connections and parking to
facilitate development and rehabilitation projects within the District. Scope of work may include
right-of-way acquisition, land assembly, grading, gravel, curb and gutter, asphalt, streetlights,
traffic signals, walkways, concrete paving, lighting, signage, and related appurtenances.

e Construction and/or reconstruction of a sanitary sewer collection system to facilitate development
and rehabilitation projects within the District. The scope of work may include sewer mains,
manbholes, laterals, force main, lift stations, and related appurtenances.

e Construction and/or reconstruction of the water distribution system to facilitate development and
rehabilitation projects within the District. Projects may include water mains, valves, hydrants,
service connections, laterals and other related appurtenances.

e Construction and/or reconstruction of storm water drainage facilities to support development and
rehabilitation projects within the District. Projects may include retention or detention basins,
biofilters, conveyance systems, storm sewer mains, manholes, inlets, drains and related
appurtenances.

e Installation of electric and/or natural gas service or the relocation of existing services to facilitate
blight elimination and redevelopment or rehabilitation in the District and provide better service.
Acquisition of equipment to service the District.

o Installation of telephone, fiber, and cable or the relocation of existing services to facilitate blight
elimination and redevelopment or rehabilitation in the District and provide better service.
Acquisition of equipment to service the District.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 25 August 11, 2020



e The costs associated with the design, implementation, purchase and maintenance of streetscape
amenities to improve the aesthetic appearance of this District, including but not limited to,
decorative lighting, banners and/or flags, public art, landscaping and/or planters, benches and
other pedestrian elements to encourage the viability of the businesses in the district and attract
high quality development.

B. Administrative Costs: These include, but not limited to, a portion of the salaries of the City
employees, professional fees, and others directly involved in the projects for the District over the
implementation of the project plan. Audit expenses, state filing fees, and any expenses associated
with dissolving the District are also eligible costs.

C. Organizational Costs: These include, but are not limited to, publication and printing costs in
connection with this Project Plan as well as the fees for the financial consultants, attorney, engineers,
planners, surveyors, and other contracted services.

D. Professional Services: These include, but are not limited to, those costs incurred for architectural,
planning, engineering and legal advice and services.

E. Financing Costs: Interest, finance fees, bond discounts, redemption premiums, legal opinions, credit
ratings, capitalized interest, insurance and other expenses related to financing. This would also
include interest on advances made by the City of Appleton.

F. Land Assembly, Clearance, and Real Estate Acquisitions: In order to eliminate blight and promote
rehabilitation and redevelopment, it may be necessary to assist developers or for the City to acquire
and demolish blighted or underutilized properties within the District. These may include but are not
limited to, the cost of acquisitions, clearance/demolition, titles, easements, appraisals, consultant fees,
closing costs, surveying and mapping, and the lease and/or the sale of property at or below market
price to encourage or make feasible an economic development project that is consistent with the intent
of this District.

G. Relocation Costs: In the event any property is acquired for the projects, expenses including the cost
of the relocation plan, director and staff time, publications, appraisals, land and property acquisition
costs and relocation benefits as required by Wisconsin Statutes Section 32 are considered eligible
project costs.

H. Development Incentives (Cash Grants and/or Loans): As a partner in the future redevelopment
and rehabilitation/conservation of this District, the City of Appleton may enter into agreements with
property owners, lessees, or developers for the purpose of sharing costs to encourage the desired kind
of improvements based on the purpose of this District and assure tax base is generated sufficient to
recover project costs. This assistance is regularly needed in rehabilitation and redevelopment projects
to offset the additional costs in re-use versus greenfield development. Not every project will demand
the same level of funding. These payments would be negotiated on a project basis in order to attract
new taxable property or rehabilitate existing property in the District. No cash grants or loans will be
provided until the Common Council adopts a development agreement and a copy of such agreement
will be retained in the City’s official records for the TID.

I. Environmental Audits and Remediation: Costs related to all environmental assessments and
remediation will be considered eligible project costs.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 26 August 11, 2020



J.  Promotion and Development: Promotion and development of the District including professional
services or marketing, recruitment, realtor commissions and fees in lieu of commissions, marketing
services and materials, advertising costs, administrative costs and support of development
organizations.

K. Project Outside the Tax Increment District: Pursuant to Wisconsin Statutes Section
66.1105(2)(f)1.n, the city may undertake projects within territory located within one-half (1/2) mile
of the boundary of the district provided that (1) the project is located within the City’s corporate
boundaries, and (2) the projects are approved by the Joint Review Board. The cost of projects
completed outside the District pursuant to this section are eligible Project Costs and may include any
project cost that would otherwise be eligible if undertaken within the District. The City expects to
incur the following Project Costs outside of the District:

Project & Year Estimated Cost
Lawrence Street (Walnut to EIm)

e Underground Utilities (2021) $250,000

e Paving (2022) $238,000
Atlantic Street (Oneida to Lawe)

e Underground Utilities (2021) $709,000

e Paving (2022) $920,000
Alley (Walnut to Lawrence)

e Storm Sewer & Paving (2022) $179,000
Lawe Street (College to Spring)

e Underground Utilities (2023) $832,000

e Paving (2024) $1,486,000
Atlantic Street (Richmond to Oneida)

e Underground Utilities (2025) $940,000

e Paving (2026) $1,230,000

Refer to Section 8§ for a map of proposed improvements and Public Works projects by development
area.

L. Payments Made at the Discretion of the Common Council: These payments may include but are
not limited to payments which are found to be necessary or convenient to the creation of the District
or the implementation of the Project Plan that support the goals of the District as outlined in Section
2.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 27 August 11, 2020



SECTION 8:
Map Showing Proposed Improvements and Uses

Maps Found on Following Page.

The first map depicts the locations where the City may undertake Municipal Infrastructure Improvements
as detailed in Section 7. This includes eligible Project Costs to be incurred outside of, but within 72 mile of
the District’s boundaries. The second map identies the %2 mile zone of eligibility.

The following types of Project Costs included in Section 7 are generally expected to be incurred within the
Development Areas identified on the map.

e Land Assembly, Clearance, and Real Estate Acquisitions

e Relocation costs.

e Development Incentives (Cash Grants and/or Loans).

Other costs identified in Section 7 may be associated with expenditures made for the Municipal
Infrastructure Improvements, activities within the Development Areas, or may not relate to a specifically
identified geographical location such as District administrative costs.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 28 August 11, 2020



Tax | cit{ :‘prpl‘emrJ' trict #11 :LRl:réi
ax Incremen’ inancin IStric
Proposed Improvements and Pt?blic Works Projects WISCONSINAY
by Development Areas
TIF 11 Amended
Public Works Projects Amended TIF 11 SUMMER ST
Public Works Projects Qriginal TIF 11 w |
E=H Redevelopment no: m
72 Rehabilitation s - SPRING ST
[ Development Area 1 [] Development Area B - =5
! Development Area 2 I Development Area 9 6 < =
; 2:3292::::::2 [ Development Area 10 w
—Jei o B Yk mi LPMMERGIALS LS o
— P il = Z
- = v o WINNEBAGO ST
< = Q
Iy wn o
L d w I
o % HANCOCK ST
<
- i «
o s @«
g = ATLANTIC ST = =
o o w [
: : RS
>
% = = = PACIFIC ST -
= =z 1 <
° ] (] m
=4 7] b < |
I w 74 a -
3 HliE = 4
PACKARD ST & 2 X NORTH ST -
2 [ 5] =W
. : s ¢
ERdg; HARRIS ST
PL 7 nE 5
= 120
: 4
o FRANKLI >
< i <
SRR
Z .IQI 128 1105 g
(|
: HINGTON -
JOHNSTON % > 5 -8 '
6
COLLEGE AV .
ALLEY # - ﬂ
%S%
- LAWRENCE ST P ¥
Z N
E ¥ 4} mEEE
(T ' HKIMBAL
EIGHTH ST B L b %
" S |
5 Fox River
= SEVENTH ST
S
o IST
= = N
= <&
2N &
= &
0 325 650 1,300
! t Il { ]
' Feet '
s
Comm.& Econ. Dev. Dept. June 2020[
Ld

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Appleton

Page 29 August 11, 2020




i

/ City of Appleton |
\ ‘ {\ | TIF Districts N

Tif 11 Amended

——
]
1
|

-

AR

T
AT
1

/%\HMF ‘ \;\uzrvn Buffer Zon J
Em=mEryrm iy
. N[ J ~
i e oy

L0 vl
I
[ L0

E@Wd | \DD]DHUJELH

I I . LA
i H:WT 1 T J[

TDDL\
:fg;g:ll T] ’

[

N
QDE
T
Loasions |1
EEEEEN

.
—
IDDD[H

EREAND
|
é
|
Nil

] L
—
L
]

ERESuEnl

gu
!

_
_
|

vilim
g

alln
(11
na

i
%D
EZ
bt |

e

Fﬂ
E
F

WWTW HE

u\ H L \_/

5 f
///| “w\mg@%
f“\f\\ Q%EF

j NEDDEM%I‘+
\

S EEEE
T 00

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 30 August 11, 2020



SECTION 9:
Detailed List of Project Costs

The following list identifies the Project Costs that the City currently expects to incur in implementing the
District’s amended Plan. All projects identified and related costs reflect the best estimates available as of
the date of preparation of this amended Plan. All costs are preliminary estimates and may increase or
decrease. Certain Project Costs listed may become unnecessary, and other Project Costs not currently
identified may need to be made. (Section 7 details the general categories of eligible Project Costs). Changes
in Project Cost totals or the types of Project Costs to be incurred will not require that this Plan be further
amended. This Plan is not meant to be a budget nor an appropriation of funds for specific Project Costs, but
a framework within which to manage Project Costs.

Project/Activity Total Cost Cost Added Total Revised Estimated
(Original Plan (This Cost Estimate Timing
Est.) Amendment)
* Municipal Infrastructure $3,234,600 | $1,869,382 |  $5,103,982 | 2018 —2023
Improvements
* Municipal Infrastructure None | 6,784,000 |  $6,784,000 | 2021 -2026
within the 2 Mile Boundary v 7
*  Development Incentives & §14,847,560 |  $24,693461 |  $39,541,021 | 2018 - 2042
Property Grants
e Other Costs — Administrative,
Professional, Environmental,
and Promotion Services $124,750 $528,859 $653,609 | 2017 — 2045
Costs. Filing fees and fees
charged by State.
¢ Financing Costs
©  General Fund Advance $1,528,283 |  $7,234,048 |  $8,762,331 | 20172041
Interest Expense
0 General Obligation
SUBTOTAL: $19,735,193 $41,109,750 $60,840,943 | 2017 — 2045
e Financing Costs*
0 Development Incentives $9,127,794 | (89,127.794)
TOTAL* $28,862,987 $31,981,956 $60,840,943

*NOTE: The original District Plan line item for Development Incentives & Property Grants did not include
estimated interest payments on developer financed incentives, although that cost was reflected in projected
District cash flows. That total from the original Plan was $9,127,794. When comparing the estimated total
Project Costs from the original Plan to the Amended Plan, it is necessary to include that additional amount.
The actual increase in estimated Project Costs from the original Plan to the Amended Plan is the
$31,981,956 figure shown on the total line.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment
Prepared by Ehlers

City of Appleton

Page 31 August 11, 2020



SECTION 10:

Economic Feasibility Study, Financing Methods, and the
Time When Costs or Monetary Obligations Related are to
be Incurred

This Section includes a forecast of the valuation increases expected within the District, the associated tax
increment collections, a summary of how Project Costs would be financed, and a projected cash flow
demonstrating that the District is economically feasible.

As of January 1, 2019, the District had incremental value of $1,603,700. The Plan assumes that $122.6
million in additional incremental value will be created within the District by January 1, 2022 as a result of
development projects proceeding within Development Areas #1, #4, #5, #7, #8 and #9 as shown on Table
1. The City expects it may need to pay Development Incentives to make these private projects economically
feasible. A projection of potential incentive payments is shown on Table 2. These payments would be made
from a combination of City borrowed funds, and tax increment cash (“pay as you go”) generated by the
projects.

In addition to payment of incentives, the City has, and will, complete Municipal Infrastructure
Improvements within the District. The City has, and will, finance these costs with General Obligation debt.
Actual and estimated debt service for paying the cost of both the Municipal Infrastructure Projects and
Development Incentives are identified on Table 3.

Table 4 is a projected cash flow for the District. Based on the incremental value expected to be created
(Table 1) the District is projected to generate approximately $73.6 million in tax increment revenue over
its twenty-seven-year life. This assumes a tax rate increasing at 2% per year over the actual rate for the
2019/20 budget year. Considering the projected debt service (Table 2) and Development Incentive
payments (Table 3), the District is projected to run a negative fund balance through the year 2036 before
eventually generating a projected $19.5 million surplus by its required closure date. The City will advance
funds to the District as needed to cover the deficit fund balance and will charge the District interest on the
advance.

The projected surplus fund balance indicates the District could close prior to the end of its maximum life;
however, the City expects that development will occur within other identified Development Areas, and that
the City may incur additional associated Project Costs. Additional development and incurrence of costs
beyond what is shown in the projections included within this Section could increase or decrease the
projected surplus fund balance and hasten or delay District closure. Under all circumstances, the District
must make all Project Cost expenditures not later than the year 2039 and must close in 2044 with a final
collection of tax increment for the 2045 budget year.

The cash flow exhibit does not include the costs of projects identified in this Plan located outside of, but
within % mile of the District’s boundaries. These costs will be paid for initially from other sources. The
extent to which the District may be able to offset a portion of these costs will be determined at a future date
depending on District financial performance. Any contributions from the District towards these costs would
reduce the projected surplus shown in the cash flow exhibit.

Based on the information included within this Section, the City concludes that the District remains
economically feasible and that the City has the financial resources available to implement the Plan.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 32 August 11, 2020



TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT #11

TAXINCREMENTS BY YEAR

MNew Construction

TID Dev Area #1 Dev Area #4 Dev Area #5 Dev Area #7 Dev Area #6 Dev Area #6 Dev Area #9
Valuation  Revenue TID TID Base TID Zuelke Blue Ramp/ Gabriel Avant 320 E Crescent Total TID
Year Year Value (1) Value Increment Bluff Site Building LLC City Center Lofts LLC Aparments LLC College LLC Lofts Increment (1)
2017 2018  $ 83,099,200 $ 83,099,200 $ - $ -
2018 2019 90,259,800 83,099,200 7,160,600 7,160,600
2019 2020 84,702,900 83,099,200 1,603,700 1,603,700
2020 2021 85,549,929 83,099,200 2,450,729 2450729
2021 2022 94 446 428 (2) 91,140,200 3,306,228 577,900 4 000,000 4.090,300 9221100 21,195 528
2022 2023 79,334 300 7,500,000 6,000,000 6,000,000 124 241 784
2023 2024 125,484 201
2024 2025 126,739,043
2025 2026 128,006,434
2026 2027 129,286 498
2027 2028 130,579,363
2028 2029 131,885,157
2029 2030 133,204,008
2030 2031 134 536,046
2031 2032 135,881 409
2032 2033 137,240 223
2033 2034 138,612 625
2034 2035 139,998 752
2035 2036 141,398,739
2036 2037 142,812 726
2037 2038 144 240 854
2038 2039 145,683 262
2039 2040 147 140,095
2040 2041 148,611 496
2041 2042 150,097 611
2042 2043 151,598 587
2043 2044 153,114 573
2044 2045 154 645718
$79.334 300 $ 8077900 $ 8,000,000 $ 4,000,000 $ 4 090300 $ 9221100 $ 8,000,000
(1) TID values for the 2017-2019 valuation years are actual. TID values for valuation years 2020 and beyond projected to increase 1% annually.
(2) Boththe TID value and TID base value increased $8,041,000 due to transfer of parcels from TID #3 to TID #11 in 2020.
Table 1
TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 33 August 11, 2020



TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT #11
ESTIMATED DEVELOPER INCENTIVE PAYMENTS

Dev Area #1 Dev Area #4 Dev Area #5 Dev Area #7 Dev Area #8 Dev Area #8
Developer Developer Developer Developer Developer Developer
Valuation Budget TIF Payment TIF Payment TIF Payment TIF Payment TIF Payment TIF Payment Total
Year Year Bluff Site Zuelke Bld LLC Blue Ramp/City Center  Gabriel Lofts LLC Avant Apts LLC 320 E College LLC Payments

2016 2017 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
2017 2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2018 2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2019 2020 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020 2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2021 2022 16,500,000 9,912 0 76,464 78,927 177,930 16,843,233
2022 2023 545,764 172,400 155,160 76,589 79,421 179,028 1,208,362
2023 2024 544 410 173,487 156,108 76,714 79916 180,127 1,210,762
2024 2025 545,018 174,575 157,057 76,839 80,411 181,228 1,215,128
2025 2026 045,228 175,667 158,009 76,964 80,908 182,331 1,219,107
2026 2027 544 935 176,760 158,962 77,090 81,406 183 437 1,222 590
2027 2028 246,281 177,856 159,917 7,215 81,905 184,544 1,227,718
2028 2029 544 709 178,954 160,874 77,341 82405 185,654 1,229 937
2029 2030 244 735 180,055 161,832 7,468 82,906 186,766 1,233,762
2030 2031 546 257 181,157 162,793 77,594 83,408 187,879 1,239,088
2031 2032 244 712 182,263 163,754 7,720 83,911 188,995 1,241,355
2032 2033 544 613 183,370 164,718 77,646 84 415 190,113 1,245,075
2033 2034 45,847 164,480 165,684 77,973 84,920 191,233 1,250,137
2034 2035 546170 185,592 166,651 78,100 85426 192 355 1,254 294
2035 2036 245 657 186,706 167,620 78,227 0 193,479 1,171,669
2036 2037 544 295 187,823 168,591 78,354 0 194 606 1,173,669
2037 2038 246,508 189,024 169,636 78,482 0 195,819 1,179,469
2038 2039 545429 190,227 170,684 78,610 0 0 984,950
2039 2040 245,571 191,433 171,733 0 0 0 908,737
2040 2041 244 601 192 641 0 0 0 0 137,242
2041 2042 244 717 0 0 0 0 0 od44 717
2042 2043 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2043 2044 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2044 2045 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

$27 405 457 $3.474.382 $2.939,783 $1,395,590 $1.150,285 $3.175,524 $39.541.,021

Mote: Actual amounts may differ due to changes in project timing, projected valuations, and equalized tax rates
Table 2
TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 34 August 11, 2020



TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT #11
GENERAL OBLIGATION DEBT

$2,010,000 $2,310,000 $17,800,000
Budget 2019 GO Notes 2021 GO Notes 2022 Taxable GO Bonds Total
Year Principal Interest Principal Interest Principal Interest Payments

2017 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0
2018 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2019 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2020 0 * 0 0 0 0 0
2021 0 * 0 0 0 0 0
2022 0 51,150 0 58,766 0 425,798 535,714
2023 260,000 47,250 0 58,766 710,000 559,199 1,635,215
2024 270,000 39,300 0 58,766 730,000 541,528 1,639,594
2025 280,000 31,050 295,000 54,405 740,000 522,714 1,923,169
2026 285,000 22575 310,000 45,268 765,000 502,555 1,930,398
2027 295,000 15,350 320,000 35,830 785,000 480,956 1,932,136
2028 305,000 9,350 330,000 25953 §10,000 457,912 1,938,215
2029 315,000 3,150 340,000 17,661 835,000 433,491 1,944 302
2030 0 0 350,000 10,804 860,000 407,865 1,628,669
2031 0 0 365,000 5,402 885,000 381,048 1,636,450
2032 0 0 0 0 915,000 352,608 1,267,608
2033 0 0 0 0 945,000 322,635 1,267,635
2034 0 0 0 0 975,000 291,222 1,266,222
2035 0 0 0 0 1,010,000 258,151 1,268,151
2036 0 0 0 0 1,045,000 223,521 1,268,521
2037 0 0 0 0 1,080,000 187,052 1,267,052
2038 0 0 0 0 1,115,000 148,956 1,263,956
2039 0 0 0 0 1,160,000 108,824 1,268,624
2040 0 0 0 0 1,200,000 66,514 1,266,514
2041 0 0 0 0 1,235,000 22539 1,257,539
2042 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2043 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2044 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
2045 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

$2.010,000 $219175  $2,310,000 $371.,621 $17,800,000 $6,695,088 $29.405 884

* Interest payments paid with debt premium

Table 3

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 35 August 11, 2020



TAX INCREMENT DISTRICT #11

CASH FLOW PROFORMA

General
Obligation Developer Interest an Annual
Valuation Budget TID Tax TIF Other Debt Admin Debt Project/Other Incentive General Fund Surplus/ Fund
Year Year Increment Rate (1) Revenue Revenues Proceeds Expense Senvice Expenses Paymenis Advance (Deficit) Balance
2016 2017 0 0 0 0 (1,000) 0 0 0 (25) (1,025) (1,025)
2017 2018 0 0 133 0 (150) 0 (409,539) 0 (8,551) (418,107) (419,132)
2018 2019 7,160,600 227611 162,983 0 2,010,000 (1,470) 0 (2,820,962) 0 (27,729) (677,198) (1,096,330)
2019 2020 1,603,700 21.2190 34,029 0 0 (1,500) 0 (42,000) 0 (48,740) (58,211) (1,154 541)
2020 2021 2,450,729 21.3251 52,262 0 2,310,000 (1,500) 0 (2,310,000) 0 (58,115) (7,353) (1,161,894)
2021 2022 21,195,528 214317 454 257 0 17,800,000 (1,500) (535,714) 0 (16,843,233) (38,115) 835,694 (326,200)
2022 2023 124,241 784 215389 2,676,029 0 0 (6,500) (1,6352158) (118,450) (1,208,362) (26,865) (319,363) (645 564)
2023 2024 125,484,201 21,6466 2,716,303 0 0 (1,500) (1,639,594) 0 (1,210,762) (40,615) (176,168) (821,732)
2024 2025 126,739,043 21.7548 2,757,183 0 0 (1,500) (1,923,169) 0 (1,215,128) (55,6158) (438,229) (1,259,961)
2025 2026 128,006,434 21.8636 2,798 679 0 0 (1,500) (1,930,398) 0 (1,219,107} (76,865) (429,191) (1,689,152)
2026 2027 129,286 498 219729 2,840,799 0 0 (1,500) (1,932,136) 0 (1,222,590} (98,115) (413,542) (2,102 694)
2027 2028 130,579,363 220828 2,883,553 0 0 (1,500) (1,938,215) 0 (1,227,718) (118,115) (401,995) (2,504 ,689)
2028 2029 131,885,157 221932 2,926,951 0 0 (1,500) (1,944 302) 0 (1,229,937) (138,115) (386,904) (2,891,593)
2029 2030 133,204,008 22.3041 2,971,001 0 0 (1,500) (1,628 669) 0 (1,233,762) (148,115) (41,045) (2,932 638)
2030 2031 134,536,048 22 4157 3,015,715 0 0 (1,500) (1,636,450) 0 (1,239,088) (148,115) (9,439) (2,942 ,077)
2031 2032 135,881 400 22 5277 3,061,101 0 0 (1,500) (1,267 ,608) 0 (1,241,355) (138,115) 412 523 (2,529 554)
2032 2033 137,240,223 22 6404 3,107 171 0 0 (1,500) (1,267,635) 0 (1,245,075) (116,865) 476,096 (2,053,458)
2033 2034 138,612,625 227536 3,153,034 0 0 (1,500) (1,266,222) 0 (1,250,137} (91,865) 544 209 (1,509,248)
2034 2035 139,998 752 22 8674 3,201,400 0 0 (1,500) (1,268,151) 0 (1,254,294) (63,115) 614,340 (894,908)
2035 2036 141,398,739 229817 3,249 582 0 0 (1,500) (1,268,521) 0 (1,171,689) (29,365) 778,506 (116,402)
2036 2037 142,812,726 23.0966 3,298 488 0 0 (1,500) (1,267,052) 0 (1,173,669) (5,308) 850,959 734 557
2037 2038 144,240 854 23.2121 3,348,130 0 0 (1,500) (1,263,956) 0 (1,179,469) 0 903,205 1,637,762
2038 2039 145,683,262 23.3281 3,398,519 0 0 (6,500) (1,268,824) 0 (984,950) 0 1,138,245 2,776,007
2039 2040 147,140,095 23.4448 3,449 667 0 0 (1,500) (1,266,514) 0 (908,737) 0 1,272,916 4,048,923
2040 2041 148,611,496 23.5620 3,501,585 0 0 (1,500) (1,257,539) 0 (T37,242) 0 1,505,304 5,554,227
2041 2042 150,097 611 236798 3,554,283 0 0 (1,500) 0 0 (544.717) 0 3,008,066 8,562,293
2042 2043 151,598 587 23.7982 3,607,775 0 0 (1,500) 0 0 0 0 3,606,275 12,168,569
2043 2044 153,114,573 239172 3,662,072 0 0 (1,500) 0 0 0 0 3,660,572 15,829 141
2044 2045 154,645,718 24.0368 3,717 187 0 0 (6,500) 0 0 0 0 3,710,687 19,539,828
73,600,637 133 22,120,000 (56,620) (29,405,884) (5,700,971) {39.541,021) (1,476.447) 19,539,828
(1) Taxrate projected to increase 1/2% annually beginning in 2021
Table 4
TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 36 August 11, 2020



SECTION 11:
Annexed Property

A tax incremental district cannot include annexed territory unless at least three years have elapsed since the
annexation, or certain other requirements are met. None of the territory being added to the District as part
of this Plan Amendment was annexed to the City in the preceding three years.

SECTION 12:
Proposed Zoning Ordinance Changes

The proposed Plan Amendment is in general conformance with the City’s current zoning ordinances.
Individual properties may require rezoning at the time of development.

SECTION 13:
Proposed Changes in Master Plan, Map, Building Codes
and Ordinances

The proposed Plan Amendment is in general conformance with the City’s Comprehensive Plan.
Development within the District will be required to conform to State Building Codes and will be subject to
the City's permitting and inspection procedures. The proposed Plan conforms to all relevant State and local
ordinances, plans, and codes. No changes to the existing regulations are proposed or needed.

SECTION 14:
Relocation

The City does not expect that the continued implementation of the Plan will cause a need to relocate persons
or businesses. In the event relocation becomes necessary at some time during the implementation period,
the City will take the following steps and actions as required by Wisconsin Statutes Section 32:

1. Before negotiations begin for the acquisition of property or easements, all property owners will be
provided with an informational pamphlet “The Rights of Landowners” prepared by the Wisconsin
Department of Administration, and if any person is to be displaced as a result of the acquisition, they
will be given a pamphlet on “Relocation Rights” prepared by the Wisconsin Department of
Administration.

2. The City will provide each owner a full narrative appraisal, a map showing the owners of all property
affected by the proposed project, and a list of all or at least ten neighboring landowners to whom offers
are being made.

3. The City will file a relocation plan with the Wisconsin Department of Administration and will keep all
records as required in Wisconsin Statutes Section 32.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 37 August 11, 2020



SECTION 15:
Orderly Development of the City

Amendment of the District contributes to the orderly development of the City by providing for the
elimination of blighting influences and the redevelopment of underutilized properties along the East College
Avenue corridor, and by providing for continued growth in residential, office, and retail development. By
improving and maintaining an attractive area for private investment along the corridor, the City will ensure
a healthy tax base, job growth/creation and a more vibrant economy.

The Amended Plan is complimentary to the adopted City of Appleton’s Comprehensive Plan 2010-2030
(Comprehensive Plan), specifically Chapter 14 Downtown Plan that identifies the corridor of West College
Avenue for reinvestment, rehabilitation and redevelopment. The City’s recommendations for this corridor
and surrounding downtown sites include the following key strategies as adopted on March 15, 2017 in the
updated Comprehensive Plan. These key strategies, and the detailed policies to support these efforts, can
be found in the Comprehensive Plan — Chapter 14 Downtown Plan Initiatives Section from pages 335 to
362:

11 Continue development of entry features on major routes into the downtown.

1.3 Implement appropriate streetscaping projects throughout the downtown.
15 Continue to encourage quality urban design throughout the downtown through voluntary
measures.

2.2 Pursue opportunities to attract more artists and arts-related businesses to the downtown.

3.1 Encourage mixed-use and mid-density residential redevelopment on under-utilized or marginal
sites on the edge of downtown.

3.3 Promote development of neighborhood serving businesses and amenities to meet the basic
shopping and service needs of downtown and nearby residents.

3.10  Promote well-designed transitional areas between higher density development downtown and
lower density development in adjacent, largely single-family neighborhoods.

4.1 Sustain and grow the retail niches which have formed downtown.

4.2 Identify and aggressively recruit target industries.

4.3 Protect the existing retail blocks on College Avenue.

4.5 Facilitate and pursue entrepreneurial business development in the downtown.

4.6 Create opportunities for smaller offices and business services to locate downtown, including
north of College Avenue.

4.7 Maintain an environment favorable to larger employers in the downtown.

4.8 Support private sector efforts to redevelop and invest in downtown.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 38 August 11, 2020



SECTION 16:
List of Estimated Non-Project Costs

Non-Project Costs are public works projects which only partly benefit the District. Costs incurred that do
not benefit the District may not be paid with tax increments. Examples of non-project costs are:

e A public improvement made within the District that also benefits property outside the District. That
portion of the total Project Costs allocable to properties outside of the District would be a non-
project cost.

e A public improvement made outside the District that only partially benefits property within the
District. That portion of the total Project Costs allocable to properties outside of the District would
be a non-project cost.

e Projects undertaken within the District as part of the implementation of this Project Plan, the costs
of which are paid fully or in part by impact fees, grants, special assessments, or revenues other than
tax increments.

No improvements to be made within the District will benefit property outside the District. Furthermore,
there will be no improvements made outside the District that will only partially benefit the District.

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton
Prepared by Ehlers Page 39 August 11, 2020



SECTION 17:

Opinion of Attorney for the City of Appleton Advising
Whether the Plan is Complete and Complies with
Wisconsin Statutes 66.1105

P 4
e.tM

“ . .meeting community needs. . enhancing aualitv of life ”
Ll g L L L L R + O 57

LEGAL SERVICES DEPARTMENT

Office of the City Attorney
100 North Appleton Street
Appleton, WI 54011

Phone: 920/832-6423

Fax: 920/832-5962

August 13,2020

Mayor Jacob A. Woodford
City of Appleton

100 N. Appleton Street
Appleton, WI 54911

Re:  Project Plan Amendment for Tax Incremental District No. 11
Dear Mayor Woodford:

Wisconsin Statute 66.1105(4)([) requires thal a project plan for a tax incremental financing
district include an opinion provided by the City Attorney advising as to whether the plan is
complete and complies with Wisconsin Statute 66.1105. As City Allorney for the City of
Appleton, I have been asked to review the above-referenced project plan for compliance with the
applicable statutory requirements. Based upon my review, in my opinion, the Project Plan
Amendment for the City of Appleton Tax Incremental District No. 11 is complete and complies
with the provisions of Wisconsin Statute 66.1105.

CHristopher R. Behrens

City Attorney
Christopher R. Behrens Amanda K. Abshire Darrin M. Glad Micholas VandeCastle
City Attorngy Depusty Ciity Attorney Assistant City Attorney Assistant City Attorney
TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton

Prepared by Ehlers Page 40 August 11, 2020



SECTION 18:
Calculation of the Share of Projected Tax Increments
Estimated to be Paid by the Owners of Property in the

Overlying Taxing Jurisdictions

The following projection is provided to meet the requirements of Wis. Stat. § 66.1105(4)(i)4. Allocation
percentages based on 2019 Statement of Taxes.

Budget Qutagamie
Year Tax Increment | City of Appleton County Appleton Schools FVTC
39.11% 17.40% 38.62% 4.87%

2019  (Act) 162,083 | § 63,735 | % 28,363 | § 62,950 | % 7,935
2020 (Act) 34029 | % 13,307 | % 5022 | % 13143 | % 1,657
2021 52262 | % 20437 | % 9095 | % 20,186 | $ 2,545
2022 454257 [ $ 177638 | § 79,051 | % 175,451 | § 22 117
2023 2676,029 | % 1,046, 465 | $ 465689 | § 1,033,582 | % 130,293
2024 2716303 | % 1062214 | $ 472698 | § 1,049137 | % 132,254
2025 2,757,183 | % 1078201 | % 479812 | % 1,064,926 | % 134,244
2026 2,798,679 | % 1,004,428 | % 487,033 | § 1,080,954 | % 136,264
2027 2,840,799 | % 1,110,899 | $ 494 363 | § 1,097222 | % 138,315
2028 2883553 | % 1,127618 | $ 501,803 | 1,113,735 | % 140,397
2029 2926951 | % 1,144 588 | $ 509,356 | § 1,130,497 | % 142 510
2030 2,971,001 | % 1,161,815 | $ 517,021 | § 1147511 | $ 144 654
2031 3015715 | % 1,179,300 | $ 524803 | § 1,164,781 | % 146,832
2032 3,061,101 | % 1,197,048 | % 532701 | % 1182311 | % 149 041
2033 3107171 | % 1,215,064 | % 540718 | § 1200105 | % 151,284
2034 3153934 | % 1,233351 | % 548856 | § 1,218,166 | % 153,561
2035 3201400 | % 1,251,912 | $ 557116 | § 1,236,500 | % 155,872
2036 3249582 | % 1,270,754 | $ 565501 | § 1,255,109 | % 156,218
2037 3,208,488 | % 1,280879 | % 574011 | & 1,273,998 | $ 160,599
2038 3,348,130 | % 1,300,291 | % 582650 | % 1293172 | 163,016
2039 3,398,519 | % 1,328,996 | $ 591,419 | § 1,312,634 | $ 165,470
2040 3449667 | % 1,348,998 | $ 600,320 | § 1,332,389 | % 167,960
2041 3,501,585 | % 1,369,300 | $ 609,355 | § 1352442 | % 170,488
2042 3554283 | % 1,389,908 | % 618526 | § 1,372,796 | % 173,054
2043 3607775 (% 1,410,826 | $ 627,834 | § 1,393457 | % 175,658
2044 3662072 | % 1,432,059 | % 637,283 | § 1414428 | % 178,302
2045 3717187 | % 1453611 | % 646,874 | § 1435715 | % 180,985

Totals 73600637 |$ 28781641 |$ 12808175 |$% 28427296 |$ 3,583,527

TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment City of Appleton

Prepared by Ehlers Page 41 August 11, 2020



	0000_Agenda
	0001_1_CEDC Minutes 7-7-21
	0002_1_Memo to CEDC 1st Amendment to Zuelke Project Dev Agrmt_7-8-21
	0002_2_Zuelke - Fully Executed Dev Agrm
	0002_3_MemotoCouncil_TaxReformBill_12-18-17
	0002_4_First Amendment to Dev Agrm - Zuelke-City - FINAL
	0002_5_Zuelke - Houdini Plaza Lease Agreement - FINAL_
	0002_6_TID No. 11 Project Plan Amendment_FINAL



